
Florida Board of Medicine
June 6, 2014

Full Board Addendum



Additional Information:



Angel M. Garcia, M.D. – 
Refer to original tab 10









Abdon Borges, M.D. – 
Refer to original tab 18 



 
CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 

 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 

 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all pages 
have been removed. 

 
SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS. 

 
456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 

furnished.— 
10)(a)All  patient  records  obtained  by  the  department  and  any  other  documents 

maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records  shall  not  be  available to  the  public  as  part  of  the  record  of  investigation for  and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 

 



Mohammed Naji, M.D. – 
Refer to original tab 19 



From: Sanford, Crystal
To: "glennstern@sternatlaw.com"
Subject: Mohammed Naji,  M.D.
Date: Thursday, May 22, 2014 12:58:00 PM

Dear Mr. Stern

Our records indicate that you are counsel for Dr. Naji for his upcoming disciplinary hearing
in Florida.  Will you be coming to Florida to appear with him?  If so, I need you to submit a
Request to be found as a qualified representative for Dr. Naji.  I will need that paperwork
as soon as possible so I can get it to the Board Members.  Below is Florida Administrative
Code regarding qualified representatives.  Please let me know if you have any questions. 
Thank you. 

28-106.106 Who May Appear; Criteria for Qualified Representatives.

(1) Any party who appears in any agency proceeding has the right, at his or her own expense, to be represented
by counsel or by a qualified representative. Counsel means a member of The Florida Bar or a law student
certified pursuant to Chapter 11 of the Rules Regulating The Florida Bar. An attorney disbarred in any state shall
not be authorized to serve as a qualified representative.

(2)(a) A party seeking representation by a qualified representative shall file a written request with the presiding
officer as soon as practicable, but no later than any pleading filed by the person seeking to appear on behalf of
the party. The request shall identify the name, address, e-mail adress, and telephone number of the
representative and shall state that the party is aware of the services which the representative can provide, and is
aware that the party can be represented by counsel at the party’s own expense and has chosen otherwise.

(b) The presiding officer shall consider whether the representative is qualified to appear in the administrative
proceeding and capable of representing the rights and interests of the party. The presiding officer may consider a
representative’s sworn affidavit setting forth the representative’s qualifications.

(c) The presiding officer shall determine the qualifications of the representative within a reasonable time after
the request required by paragraph (a) is filed.

(3) The presiding officer shall authorize the representative to appear if the presiding officer is satisfied that the
representative has the necessary qualifications to responsibly represent the party’s interests in a manner which
will not impair the fairness of the proceeding or the correctness of the action to be taken.

(4) The presiding officer shall make a determination of the qualifications of the representative in light of the
nature of the proceedings and the applicable law. The presiding officer shall consider:

(a) The representative’s knowledge of jurisdiction;

(b) The representative’s knowledge of the Florida Rules of Civil Procedure relating to discovery in an
administrative proceeding;

(c) The representative’s knowledge regarding the rules of evidence, including the concept of hearsay in an
administrative proceeding;

mailto:glennstern@sternatlaw.com


(d) The representative’s knowledge regarding the factual and legal issues involved in the proceedings; and

(e) The representative’s knowledge of and compliance with the Standards of Conduct for Qualified
Representatives, Rule 28-106.107, F.A.C.

(5) If the presiding officer determines a representative is not qualified, the reasons for the decision shall be in
writing and included in the record.

Rulemaking Authority 14.202, 120.54(5) FS. Law Implemented 120.54(5) FS. History–New 4-1-97, Amended 1-15-
07, 2-5-13.

Crystal A. Sanford, CPM
Program Operations Administrator
Department of Health (DOH) | Division of Medical Quality Assurance (MQA)
Board of Medicine
Phone: 850-245-4132 | Fax: 850-412-1261
4052 Bald Cypress Way, # C03 | Tallahassee, FL. 32399-3256
New Website: www.flboardofmedicine.gov
Twitter: www.twitter.com/FLBoardofMed
There have been changes to the license renewal process. Please visit www.CEAtRenewal.com to learn more.

Mission: To protect, promote and improve the health of all people in Florida through integrated state, county, and
community efforts.

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation.
Purpose: To protect the public through health care licensure, enforcement and information.
Focus: To be the nation's leader in quality health care regulation.
Values: I.C.A.R.E. (Innovation, Collaboration, Accountability, Responsiveness, Excellence)
PLEASE NOTE: Florida has a very broad public records law. Most written communications to or from State
officials regarding State business are public records available to the public and media upon request. Your email
communications may therefore be subject to public disclosure.

http://www.flboardofmedicine.gov/
http://www.flboardofmedicine.gov/
http://www.flboardofmedicine.gov/
http://www.flboardofmedicine.gov/
http://www.flboardofmedicine.gov/
http://www.twitter.com/FLBoardofMed
http://www.twitter.com/FLBoardofMed
http://www.twitter.com/FLBoardofMed
http://www.twitter.com/FLBoardofMed
http://www.twitter.com/FLBoardofMed
blocked::outbind://44/DOCUME~1/smithrs/LOCALS~1/Temp/FrontPageTempDir/www.CEAtRenewal.com
blocked::outbind://44/DOCUME~1/smithrs/LOCALS~1/Temp/FrontPageTempDir/www.CEAtRenewal.com
blocked::outbind://44/DOCUME~1/smithrs/LOCALS~1/Temp/FrontPageTempDir/www.CEAtRenewal.com
blocked::outbind://44/DOCUME~1/smithrs/LOCALS~1/Temp/FrontPageTempDir/www.CEAtRenewal.com
blocked::outbind://44/DOCUME~1/smithrs/LOCALS~1/Temp/FrontPageTempDir/www.CEAtRenewal.com
blocked::outbind://44/DOCUME~1/smithrs/LOCALS~1/Temp/FrontPageTempDir/www.CEAtRenewal.com


Juan Pittaluga, M.D. – 
Refer to original tab 25



 

     

 

VIA Electronic Mail  

Allison M. Dudley, Exec. Director 

Board of Medicine /Department of Health

4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-03 

Tallahassee, FL 32399-3253 

 

 

Re: DOH vs. Juan Manuel Pittaluga, M.D.,

 

 

 NOTICE is hereby provided that the undersigned counsel and law

represent the interests of Juan Manuel Pittaluga, M.D.

scheduled (Agenda # 25) to heard by the Board on June 6, 2014 in Tampa Florida 

appearance, we request all future communication and correspondence be directed to the undersigned 

counsel at the contact information listed below.

 

 Meanwhile should you require anything further please contact

 

 

 

cc:  Diane Kiesling, Esquire 

       Juan M.  Pittaluga, M.D.  

  May 20, 2014 

Board of Medicine /Department of Health 

Juan Manuel Pittaluga, M.D., Case # 2013-12878 

NOTICE OF APPEARANCE 

is hereby provided that the undersigned counsel and law firm have been retained to 

Juan Manuel Pittaluga, M.D. in the above referenced case

) to heard by the Board on June 6, 2014 in Tampa Florida .

appearance, we request all future communication and correspondence be directed to the undersigned 

counsel at the contact information listed below. 

Meanwhile should you require anything further please contact our offices. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

_________________________________

Kenneth J. Metzger 

Florida Bar No. 0341215  

Metzger & Associates, LLC 

1637 Metropolitan Blvd., Suite C

Tallahassee, Florida 32308 

T: (850)329-7500 / F: (850)329

kmetzger@metzgerandassociates.com

firm have been retained to 

case matter currently 

. Consistent with this 

appearance, we request all future communication and correspondence be directed to the undersigned 

_________________________________ 

1637 Metropolitan Blvd., Suite C-2 

7500 / F: (850)329-7501 

kmetzger@metzgerandassociates.com 



Paul Wand, M.D. –
Refer to original tab 32



 
CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 

 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 

 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all pages 
have been removed. 

 
SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS. 

 
456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 

furnished.— 
10)(a)All  patient  records  obtained  by  the  department  and  any  other  documents 

maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records  shall  not  be  available to  the  public  as  part  of  the  record  of  investigation for  and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 

 











James Michael Desantis, M.D.–
Refer to original tab 34







































Peter Choy, M.D. –
Refer to original tab 35



STATE OF FLORIDA
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH,
BOARD OF MEDICINE,

Petitioner,

vs. DOAH Case No. 13-4280PL
DOH Case No. 2011-11189

PETER CHOY, M.D.,

Respondent.
/

EXCEPTIONS TO RECOMMENDED ORDER

Pursuant to Rule 28-106.217, Florida Administrative Code, Respondent, Peter Choy,

M.D., (“Dr. Choy”) files the following exceptions to the Recommended Order, entered on

April 15, 2014.1

1. Respondent takes exception to the findings of fact in paragraph 9 that the identity

of the caller from Dr. Choy’s office to TG on June 19, 2008 “is immaterial” and the speculation

that the call was “most likely, to schedule an appointment for T.G., so that Dr. Choy could go

over the recent blood work and CT scan with T.G. in person.” These findings are not supported

by competent substantial evidence, and should therefore be stricken.

The only record evidence is that Dr. Choy specifically recalled making the phone call to

TG; and that Dr. Choy’s practice was to call patients himself if a test result showed something

significantly wrong. (Tr. V. I at 138, ll. 16-23; Tr. V. III at 410, ll. 10-21.) Dr. Choy also testified

that he was following up on the 2008 CT scan results, with no mention of a need to follow up on

recent blood work. (Id.) Further, the ALJ’s later finding—that Dr. Choy must have overlooked

1 References to the transcript of the hearing held on January 14 and 15, 2014, are denoted by (Tr. V.__ at ___,
ll. ___.) representing the referenced page number and lines; references to exhibits are denoted by Joint (“Jt.”),
Petitioner (“Pet.”) or Respondent (“Resp.”) (Ex. ___ at ___, ll. ___.) representing the cited exhibit number, then the
page and line number (if applicable); references to the Pleadings are denoted by the pleading title and page number.



2

the portion of the 2008 CT scan discussing the pancreatic mass—is undermined by the fact that

Dr. Choy made the call to TG on June 19th because of his practice to make personal calls in these

situations. (Tr. V. I at 138, ll. 16-23.)

2. Respondent takes exception to the finding of fact in paragraph 10 that “there is no

reliable contemporaneous record of what Dr. Choy communicated to T.G., if anything, about the

finding of a tumor in her pancreas.” This finding is not supported by competent substantial

evidence, and therefore should be stricken. First and foremost, Respondent asserts that the

standard in this proceeding is not whether Dr. Choy presented “reliable contemporaneous

evidence” of communicating the results of the 2008 CT scan to TG; instead it is whether the

Department established through the presentation of clear and convincing, competent substantial

evidence that Dr. Choy failed to inform TG of the 2008 scan results and failed to refer her to an

appropriate specialist. See Dep’t of Banking & Fin., Div. of Sec. & Investor Prot. v. Osborne

Stern & Co., 670 So. 2d 932, 933-34 (Fla. 1996) (citing Ferris v. Turlington, 510 So. 2d 292,

294-95 (Fla. 1987)) (Petitioner is required to affirmatively present competent substantial

evidence to establish a violation by the “clear and convincing” evidence standard.). Therefore, to

the extent this finding implies that Dr. Choy, instead of the Department, bears the burden of

persuasion in this proceeding, it should be stricken on that basis as well.

Additionally, this proposed finding is factually insupportable given Dr. Choy’s testimony

that he had the hardcopy of TG’s chart with him at the June 30, 2008 visit. Dr. Choy testified that

he considers the hardcopy patient file to be just as much a part of the patient’s records as the

electronic record and that he treats it as such. (Tr. V. III at 406, ll. 23-25; 407, ll. 1-3.) He wrote

on the copy of the 2008 CT scan contained within TG’s hardcopy file “possible malignant tm.

tail of pa” (possible malignant tumor tail of pancreas) just after speaking with her regarding the



3

positive CT scan results and the need for TG to follow up with a specialist. (Tr. V. III at 414, ll.

23-25; 415, ll. 1, 15-20; Jt. Ex. 2 at 2.) This constitutes “reliable contemporaneous evidence” that

Dr. Choy communicated to TG regarding the mass in her pancreas. Dr. Choy’s testimony was

further corroborated by Cristina Garcia, Dr. Choy’s office manager (who also served as records

custodian), that Dr. Choy had TG’s hardcopy file with him at TG’s visit on June 30, 2008 and

that he regularly makes notes to hardcopy versions of reports. (Tr. V. I at 135, ll. 2-15.)

Specifically, Ms. Garcia testified that Dr. Choy’s regular practice was to write notes on lab

reports, including those that had already been scanned and were placed in the patient’s hardcopy

file; and that it seemed completely normal Dr. Choy would have made the notes at issue on the

2008 CT scan. (Tr. V. I at 136, ll. 20-25; 137, ll. 1-15.) There is further no expert or fact witness

testimony that any late changes were made to TG’s hardcopy records.2

The Department also failed to allege in its Second Amended Administrative Complaint

that Dr. Choy made late changes to any records other than TG’s electronic medical records. (2d

Am. Compl. at ¶¶ 15-19.) While the Department alleges it compared versions of TG’s

electronic medical records and found discrepancies, there is no allegation that records in the

hardcopy file were later changed. (Id.) Therefore, the issue of whether Dr. Choy made changes to

TG’s hardcopy file is not properly at issue in this proceeding. See Trevisani v. Dep’t of Health,

908 So. 2d 1108, 1109 (Fla. 1st DCA 2005) (explaining that administrative complaints are

required to contain specific factual allegations to provide the licensee with notice of the alleged

acts or omissions the agency contends constitute a violation of the applicable statute).

Notwithstanding that the Department did not charge Dr. Choy with improperly making

late entries to his hardcopy medical records for TG, there is absolutely no record evidence to

2 Department expert witness, Robert Moody, only reviewed versions of Dr. Choy’s electronic medical records for
discrepancies. See Jt. Ex. 11 at 43, ll. 3-6.



4

support a finding that Dr. Choy made the aforementioned note on any other date than June 30,

2008. Unlike the electronic medical records, to which Dr. Choy freely admitted he made late

changes, and for which there is expert computer forensic analysis showing exactly which

changes were made, there is no testimony from any fact or expert witness opining that Dr. Choy

made late changes to his handwritten notes on the 2008 CT scan. (Jt. Ex. 11 at 43, ll. 3-6.)

Instead, the record evidence is that Dr. Choy only made late changes to the electronic patient

records, as he has admitted, and not to any hard copy records. (Tr. V. III at 417, ll. 8-13, 20-24.)

3. Respondent takes exception to the finding of fact in paragraph 11 that the

electronic office note “made at or around the time of the June 30, 2008, visit, is silent about the

potentially malignant tumor that had recently been seen in T.G.’s pancreas.” This finding is not

supported by competent substantial evidence, and should therefore be stricken. Specifically, the

June 30, 2008 electronic office note states “we will refer pt to GI evaluation.” (See R.O. at ¶11.)

Dr. Choy testified that he typed this note after discussing the positive CT scan results with T.G.

and advising her to follow up with a GI specialist. (Tr. V. III at 418, ll. 8-11; 419, ll. 20-25; 420,

ll. 1-2.) Thus, the electronic record in combination with Dr. Choy’s handwritten note on the 2008

CT scan adequately reflect that Dr. Choy was aware of the pancreatic mass, discussed it with

T.G., and referred her to follow up with a GI specialist.

4. Respondent takes exception to the finding of fact in paragraph 13 that, “[t]he

reference to the pancreatic tumor looks out of place, moreover, in the section of the report

discussing the pelvic scan, which did not find the mass, atop the previous notes relating to

diverticulosis, which the pelvic scan did reveal.” This finding is not supported by competent

substantial evidence, and therefore should be stricken. Specifically, there was no testimony

supporting a finding that Dr. Choy’s manner of making notes on the 2008 CT scan was in any



5

way irregular. Further, the presumption in the Recommended Order, that the reference to the

pancreatic tumor looks out of place, failed to take into consideration: 1) the fact that Dr. Choy

would not have placed a note for staff to communicate with TG regarding a pancreatic mass,

whereas staff recommending TG take Metamucil for diverticulosis would have been an

appropriate communication; (Tr. V. I at 138, ll. 16-23.); and 2) the fact that this page was

ordered as the first page in the report. (Jt. Ex. 2 at 2.)

Further, this finding is unsupported since page 2 does mention a “Large malignant tumor

mass tail of the pancreas as described” and all notes regarding findings in the report are made at

the end of the report, and not in the “section of the report discussing the pelvic scan.” (Jt. Ex. 2 at

2.) It is wholly reasonable that all notes would be combined together at the end of the combined

diagnostic report.

5. Respondent takes exception to the finding of fact in paragraph 14 that, “Dr. Choy

recorded T.G.’s various diagnoses in the electronic patient chart, making no mention of the

pancreatic mass.” This finding is not supported by competent substantial evidence, and therefore

should be stricken. Specifically, since TG had failed to follow up with a GI specialist, there was

no diagnosis regarding the pancreatic mass which should have been included in Dr. Choy’s

medical records. (Tr. V. III at 435, ll. 17-25; 436, ll. 1-14.)

6. Respondent takes exception to the finding of fact in paragraph 15, which refers to

the finding in paragraph 14 challenged above and states “[t]his pattern was repeated during the

several visits which followed . . .” This finding is not supported by competent substantial

evidence, and therefore should be stricken. Specifically, as explained in paragraph 5 above, TG’s

diagnoses automatically carried over from one visit to the next, and since TG had failed to follow

up with a GI specialist there was no diagnosis that had been made with regard to the pancreatic



6

mass, which should have been included in Dr. Choy’s records. (Tr. V. III at 435, ll. 17-25; 436,

ll. 1-14.)

7. Respondent takes exception to the finding of fact in paragraph 19, that during

TG’s July 7, 2010 visit “Dr. Choy noted Dr. Villa’s recommendation and recorded (for the first

time) a differential diagnosis of “potential malignancy.” This finding is not supported by

competent substantial evidence, and therefore should be stricken. Specifically, Respondent

incorporates and restates the entirety of Exception #2 in support of this Exception. Further, the

note for TG’s July 7, 2010 visit reads “possible malignancy,” and not “potential malignancy.”

(Jt. Ex. 1 at 726.) This note regarding “possible malignancy” is also not a diagnosis, but instead

is listed under “Assessment & Plan.” (Id.) Diagnoses for TG were listed under the “Histories &

Habits” portion of the note. (Jt. Ex. 1 at 725.)

8. Respondent takes exception to the finding of fact in paragraph 27, that there was a

“remarkable absence of any notes in the medical records pertaining to the possibility that T.G.

might have pancreatic cancer as stated in the radiologist’s report interpreting the June 2008 CT

scan.” This finding is not supported by competent substantial evidence, and therefore should be

stricken. Specifically, Respondent incorporates and restates the entirety of Exception #2 in

support of this Exception.

9. Respondent takes exception to the finding of fact in paragraph 27, that: “The

inevitable inference is that Dr. Choy knew the original records would be persuasive, if not

conclusive, evidence of his failure to inform T.G. of her potentially fatal condition, in violation

of the standard of care, so he secretly (or so he thought) doctored the records to turn them into

evidence that he had satisfied the standard of care.” This finding is not supported by competent

substantial evidence, and therefore should be stricken.



7

Specifically, an “inference” is insufficient to satisfy the strict evidentiary requirement in

a disciplinary proceeding—there must be some actual competent substantial evidence

constituting proof of the alleged violation. See State v. Norris, 168 So. 2d 541, 543 (Fla. 1964)

(stating that “mere suspicion is insufficient. The proof should be clear and convincing.”);

Tenbroeck v. Castor, 640 So. 2d 164, 167 (Fla. 1st DCA 1994) (holding that while the facts may

raise a suspicion of wrongdoing, speculation, surmise and suspicion cannot form the basis of

disciplinary action against a professional’s license); Dep’t of Bus. & Prof’l Reg., Div. of Pari-

Mutuel Wagering v. Charles J. Ashmore, III, 2008 WL 572814, *5, DOAH Case No. 07-4772PL

(Rec. Order Fla. Div. of Admin. Hrg’s Feb. 29, 2008) (citations omitted) (determining that

suspicious behavior cannot serve as a substitute for the clear and convincing evidence of an

actual violation, which is required when taking disciplinary action against a licensee). There is

no legal authority under which an inference can be substituted for record evidence that itself

clearly and convincingly establishes the Department’s allegation against a licensee.

10. Respondent takes exception to the finding of fact in paragraph 29, that: “The

alterations are clear and convincing proof of the material fact that Dr. Choy did not tell T.G. that

the June 19, 2008, CT scan report stated she had a ‘[l]arge malignant tumor mass’ in her

pancreas, for a simple reason: he was unaware that a tumor mass was described in the report.”

This finding is not supported by competent substantial evidence, and should therefore be

stricken.

Specifically, the alterations in and of themselves cannot constitute proof of medical

malpractice. See Barr v. Dep’t of Health, Bd. of Dentistry, 954 So. 2d 668, 669 (Fla. 1st DCA

2007) (holding that a finding of improper recordkeeping cannot rise to a standard of care



8

violation). While the alterations can go to support a recordkeeping violation, there must be some

additional separate proof to establish the distinct claim of medical malpractice. Id.

Again, this finding is impermissibly based on an “inference” of further wrongdoing by

virtue of Dr. Choy’s admission that he made late entries to TG’s records. The Recommended

Order references no independent clear and convincing evidence to establish the reason for Dr.

Choy’s late entries was for any other reason than as testified by Dr. Choy—to make the records

more complete for review by the attorney for TG’s family. Nowhere on the record is there

evidence that Dr. Choy made false entries to TG’s records. Dr. Choy has consistently testified

that the entries, as revised, represent his best recollection of TG’s treatment and that other

unchanged observations in the records—such as TG’s weight loss, lab reports and other

symptoms are consistent with his updates to these records. (Tr. V. II at 340, ll. 11-18; 341, ll. 13-

17; Tr. V. III at 459, ll. 1-22.)

This finding is further undermined by the fact that while the ALJ concluded that TG was

informed of the diverticulosis revealed by the 2008 scan (Rec. Order at ¶ 9), there is no

discussion of diverticulosis in Dr. Choy’s original electronic records. Should the conclusion then

be that TG was not informed of either condition since there is no specific notation in the

electronic office notes regarding diverticulosis? This quandary, however, is easily resolved by

Dr. Choy’s testimony that he considers the hardcopy test results—such as the copy of TG’s 2008

CT scan containing his handwritten notes—to be a part of the medical record. (Tr. V. III at 406,

ll. 23-25; 407, ll. 1-3.) Dr. Choy documented both the diverticulosis and possible pancreatic

cancer in the hardcopy file. (Jt. Ex. 2 at 2. ) There is no logical reason to believe Dr. Choy only

saw the diverticulosis and overlooked the very serious findings of a pancreatic mass in the same

report. The more logical conclusion is that Dr. Choy did not initially handwrite his observation



9

of the pancreatic mass on the 2008 CT scan to prevent any confusion regarding whether staff

processing the scan should communicate these results to TG. As Dr. Choy testified, he would not

have wanted such serious information communicated over the phone to TG given her depressed

mental state. (Tr. V. III at 411, ll. 5-17.)

The ALJ’s decision to discredit Dr. Choy’s testimony is no substitute for the affirmative

evidence the Department was required present in proving a claim of medical malpractice. In sum,

inference is insufficient to support a finding of fact in a disciplinary proceeding—there must be

some actual competent substantial evidence constituting proof of the alleged violation. See State

v. Norris, 168 So. 2d 541, 543 (Fla. 1964) (stating that “mere suspicion is insufficient. The proof

should be clear and convincing.”); Tenbroeck v. Castor, 640 So. 2d 164, 167 (Fla. 1st DCA

1994) (holding that while the facts may raise a suspicion of wrongdoing, speculation, surmise

and suspicion cannot form the basis of disciplinary action against a professional’s license); Dep’t

of Bus. & Prof’l Reg., Div. of Pari-Mutuel Wagering v. Charles J. Ashmore, III, 2008 WL

572814, *5, DOAH Case No. 07-4772PL (Rec. Order Fla. Div. of Admin. Hrg’s Feb. 29, 2008)

(citations omitted) (determining that suspicious behavior cannot serve as a substitute for the clear

and convincing evidence of an actual violation, which is required when taking disciplinary action

against a licensee).

11. Respondent takes exception to the last four sentences in paragraph 29 as not

constituting findings of fact, but instead they are non-factual commentary regarding the ALJ’s

speculation as to why Dr. Choy amended certain of TG’s records in August of 2010. For this

reason, these statements should be stricken. Should this commentary be treated as findings of

fact, however, Respondent states that they are not supported by competent substantial evidence,

and should be stricken for this reason. Specifically, the ALJ’s speculation that Dr. Choy did not



10

know about the mass in TG’s pancreas until sometime around August 2010 is simply not

supported by any facts in the record. Dr. Choy has consistently testified that he reviewed the

2008 CT scan showing the mass in TG’s pancreas and communicated with TG regarding the

mass and the need to follow up with a specialist shortly after receiving the scan in June of 2008.

(Tr. V. III at 418, ll. 1-11.) When TG took an extended leave of absence from Dr. Choy’s office

over the course of approximately thirteen months, Dr. Choy forgot about the 2008 CT scan

results until he again viewed them at Mercy Hospital in July of 2010. (Tr. V. III at 448, ll. 6-22.)

While the ALJ may choose to discredit this testimony, there still must be actual competent

substantial evidence proffered by the Department to support a finding that Dr. Choy did not

know about the existence of a mass in TG’s pancreas until sometime in 2010. See State v.

Norris, 168 So. 2d 541, 543 (Fla. 1964) (stating that “mere suspicion is insufficient. The proof

should be clear and convincing.”); Tenbroeck v. Castor, 640 So. 2d 164, 167 (Fla. 1st DCA

1994) (holding that while the facts may raise a suspicion of wrongdoing, speculation, surmise

and suspicion cannot form the basis of disciplinary action against a professional’s license); Dep’t

of Bus. & Prof’l Reg., Div. of Pari-Mutuel Wagering v. Charles J. Ashmore, III, 2008 WL

572814, *5, DOAH Case No. 07-4772PL (Rec. Order Fla. Div. of Admin. Hrg’s Feb. 29, 2008)

(citations omitted) (determining that suspicious behavior cannot serve as a substitute for the clear

and convincing evidence of an actual violation, which is required when taking disciplinary action

against a licensee).

12. Respondent takes exception to the finding of fact in paragraph 31, that: “ . . .

T.G.’s medical records looked fine to Dr. Choy when he originally wrote them because, when he

originally wrote them, he was unaware that the 2008 CT scan report described a tumor mass in

T.G.’s pancreas.” This finding is not supported by competent substantial evidence, and therefore



11

should be stricken. Specifically, Respondent incorporates and restates the entirety of Exception

#2 in support of this Exception. Further, there is absolutely no record evidence to support a

finding that Dr. Choy did not know about the tumor mass described in the 2008 CT scan report.

In fact, all record evidence is to the contrary—that Dr. Choy saw the mass; advised TG of the

positive findings; and referred her to a G.I. specialist.

13. Respondent takes exception to the finding of fact in paragraph 31, that: “Only

later, after learning the full contents of the 2008 CT scan report, did the incriminating nature of

the contemporaneous medical records become clear to Dr. Choy, who then, in his panic, made

the costly mistake of tampering with the evidence.” This finding is not supported by competent

substantial evidence, and therefore should be stricken. Specifically, Respondent incorporates and

restates the entirety of Exception #2 in support of this Exception. Further, there is absolutely no

record evidence to support a finding that Dr. Choy did not know about the tumor mass described

in the 2008 CT scan report. In fact, all record evidence is to the contrary—that Dr. Choy saw the

mass; advised TG of the positive findings; and referred her to a G.I. specialist.

14. Respondent takes exception to the findings of fact in paragraph 32 that Dr. Choy

failed to take notice of the critical finding regarding TG’s pancreas in the 2008 CT scan report;

and that he “did not tell T.G. about the pancreatic mass because he did not know of its

existence.” This finding is not supported by competent substantial evidence, and therefore

should be stricken. Specifically, Respondent incorporates and restates the entirety of Exception

#2 in support of this Exception. Further, there is absolutely no record evidence to support a

finding that Dr. Choy did not know about the tumor mass described in the 2008 CT scan report.

In fact, all record evidence is to the contrary—that Dr. Choy saw the mass; advised TG of the

positive findings; and referred her to a G.I. specialist.



12

15. Respondent takes exception to the findings of fact in paragraph 33 that: “Being

unaware of the finding regarding a pancreatic mass, Dr. Choy did neither [notify TG of the 2008

CT scan results or refer her to an appropriate specialist for evaluation and treatment of the

pancreatic mass].” These findings are not supported by competent substantial evidence, and

therefore should be stricken. Specifically, Respondent incorporates and restates the entirety of

Exception #2 in support of this Exception. Further, there is absolutely no record evidence to

support a finding that Dr. Choy did not know about the tumor mass described in the 2008 CT

scan report. In fact, all record evidence is to the contrary—that Dr. Choy saw the mass; advised

TG of the positive findings; and referred her to a G.I. specialist.

16. Respondent takes exception to the finding of fact in paragraph 37 that Dr. Choy

provided “fabricated” versions of TG’s electronic medical records to the Department in August

2011. This finding is not supported by competent substantial evidence, and therefore should be

stricken. Specifically, while Dr. Choy did make changes to TG’s records in August of 2010, the

changes were not “fabrications” or false, but instead were changes based upon Dr. Choy’s best

recollection and observations he made earlier in TG’s records. (Tr. V. II at 340, ll. 11-18; 341, ll.

13-17; Tr. V. III at 459, ll. 1-22.)

17. Respondent takes exception to the finding of fact in paragraph 39 that: “The

Department has established by clear and convincing evidence that Dr. Choy made deceptive,

untrue, or fraudulent representations in the practice of medicine[; and that] Dr. Choy is therefore

guilty of the offense defined in section 458.331(1)(k), Florida Statutes.” This finding is not

supported by competent substantial evidence, and therefore should be stricken. Specifically,

other than proving Dr. Choy improperly made late changes to TG’s electronic medical records

without properly documenting the changes—a fact which Dr. Choy has consistently conceded—



13

the Department offered no evidence that Dr. Choy made any deceptive, untrue, or fraudulent

representations in the practice of medicine. The only evidence is that while Dr. Choy failed to

comply with the technical requirements for making late amendments to patient records, all of the

changes he made were consistent with his existing records and best recollection. (Tr. V. II at

340, ll. 11-18; 341, ll. 13-17; Tr. V. III at 459, ll. 1-22.)

18. Respondent takes exception to the finding of fact in paragraph 39 that: “[Dr.

Choy] deliberately alter[ed] T.G.’s medical records with the intention of fabricating evidence to

support his claim that he had timely informed T.G. about the mass in her pancreas, when in fact

the authentic, contemporaneous records make no mention of the pancreatic mass.” This finding

is not supported by competent substantial evidence, and therefore should be stricken.

Specifically, Respondent incorporates and restates the entirety of Exception #2 in support

of this Exception. Further, there is no record evidence to support a finding that Dr. Choy

“fabricated” evidence. As discussed above, the fact that Dr. Choy may be guilty of a records

violation does not and of itself serve as proof that the changes he made to TG’s records were

false. See Dep’t of Bus. & Prof’l Reg., Div. of Pari-Mutuel Wagering v. Charles J. Ashmore, III,

2008 WL 572814, *5, DOAH Case No. 07-4772PL (Rec. Order Fla. Div. of Admin. Hrg’s Feb.

29, 2008) (citations omitted) (determining that suspicious behavior cannot serve as a substitute

for the clear and convincing evidence of an actual violation, which is required when taking

disciplinary action against a licensee). Therefore, there is no record evidence to support a finding

that Dr. Choy failed to inform TG about the mass in her pancreas.

19. Respondent takes exception to the finding of fact in paragraph 41 that: “The

Department has established by clear and convincing evidence that Dr. Choy committed medical

malpractice in his treatment of T.G., by failing to timely inform her of the pancreatic mass seen



14

in the CT scan in June 2008, and by failing to timely refer T.G. to a specialist for further

investigation of the mass[; therefore] Dr. Choy is guilty of the offense defined in section

458.331(1)(t)1.” This finding is not supported by competent substantial evidence, and therefore

should be stricken.

Specifically, there is competent substantial evidence that Dr. Choy did timely inform TG

of the pancreatic mass shown on the 2008 CT scan and that he timely referred her to a specialist

for further investigation of the mass as documented in Dr. Choy’s notes on the hardcopy of TG’s

patient file. Respondent incorporates and restates the entirety of Exception #2 in support of this

Exception. Conversely, there is no testimony or other documentary evidence to support the

Department’s theory that Dr. Choy committed medical malpractice. See State v. Norris, 168 So.

2d 541, 543 (Fla. 1964) (stating that “mere suspicion is insufficient. The proof should be clear

and convincing.”); Tenbroeck v. Castor, 640 So. 2d 164, 167 (Fla. 1st DCA 1994) (holding that

while the facts may raise a suspicion of wrongdoing, speculation, surmise and suspicion cannot

form the basis of disciplinary action against a professional’s license); Dep’t of Bus. & Prof’l

Reg., Div. of Pari-Mutuel Wagering v. Charles J. Ashmore, III, 2008 WL 572814, *5, DOAH

Case No. 07-4772PL (Rec. Order Fla. Div. of Admin. Hrg’s Feb. 29, 2008) (citations omitted)

(determining that suspicious behavior cannot serve as a substitute for the clear and convincing

evidence of an actual violation, which is required when taking disciplinary action against a

licensee).

20. Respondent takes exception to the finding of fact in paragraph 42 that: “Dr. Choy

knowingly produced T.G.’s revised medical records to the Department in August 2011 without

disclosing that the records were not what they purported to be[; and therefore] Dr. Choy is guilty



15

of the offense defined in section 458.331(1)(gg).” This finding is not supported by competent

substantial evidence, and therefore it should be stricken.

Specifically, Investigator Radin testified that Dr. Choy explained he had made changes to

TG’s record at the earliest possible opportunity when he met with him on August 23, 2011. (Tr.

V. I at 96, ll. 20-25; 97, ll. 1-2, 12-16.) Thus, Dr. Choy did not fail to disclose the fact that he had

made late changes to TG’s records. This finding should also be stricken to the extent that it is

based upon a presumption that Dr. Choy’s updated records for TG were in some way inaccurate

or false. Respondent restates and fully incorporates Exceptions 2 and 10 in support of this

Exception to establish that Dr. Choy did not provide false or misleading information in his

updated records for TG.

21. Respondent takes exception to the finding of fact in paragraph 43 that: “Dr. Choy

was reasonably cooperative throughout the investigation, during the course of which, however,

he committed the additional offense of concealing a material fact from the Department . . .” This

finding is not supported by competent substantial evidence, and therefore should be stricken.

Specifically, there is no record evidence that Dr. Choy knowingly concealed any material

fact from the Department during the course of its investigation. For the Department to prove that

Dr. Choy committed a violation of section 458.331(1)(k), Florida Statutes, it “must be shown

that the Respondent intentionally testified to a falsehood.” Agency for Health Care Admin., Bd.

of Medicine v. Joseph Ovadia, M.D., 1996 WL 1059850, *3, DOAH Case No. 95-0322 (Fla.

Div. Admin. Hrgs. Rec. Order, June 10. 1996) (emphasis added); cf. Gentry v. Dep’t of Prof’l &

Occupational Reg., State Bd. of Medical Examiners, 293 So. 2d 95 (Fla. 1st DCA 1974) (holding

that to prove a violation of “[m]aking misleading, deceptive and untrue representations in the



16

practice of medicine[;]” there must be evidence that the subject representations were willfully

made).

When Investigator Radin first interviewed Dr. Choy in August of 2011, Dr. Choy

explained that he did not know how many notes in TG’s chart he had changed. (Tr. V. I at 99, ll.

14-19.) During the course of discovery in this proceeding, the Department asked Dr. Choy

whether he had made other changes to TG’s records aside from those initially identified by Mr.

Radin. Dr. Choy, having no independent recollection of the specific changes, reviewed the

printouts of TG’s records from 2010, which only covered office visits from January 19, 2009

forward with those printouts from 2011, and was with the assistance of counsel was unable to

identify any additional changes. (Tr. V. III at 461, ll. 3-23; Jt. Ex. 14 at 218, ll. 19-25; 219, ll. 1-

23.) Since neither the Department nor Dr. Choy could access a copy of TG’s electronic records

for office visits prior to January 19, 2009, in the form they existed prior to Dr. Choy making

changes to the records in August of 2010, the Department enlisted forensic computer expert,

Robert Moody. (Jt. Ex. 12.) In August 2013, Mr. Moody provided the Department with a third

set of TG’s electronic medical records obtained by extracting a back-up of documents done in

April 2010. (Jt. Pre-Hrg. Stip.; Jt. Ex. 12; Jt. Ex. 11 at 15, ll. 10-14.)

Once the parties were able to compare the full set of TG’s records as they existed on

April 2010, additional changes were identified for office visit records on June 30, 2008 and

September 3, 2008. (Jt. Pre-Hrg. Stip.) Dr. Choy did not dispute that these were additional

changes he had made to TG’s medical records in August of 2010, but like the Department, he

was unable to identify the changes until Mr. Moody provided the parties with the archived

records from April 2010. (Tr. V. III at 461, ll. 3-23; 462, ll. 1-2; Jt. Ex. 14 at 218, ll. 19-25; 219,

ll. 1-23.) Therefore, there is no evidence that Dr. Choy knowingly or intentionally concealed a



17

material fact from the Department since he had no way of knowing the exact changes made to

TG’s records over three years earlier.

22. Respondent takes exception to the conclusion of law in paragraph 50, which states

that, “the Department established Dr. Choy’s guilt by clear and convincing evidence as to all of

the charges except the allegation that he interfered with an investigation or disciplinary

proceeding.” This conclusion of law is legally insufficient, in conflict with applicable decisional

law, and not based upon competent substantial evidence in the record.

Specifically, as detailed in the Exceptions above, there is no competent substantial

evidence to support a conclusion that Dr. Choy is guilty of any violation other than a failure to

properly date and time late changes he made to TG’s electronic medical records under section

458.331(1)(m), Florida Statutes, and rule 64B8-9.003, Florida Administrative Code. Respondent

further incorporates and restates Exceptions 2, 10 and 21 in their entireties in support of this

Exception.

23. Respondent takes exception to the conclusion of law in paragraph 51, which states

that Dr. Choy “knowingly furnished these false records to the Department without disclosing that

he had tampered with them so as to take advantage of the contemporaneous character which

gives such documents evidentiary value . . .” This conclusion of law is legally insufficient and

not based upon competent substantial evidence in the record.

Specifically, Investigator Radin testified that Dr. Choy explained he had made changes to

TG’s record at the earliest possible opportunity when he met with on August 23, 2011. (Tr. V. I

at 96, ll. 20-25; 97, ll. 1-2, 12-16.) Further, there is no evidence that the records Dr. Choy

produced to the Department were “false.”



18

24. Respondent takes exception to the conclusion of law in paragraph 51, which

states:

when a party is found to have knowingly altered or fabricated documents to create
a false basis for his legal position, the inevitable conclusion is that he has
something to hide and is conscious of guilt. Tramel v. Bass, 672 So. 2d 78, 85 n. 7
(Fla. 1st DCA 1996), rev. denied, 680 So. 2d 426 (Fla. 1996) (citing Warner
Barnes & Co. v. Kokosai Kisen Kabushiki Kaisha, 102 F. 2d 450, 453 (2d Cir.),
modified, 103 F. 2d 430 (2d Cir. 1939)); see also Knight Ridder v. Dade Aviation
Consultants, 808 So. 2d 1268, 1270 (Fla. 3d DCA 2002) (attempts to create false
basis for legal position provide affirmative evidence of actual criminal
responsibility); Walker v. State, 495 So. 2d 1240, 1241 (Fla. 5th DCA 1986)
(false exculpatory statements are admissible as substantive evidence tending to
affirmatively show consciousness of guilt).

This conclusion of law is legally insufficient, and inconsistent with decisional law requiring the

Petitioner to affirmatively present competent substantial evidence to establish a violation by the

“clear and convincing” evidence standard. See Dep’t of Banking & Fin., Div. of Sec. & Investor

Prot. v. Osborne Stern & Co., 670 So. 2d 932, 933-34 (Fla. 1996) (citing Ferris v. Turlington,

510 So. 2d 292, 294-95 (Fla. 1987)).

First, in all of the cases cited in paragraph 51, there was clear proof that the defending

party had fabricated evidence or presented a false basis to support its defense. Those facts were

not in question. To the contrary, here, Dr. Choy has clearly and consistently denied that he made

false changes to TG’s medical records, and there has been no competent substantial evidence

presented by the Department to establish the falsity of the changed records. To give weight to

this line of cases would impermissibly base a presumption upon a presumption to establish a

material fact. Further, it is the actual treatment of a patient which must be analyzed, and not

merely the Respondent’s failure to properly document the actions he took on the patient’s chart,

in determining whether there is a malpractice violation. See Barr v. Dep’t of Health, Bd. of

Dentistry, 954 So. 2d 668, 669 (Fla. 1st DCA 2007) (holding that “particularly egregious record



19

keeping violations” cannot rise to the level of a “standard of care” violation because to equate the

two would render the subsection establishing a separate standard of care violation meaningless).

There is simply no sound legal or factual foundation upon which the presumption of

malpractice can be inferred from a records violation in a disciplinary proceeding, particularly

where the physician’s license is at stake. See State v. Norris, 168 So. 2d 541, 543 (Fla. 1964)

(stating that “mere suspicion is insufficient. The proof should be clear and convincing.”);

Tenbroeck v. Castor, 640 So. 2d 164, 167 (Fla. 1st DCA 1994) (holding that while the facts may

raise a suspicion of wrongdoing, speculation, surmise and suspicion cannot form the basis of

disciplinary action against a professional’s license); Dep’t of Bus. & Prof’l Reg., Div. of Pari-

Mutuel Wagering v. Charles J. Ashmore, III, 2008 WL 572814, *5, DOAH Case No. 07-4772PL

(Rec. Order Fla. Div. of Admin. Hrg’s Feb. 29, 2008) (citations omitted) (determining that

suspicious behavior cannot serve as a substitute for the clear and convincing evidence of an

actual violation, which is required when taking disciplinary action against a licensee).

Further, the cases cited in paragraph 51, in support of the conclusion that malpractice can

be presumed based on a finding of false information in medical records, are inapplicable to a

license disciplinary proceeding under Chapter 120, Florida Statutes, and in fact none of the cases

deal with license discipline. For a petitioner to prove a license violation, which would

potentially result in suspension or revocation of the respondent’s license, the petitioner must put

on affirmative evidence establishing each of the elements of an alleged violation and is not

entitled to rely upon any automatic presumptions of guilt. Simply because the ALJ did not credit

Dr. Choy’s testimony that the changes he made to TG’s records were accurate, this alone cannot

substitute for the Department’s required burden to independently prove the changes were false.

See Bowling v. Dep’t of Ins., 394 So. 2d 165, 174-75 (Fla. 1st DCA 1981) (“A witness who is



20

found to be untruthful gives the trier of facts an additional reason to believe substantial evidence

to the contrary, but in our heritage the accused’s unbelievable denial of an essential element in

the accusation does not prove the accusation.”). The conclusion of law is not supported by

competent substantial evidence in the record since there is no evidence that the changes Dr. Choy

made to TG’s medical records are false. The only evidence adduced at hearing is that Dr. Choy

made changes to TG’s records based upon his prior observations and recollection of her

treatment. (Tr. V. II at 340, ll. 11-18; 341, ll. 13-17; Tr. V. III at 459, ll. 1-22.)

25. Respondent takes exception to the conclusion of law in paragraph 57, which

states: “The undersigned does not find cause to deviate from the guidelines and therefore

recommends that the Board of Medicine impose a penalty that falls within the recommended

ranges.” This conclusion of law is legally insufficient and contrary to rule 64B8-8.001(3), which

states that the “Board shall consider” evidence of mitigating factors in formulating an

appropriate penalty. Specifically, the proposed penalty against Dr. Choy of revocation and a

$4,000 fine should be mitigated for the following reasons as required under rule 64B8-8.001(3),

and as established by the record evidence: Dr. Choy’s failure to properly date, time and

designate late entries as such did not expose TG to injury; Dr. Choy was not practicing under any

legal restraints; Dr. Choy only made changes to TG’s records on a single occasion; Dr. Choy has

never committed a similar offense; Dr. Choy has been in practice nearly forty years and has

never been disciplined relating to the practice of medicine; and Dr. Choy did not realize any

pecuniary benefit or gain in connection with the offense.

26. Respondent takes exception to the conclusion of law in paragraph 58, which

states: “revocation is appropriate under the facts and circumstances of this case . . .” This

conclusion of law should be rejected as lacking in competent substantial evidence based upon the



21

foregoing exceptions and that there is insufficient evidence to substantiate any of the

Department’s allegations with the exception of a records violation under section 458.331(m),

Florida Statutes, and rule 64B8-9.003, Florida Administrative Code. The Board should therefore

reduce the recommended penalty commensurate with modifications to the Recommended Order.

WHEREFORE, Respondent respectfully requests that the foregoing Exceptions to the

Recommended Order be granted and that modifications to the Findings of Fact, Conclusions of

Law, and Recommended Penalty of the Administrative Law Judge be made in accordance with

the arguments herein.



22
\265143\1 - # 463352 v1

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing has been furnished by

electronic delivery this 30th day of April, 2014 to:

Daniel Hernandez, Deputy General Counsel
R. Shaffer Claridge, Assistant General Counsel
Office of the General Counsel, Prosecution Services Unit
Florida Department of Health
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C-65
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265
Email: Daniel.Hernandez@flhealth.gov; Shaffer.Claridge@flhealth.gov
Secondary Email: Berita.Pope@flhealth.gov; Pam.Powell@flhealth.gov

/s/ Amy W. Schrader
Amy W. Schrader (Fla. Bar. No: 621358)
Timothy M. Cerio (Fla. Bar No. 0076589)
GrayRobinson, P.A.
301 S. Bronough Street, Suite 600 (32301)
Post Office Box 11189
Tallahassee, FL 32302-3189
Telephone: 850-577-9090
Facsimile: 850-577-3311
Email: aschrader@gray-robinson.com

tim.cerio@gray-robinson.com
and
Jay A. Ziskind (Fla. Bar No: 397199)
Jay A. Ziskind, P.A.
3471 Main Highway, No. 517
Miami, Florida 33133
Telephone: 305-753-5990
Facsimile: 305-445-2008
E-Mail: jaz@ziskindlaw.com
Counsel for Respondent, Peter Choy, M.D.

mailto:Daniel.Hernandez@flhealth.gov
mailto:Shaffer.Claridge@flahealth.gov
mailto:Berita.Pope@flhealth.gov
mailto:Pam.Powell@flhealth.gov
mailto:aschrader@gray-robinson.com
mailto:tim.cerio@gray-robinson.com
mailto:jaz@ziskindlaw.com


























































FILED 
STATE OF FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
BOARD OF MEDICINE 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
DEPUTY CLERK 

CLERK:ek)CistO 

DATE MA C  DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 
Petitioner, 

v. 	 DOH CASE NO. 2011-11189 

PETER V. CHOY, M.D., 
Respondent. 

PETITIONER'S RESPONSE TO RESPONDENT'S 
MOTION FOR CONTINUANCE  

Petitioner opposes Respondent's Motion for Continuance and states: 

1. As the sole ground for his motion to continue the previously scheduled 

hearing of this matter before the Board of Medicine, Respondent states that his 

attorney, Ms. Schrader, will be unavailable to attend the Board's hearing on June 6, 

2014. 

2. In addition to Ms. Schrader, Respondent is represented by two other 

attorneys in this matter, each of whom has prior experience appearing before 

regulatory boards and is highly-regarded as a litigator and advocate. 

3. As least one of Respondent's other attorneys has indicated he is available 

to attend the hearing on June 6, 2014. The other attorney has not indicated he cannot 

be available on the day of the hearing and, therefore, presumably is also available to 

attend. 

4. Additionally, Respondent has not indicated he cannot be available to 

attend the June 6, 2014. 

1 



Respondent's Motion for Continuance be denied. 

Respectfully submitted this 	day of 21/  

--dfrer lel He 	irar  
Deputy General Couns 
DOH Prosecution Servi es Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
Florida Bar # 176834 
850-245-4444, ext. 4956 
850-245-4662 FAX 
E-Mail: Daniel.hernandezflhealth.gov  

14 

5. 	Because Respondent is available to attend the June 6, 2014, hearing and 

will be adequately represented at the hearing by at least one of his three attorneys, 

Respondent's Motion should be denied. 

WHEREFORE, Petitioner Department of Health respectfully requests that 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing was furnished 
via electronic mail to: Crystal A. Sanford, crystal.sanfordflhealth.gov., Amy W. 
Schrader, Esquire, amy.schraderCagray-robinson.com; Jay Ziskind, Esquire, 
'az 	kin law em; and Tim Cerio, Esquire, tim.cerio • Air. -reb'rrsoi.co 	0( this 

ay of 	, 2014. 

eputy General Co nsel 
Ira -I - - nTiferr  
• 

2 



From: Dudley, Allison M 
Sent: Thursday, May 15, 2014 4:45 PM 
To: Amy Wilmot Schrader (aschrader@gray-robinson.com) 
Cc: Sanford, Crystal; Hernandez, Daniel 
Subject: Motion for Continuance of Peter Choy, M.D. 
 
Ms. Schrader, 
 
We have consulted with our lawyer, Ed Tellechea and he has advised that 
the Recommended Order  
should be placed as the last case on the agenda.  If you are not present 
at the time the case is called, the  
Board will address your Motion for Continuance at that time.   
 
Sincerely,  
 
Allison M. Dudley, J.D. 
Executive Director | Florida Board of Medicine 
Department of Health | Division of Medical Quality Assurance 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin 03 | Tallahassee, Florida 32399 
Phone: (850) 245-4130 | Fax: (850) 412-1260 
New Website: www.flboardofmedicine.gov 
Twitter: www.twitter.com/FLBoardofMed 
  
Attention Health Care Practitioners: There have been changes to the 
license renewal process.  To learn more visit  
www.flhealthsource.com. For questions, contact the Florida Department of 
Health toll-free at (855) 410-3344 or email us at  
MQAReportCE@flhealth.gov  
  
Mission: To protect, promote and improve the health of all people in 
Florida through integrated state, county, and community efforts. 
Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation. 
Purpose: To protect the public through health care licensure, enforcement 
and information. 
Focus: To be the nation's leader in quality health care regulation.  
Values: I.C.A.R.E. (Innovation, Collaboration, Accountability, 
Responsiveness, Excellence) 
PLEASE NOTE: Florida has a very broad public records law. Most written 
communications to or from State officials regarding State business  
are public records available to the public and media upon request. Your 
email communications may therefore be subject to public disclosure. 
 
 



Richard B. Karsh, M.D. – 
Refer to original tab 38 





Kwame Asante-Nkansa, M.D. –
Refer to original tab 39 





Society for Clinical and Medical Hair 
Removal, Inc. –

Refer to original tab 43



Petition for Declaratory StatementRequest for Variance - SCMHR  - Refer to tab 43
 From: Jon Pellett <JPellett@barrmurman.com>
 Sent: Monday, May 12, 2014 8:43 AM

 To: Dudley, Allison M; Hall, Allen; Sanford, Crystal; King, Anna; 
Ed.Tellechea@myfloridalegal.com; 'Marlene Stern'

 Cc: Pat Cunningham
 Subject: Supporting information - Petition for Declaratory Statement/Request 

for 
Variance - SCMHR - June 6, 2014 meeting 

 Signed By: jpellett@barrmurman.com

Below is additional supporting information to be considered with the request for 
variance and 
request for declaratory statement. If possible, please include with the materials 
being 
considered at the June 6, 2014 Board of Medicine meeting. 

Basic statement about the Society for Clinical and Medical Hair Removal, Inc. 
(SCMHR):

Mission Statement:

The mission of the Society for Clinical and Medical Hair Removal, Inc. (SCMHR) is to

benefit consumers of our services by:
 * Promoting professional integrity and confidence
 * Ensuring theoretical and technical competency
 * Maintaining ongoing effectiveness
 * Encouraging cohesiveness through uniform educational standards 
 * Investigating and integrating new technology

SCMHR Offers:

Continuing Education (Available to members and non-members)
 * Live Webinars –– get your live continuing education from the comfort of your

home or office
 * Home Study Library –– Over 50 web-based and paper titles
 * Professional Hair Removal Conference –– Ongoing sponsor of this event, 

geared 
toward electrologists and laser hair removal professionals
Certification Opportunities for electrologists and other professionals providing 
hair 
removal or reduction services: 

 * Certified Clinical Electrologist   (CCE)                         
(Electrology certification)

 * Certified Medical Electrologist (CME)                          (Electrology 
certification 
regarding use of laser and light based devices)(CCE is a prerequisite to CME)
Pass/Fail rates for certification examination (CCE/CME): 

 * CME:
 * Jan., 2011 through Oct., 2013
 * N = 541  Pass = 472 (87.2%)   Fail = 69 (12.8%)

 * CCE:
 * Dec., 2010 through Oct., 2013
 * N = 610   Pass = 514 (84.3%)  Fail = 96 (15.7%)

Additional certifications available from SCMHR
 * Certified Laser Hair Removal Professional®
 * Certified Pulsed Light Hair Removal Professional

Membership Benefits (Separate from certification)
 * Member Discounts on Webinars and Home Studies

Page 1



Petition for Declaratory StatementRequest for Variance - SCMHR  - Refer to tab 43
 * Member Discounts on Certification Exams
 * A free copy of "Infection Control and Sterilization for Electrology and 

Laser Hair 
Removal"

 * Members-Only Section of the SCMHR Website
 * CEU tracking for Recertification Requirements

 
/s/Jon M. Pellett, Of Counsel   
Barr, Murman, & Tonelli, P.A. 
201 East Kennedy Blvd. Suite 1700  
Tampa, Florida 33602  
Tele: (813) 223-3951 Fax: (813) 229-2254; 
Email: jpellett@barrmurman.com 
Email2: pcunningham@barrmurman.com  
Website: www.barrmurman.com 
NOTICE: This e-mail message and any attachment to this e-mail message contains 
confidential 
information that may be legally privileged. If you are not the intended recipient, 
pursuant to the Electronic 
Communications Privacy Act (ECPA), you must not review, retransmit, convert to hard 
copy, copy, use or 
disseminate this e-mail or any attachments to it. If you have received this e-mail 
in error, please notify us 
immediately by return e-mail or by telephone at 813-223-3951 and delete this 
message. Please note that 
if this e-mail message contains a forwarded message or is a reply to a prior 
message, some or all of the 
contents of this message or any attachments may not have been produced by Barr, 
Murman, Tonelli, et. 
al. 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
----  
Please be advised that e-mail messages cannot be guaranteed to be secure or 
error-free as transmitted 
information can be intercepted, corrupted, lost, destroyed, arrive late or 
incomplete, or contain viruses. 
Barr, Murman, Tonelli, et. al. therefore does not accept liability for any error or 
omissions in the contents 
of this message which arise as a result of e-mail transmission. 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
----  
IRS "Circular 230" Disclosure: Please note that the views expressed herein or in any
attachments 
hereto are not intended to constitute a "reliance opinion" under applicable Treasury
Regulations, and 
accordingly are not intended or written to be used, and may not be used or relied 
upon, for the purpose of 
(i) avoiding tax-related penalties that may be imposed by the Internal Revenue 
Service, or (ii) promoting, 
marketing or recommending to another party any tax-related matters addressed herein.
Consultation with 
a qualified tax representative is recommended. 
 

Page 2



Robert D. Maresh, M.D. –
Refer to original tab 59 



 
CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 

 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 

 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all pages 
have been removed. 

 
SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS. 

 
456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 

furnished.— 
10)(a)All  patient  records  obtained  by  the  department  and  any  other  documents 

maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records  shall  not  be  available to  the  public  as  part  of  the  record  of  investigation for  and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 

 



Minutes 
Florida Board of Medicine 

Credentials Committee Meeting 
Hyatt Regency Jacksonville Riverfront 

225 East Coastline Drive 
Jacksonville, FL 32202 

904-360-8656 
April 12, 2012 

9:00 a.m. 
 

EXCERPT OF MEETING MINUTES 
 
Tab 11 Robert David Maresh, M.D. – Endorsement 
Positive responses to questions on the licensure application. 
 
Represented by Allen Grossman, Esq. 
Judy Rivenbark, M.D., Medical Director, Professionals Resource Network 
 
The applicant was present and sworn in by the court reporter. After discussion, a motion 
was made and seconded to approve the application for licensure, which carried 5/0. 
 
Action Taken: The Committee voted to approve the application for licensure. 



Parveen Malik, M.D. – 
Refer to original tab 61





Reza Ehsan, M.D. –
Refer to original tab 66 



Superior Multi-Specialty Medical Clinic 

Reza Ray Ehsan, MD 

11600 Venice Blvd., Los Angeles, CA 90066 

www.superiormedclinic.com 

Ph1: 310-390-9551 Ph2: 310-390-9541 Fax: 310-390-9296 

 

 

 

 
Letter of Appeal 

 
May 7, 2014 
 
 
 
Florida Board of Medicine 
 
4052 Bald Cypress Way 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3250 
 
 
 
Re: Florida Medical License # ME61254 (Reza Ray Ehsan)  
 
 
 
Dear Sir / Madam, 
 
 
I would like to request reconsideration in regards to the violation imposed upon my license in the 
state of Florida. As you may have been made aware by Ms. Stanford, the CME requirements for 
the years 2004 and 2005 have recently been located and previously all copies were provided to 
Ms. Sanford. As the records indicate, I previously paid a fine regarding this matter and I 
voluntarily surrendered my license to practice in the state of Florida.  However, due to the fact that 
there were never any violations committed on my part I request a fair conclusion as to the outcome 
of this case.  I understand that once this issue is resolved with the Florida Board of Medicine, other 
Medical Boards will also have updated records. I apologize for any inconvenience and hope you 
understand the circumstances. 
 
I would like to take the opportunity to thank Ms. Sanford for her dedication and assistance in this 
matter as well. If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at my office. 
 
Regards, 
 

   Reza Ray Ehsan M.D. 
   

 

 



Superior Multi-Specialty Medical Clinic 

Reza Ray Ehsan, MD 

11600 Venice Blvd., Los Angeles, CA 90066 

www.superiormedclinic.com 

Ph1: 310-390-9551 Ph2: 310-390-9541 Fax: 310-390-9296 

 

 

 
 



Final Order Compliance Issues: 



John Jeffrey, M.D. –
Request to Voluntarily Relinquish







MissionMissionMissionMission: 

To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Florida through integrated 
state, county & community efforts. 

 

Rick ScottRick ScottRick ScottRick Scott    

Governor 
 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACSJohn H. Armstrong, MD, FACSJohn H. Armstrong, MD, FACSJohn H. Armstrong, MD, FACS    

State Surgeon General & Secretary 

VisionVisionVisionVision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

 

  
Florida Department of HealthFlorida Department of HealthFlorida Department of HealthFlorida Department of Health    

Division of Medical Quality Assurance • Bureau of Enforcement 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-76 • Tallahassee, FL 32399-3258 
PHONE: 850/245-4268, option 1 • FAX 850/488-0796 

www.FloridasHealth.comwww.FloridasHealth.comwww.FloridasHealth.comwww.FloridasHealth.com    

TWITTER:HealthyFLA 
FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 

YOUTUBE: fldoh 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Board of Medicine 
From:   Shaila Washington, Compliance Officer 
Respondent: John E. Jeffrey, Jr., M.D. – ME83430 
  DOH Case Number 201012358  
RE:  Request to Voluntary Relinquish   
 
Current Issues: 
 
Enclosed you will find a request to voluntarily relinquish his license in lieu of comply with the remaining 
terms of the final order.  
 
Requirements: 
 

• Letter of Concern 
• Fine:  $2,500.00 due by May 23, 2012 Paid in Full 
• Costs:  $5,000.00 due by May 23, 2012 Paid in Full 
• Continuing Education Requirement:  

o Five (5) hours in Risk Management due by April 23, 2013 Complete   
o FMA Records course due by February 12, 2014 

 
Outstanding Requirements: 
 

• Continuing Education Requirement:  
o FMA Records course due by February 12, 2014 

 



Page 1 of 2Processed:  2:04:33PM

COMPAS DataMart Reporting System 

CMU Board Summary/Case File  201012358  Report

May 13, 2014

Current Issue:    

In Compliance

John Edward Jeffrey JR

Mailing 

Address:

Licensee:    

Profession:   1501 : Medical Doctor   

 83430 License Nbr:     80296 File Nbr:    

License Status:    Delinquent/Active

Not Practicing In Florida

P O Box 6320

Tallahassee, FL 32314-6320

Primary 

Location: 

10031 Kendale Road

Potomac, MD 20854

(301) 365-1310Phone:    

Address: 215 Monroe Street, 2nd Floor

Tallahassee, FL 32302

Brian NewmanAttorney:

850-222-3533Phone:

Monitor: None on Record

Supervisor: None on Record

Respondent:    John Edward Jeffrey JR

5333 Sw 75th St #112

Gainesville, FL 32608
Address:

Appeal:    N

4/23/2012File Date:    

Disposition:    Obligations Imposed

Violation:    Fail to keep adeq prof records

Info Package Mailed Date:    4/23/2012

Summary:    Possible violation of F.S. 458.331(1)(t):  Malpractice/Violation of Standard of Care Civil court 

complaint alleges negligent care and treatment of pt. by failing to provide the minimum standard of 

care.  Alleges pt. presented to Memorial Hospital of Tampa on 09/24/2008 for pre-scheduled 

surgery and with a history of blood in urine, low platelet counts, known hematuria and diagnosis of 

Immune Thrombocytopenia Purpura.  Alleges that during surgery pt. suffered significant blood loss.  

Alleges pt. blood type was unknown and she was given type O-blood and transferred to ICU where 

she remained hypotensive and EKG was suggestive of AMI.  Alleges 15 minutes after transfer to 

ICU pt. coded and a second surgery was initiated for attempted hemostatsis.  Alleges that as a 

result of the negligent care received, pt. died approximately 3 hours after transfer to ICU. Analyzed 

by:  Sharon Johnson, ha125

Comments  End DateStart Date  Discipline Imposed:    

Letter of Concern 04/23/2012

Obligations and Conditions 04/23/2012

Due Date Cmpl Date Amt Imposed Amt PaidRecordCompliance:

04/13/2012Appearances

 5,000.00 5,000.0005/23/201205/23/2012Costs

 2,500.00 2,500.0005/23/201205/23/2012Fine



Credit DescCrdt DteCredit HrsDue Dte Req HrsSubject Area

Continuing 

Education:

Risk Management 

(Attended August 

2012 Full Board 

Meeting)

08/03/2012 5.0004/23/2013  5.00Risk Management

02/12/2014  1.00Quality Medical 

Record Keeping For 

Health Care 

Professionals

01/31/14 - Warning letter mailed

8/12/13 - Board approved an extension until February 2014.

x

Actv Code Activity DescriptionActivities: Activity Date

04/23/2012 901 Info pack mailed

05/25/2012 915 Mail Received in CMU

05/30/2012 923 Mail Processed/Reviewed

08/30/2012 961 CO Contacted Board

08/12/2013 985 Extension Approved

10/17/2013 931 Respondent Contacted CO

10/17/2013 932 CO Contacted Respondent

01/31/2014 906 Warning Letter

02/11/2014 931 Respondent Contacted CO

03/25/2014 931 Respondent Contacted CO

Contact History: Contact Date Letter Code Letter Description

04/23/2012 NN157 CMU WELCOME LETTER
04/23/2012 NN157 CMU WELCOME LETTER
04/23/2012 NN179 INVOICE
05/30/2012 NN152 CMU RECEIPT LETTER
08/21/2012 NN150A CMU CE STATUS LETTER APPROVED
01/31/2014 NN101 WARNING LETTER

Attachments:    

       

pkg_enf_rpt_cmply.p_dxo002:05/13/2014 14:04:27  OND-- FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY --Florida Department of Health



Final Order No. Dik. 2-068 -S -MQA 
FILED D 	 012 

Department of Health 

,ta a 
S". y C 	). 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF MEDICINE 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

Petitioner, 

VS. 

DOH CASE NO.: 2010-12358 
LICENSE NO.: ME0083430 

JOHN EDWARD JEFFREY, JR., M.D., 

Respondent. 

FINAL ORDER 

THIS CAUSE came before the BOARD OF MEDICINE (Board) 

pursuant to Sections 120.569 and 120.57(4), Florida Statutes, on 

April 14, 2012, in Jacksonville, Florida, for the purpose of 

considering a Settlement Agreement (attached hereto as Exhibit 

A) entered into between the parties in this cause. Upon 

consideration of the Settlement Agreement, the documents 

submitted in support thereof, the arguments of the parties, and 

being otherwise fully advised in the premises, 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED AND ADJUDGED that the Settlement 

Agreement as submitted be and is hereby approved and adopted in 

toto and incorporated herein by reference with the following 

clarification: 

The costs set forth in Paragraph 3 of the Stipulated 

Disposition shall be set at $5,000.00. 



Accordingly, the parties shall adhere to and abide by all 

the terms and conditions of the Settlement Agreement as 

clarified above. 

This Final Order shall take effect upon being filed with 

the Clerk of the Department of Health. 

DONE AND ORDERED this 

2012. 

BOARD OF MEDICINE 

day o 

A/IL40.111Elit 
Joy A. tootle, Executive Director 
For Jason J. Rosenberg, .D., Ch 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE  

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the 

foregoing Final Order has been provided by U.S. Mail to JOHN 

EDWARD JEFFREY, JR., M.D., 5333 South West 75th , 	Suite #112, 

Gainesville, Florida 32608; to Brian Newman, Esquire, 

Pennington, Moore, 	et al., 215 South Monroe Street, 2 °1  Floor, 

Tallahassee, Florida 32302; and by interoffice delivery to 

Veronica Donnelly, Department of Health, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, 

Bin #C-65, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3253 this On  day of 

ri 	, 2012. 

Deputy Agency Clerk 



DATE: 	 April 19, 2012 

TO: 	 Cassandra Pasley, BSN, J.D., Bureau Chief 
Health Care Practitioner Regulation 

FROM: 	 Joy A. Tootle, Executive Directo 
Board of Medicine 

Rick Scott 
Governor 

Steven L. Harris, M.D., M.Sc. 
Interim State Surgeon General 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

SUBJECT: 	Delegation of Authority 

This is to advise you that I will be out of the office on Friday, April 20 th , 2012 and I will 
return back in the office on Monday, April 23rd , 2012. Crystal Sanford is delegated to 
serve as acting Executive Director for the Board of Medicine. Ms. Sanford can be 
reached at (850) 245-4132. 

Mission Statement: To protect and promote the health of all residents and visitors in the state through organized state and 
community efforts, including cooperative agreements with counties.  

Division of Medical Quality Assurance • Board of Medicine 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin CO3 • Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3253 

Phone: (850) 245-4131 • Fax: (850) 488-0596 • http://www.doh.state.flus/mqa/medical/index.html  



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

	

1:3 	r- 

	

• 	v.. 

Petitioner, 

V. 
	 DOH Case No. 2010-12358 

JOHN E. JEFFREY, JR., M.D., 

Respondent. 

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT  

John E. Jeffrey, Jr., M.D., referred to as the "Respondent," and the 

Department of Health, referred to as "Department" stipulate and agree to the 

following Agreement and to the entry of a Final Order of the Board of Medicine, 

referred to as "Board," incorporating the Stipulated Facts and Stipulated 

Disposition in this matter. 

Petitioner is the state agency charged with regulating the practice of 

medicine pursuant to Section 20.43, Florida Statutes, and Chapter 456, Florida 

Statutes, and Chapter 458, Florida Statutes. 

STIPULATED FACTS  

1. 	At all times material hereto, Respondent was a licensed physician in 

the State of Florida having been issued license number ME 83430. 

DOH v. Jeffrey, Jr., M.D., 201042358 	
Page 1 of 8 

14173 	 



2. The Department charged Respondent with an Administrative 

Complaint that was filed and properly served upon Respondent with violations of 

Chapter 458, Florida Statutes, and the rules adopted pursuant thereto. A true and 

correct copy of the Administrative Complaint is attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

3. Respondent neither admits nor denies the allegations of fact contained 

in the Administrative Complaint for purposes of these proceedings only. 

STIPULATED CONCLUSIONS OF LAW , 

1. Respondent admits that, in his capacity as a licensed physician, he is 

subject to the provisions of Chapters 456 and 458, Florida Statutes, and the 

jurisdiction of the Department and the Board. 

2. Respondent admits that the facts alleged in the Administrative 

Complaint, if proven, would constitute violations of Chapter 458, Florida Statutes, 

as alleged in the Administrative Complaint. 

3. Respondent agrees that the Stipulated Disposition in this case is fair, 

appropriate and acceptable to Respondent. 

STIPULATED DISPOSITION  

1. 	Letter Of Concern  - Respondent shall receive a Letter of Concern 

from the Board of Medicine. 

DOH v. Jeffrey, Jr., M.D., 2010-12358 	 Page 2 of 8 

14174 	  



2. Fine - 
The Board of Medicine shall impose an administrative fine of two 

thousand five hundred dollars and zero cents ($g.soo.00) against the license of 

Respondent, to be paid by Respondent to Payments, Department of Health, Compliance 

Management Unit, Bin C-76, P. 0. Box 6320, Tallahassee, FL 32314-6320, within thirty-

days (30) from the date of filing of the Final Order accepting this Agreement. All fines 

shall be mild by cashiers check or money order. ,  The Board office does not have the 

authority to change the terms of payment of any fine imposed by the Board. 

RESPONDENT ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THE TIMELY PAYMENT OF THE 

FINE IS HIS/HER LEGAL OBLIGATION AND RESPONSIBILITY AND 

RESPONDENT AGREES TO CEASE PRACTICING IF THE FINE IS NOT PAID 

AS AGREED TO IN THIS SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT, SPECIFICALLY: IF 

WITHIN 45 DAYS OF THE DATE OF FILING OF THE FINAL ORDER, 

RESPONDENT HAS NOT RECEIVED WRITTEN CONFIRMATION THAT THE 

FULL AMOUNT OF THE FINE HAS BEEN RECEIVED BY THE BOARD OFFICE, 

RESPONDENT AGREES TO CEASE PRACTICE UNTIL SUCH WRITTEN 

CONFIRMATION IS RECEIVED BY RESPONDENT FROM THE BOARD. 

3. Reimbursement Of Costs  - Pursuant to Section 456.072, Florida 

Statutes, Respondent agrees to pay the Department for any costs incurred in the 

investigation and prosecution of this case. Such costs exclude the costs of 

obtaining supervision or monitoring of the practice, the cost of quality assurance 

reviews, and the Board's administrative cost directly associated with Respondent's 

probation, if any. The agreed upon amount of Department costs to be paid in this 

DOH v. Jeffrey, Jr., M.D., 2010-12358 	 Page 3 of 8 

14175 



case is currently four thousand three hundred and thirty dollars and forty-

nine cents ($4,330.49), but shall not exceed five thousand dollars and zero 

cents ($5,000.00). Respondent will pay costs to Payments, Department of Health, 

Compliance Management Unit, Bin C-76, P. 0. Box 6320, Tallahassee, FL 32314-6320, 

within thirty-days (30) from the date of filing of the Final Order in this cause. All 

costs shall be paid by cashiers check or money order.  Any post-Board costs, 

such as the costs associated with probation, are not included in this agreement. 

RESPONDENT ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THE TIMELY PAYMENT OF THE COSTS IS 

HIS/HER LEGAL OBLIGATION AND RESPONSIBILITY AND RESPONDENT AGREES TO 

CEASE PRACTICING IF THE COSTS ARE NOT PAID AS AGREED TO IN THIS 

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT, SPECIFICALLY: IF WITHIN 45 DAYS OF THE DATE OF 

FILING OF THE FINAL ORDER, RESPONDENT HAS NOT RECEIVED WRITTEN 

CONFIRMATION THAT THE FULL AMOUNT OF THE COSTS NOTED ABOVE HAS BEEN 

RECEIVED BY THE BOARD OFFICE, RESPONDENT AGREES TO CEASE PRACTICE UNTIL 

SUCH WRITTEN CONFIRMATION IS RECEIVED BY RESPONDENT FROM THE BOARD. 

4. Records Course  - Respondent shall complete the course, "Quality 

Medical Record Keeping for Health Care Professionals," sponsored by the Florida 

Medical Association, or a Board-approved equivalent, within one year of the date of 

filing of the Final Order in this cause. 

5. Continuing Medical Education — "Risk Management"  - 

Respondent shall complete five (5) hours of Continuing Medical Education in "Risk 

Management" within one (1) year of the date of filing of the Final Order. 

DOH v. Jeffrey, Jr., M.D., 2010-12358 	 Page 4 of 8 

14176  	



Respondent shall first submit a written request to the Probation Committee for 

approval prior to performance of said continuing medical education course(s). 

However, the Board has approved five (5) hours of risk management continuing 

education for attending the first day of a full Board of Medicine meeting. 

STANDARD PROVISIONS  

1. Appearance  - Respondent Is required to appear before the Board at 

the meeting of the Board where this Agreement is considered. 

2. No force or effect until final order  - It is expressly understood 

that this Agreement Is subject to the approval of the Board and the Department. 

In this regard, the foregoing paragraphs (and only the foregoing paragraphs) shall 

have no force and effect unless the Board enters a Final Order incorporating the 

terms of this Agreement. 

3. Continuing Medical Education  - Unless otherwise provided in this 

written agreement Respondent shall first submit a written request to the Probation 

Committee for approval prior to performance of said continuing medical education 

course(s). Respondent shall submit documentation In the form of certified copies 

of the receipts, vouchers, certificates, or other papers, such as physician's 

recognition awards, documenting completion of this medical course within one (1) 

year of the date of filing of the Final Order in this matter. All such documentation 

shall be sent to the Board of Medicine, regardless of whether some or any of such 

documentation was provided previously during the course of any audit or 

DOH v. Jeffrey, Jr., M.D., 2010-12358 	 Page 5 of 8 

14177  	



discussion with counsel for the Department. These hours shall be in addition to 

those hours required for renewal of licensure. Unless otherwise approved by the 

Board, said continuing medical education course(s) shall consist of a formal, live 

lecture format. 

4. Addresses  - Respondent must keep current residence and practice 

addresses on file with the Board. Respondent shall notify the Board within ten 

(10) days of any changes of said addresses. 

5. Future Conduct  - In the future, Respondent shall not violate Chapter 

456, 458 or 893, Florida Statutes, or the rules promulgated pursuant thereto, or 

any other state or federal law, rule, or regulation relating to the practice or the 

ability to practice medicine. Prior to signing this agreement, the Respondent shall read 

Chapters 456, 458 and 893 and the Rules of the Board of Medidne, at Chapter 6488, 

Florida Administrative Code. 

6. Violation of terms considered  - It is expressly understood that a 

violation of the terms of this Agreement shall be considered a violation of a Final 

Order of the Board, for which disciplinary action may be initiated pursuant to 

Chapters 456 and 458, Florida Statutes. 

7. Purpose of Agreement  - Respondent, for the purpose of avoiding 

further administrative action with respect to this cause, executes this Agreement. 

In this regard, Respondent authorizes the Board to review and examine all 

investigative file materials concerning Respondent prior to or in conjunction with 

consideration of the Agreement. Respondent agrees to support this Agreement at 

DOH v. Jeffrey, Jr., M.D., 2010-12358 	 Page 6 of 8 

14178 	  



the time it is presented to the Board and shall offer no evidence, testimony or 

argument that disputes or contravenes any stipulated fact or conclusion of law. 

Furthermore, should this Agreement not be accepted by the Board, it Is agreed 

that presentation to and consideration of this Agreement and other documents and 

matters by the Board shall not unfairly or illegally prejudice the Board or any of its 

members from further participation, consideration or resolution of these 

proceedings. 

8. No preclusion of additional oroceedinas  - Respondent and the 

Department fully understand that this Agreement and subsequent Final Order 

incorporating same will in no way preclude additional proceedings by the Board 

and/or the Department against Respondent for acts or omissions not specifically 

set forth in the Administrative Complaint attached as Exhibit A. 

9. Waiver of attorney's fees and costs  - Upon the Board's adoption 

of this Agreement, the parties hereby agree that with the exception of costs noted 

above, the parties will bear their own attorney's fees and costs resulting from 

prosecution or defense of this matter. Respondent waives the right to seek any 

attorney's fees or costs from the Department and the Board in connection with this 

matter. 

10. Waiver of further procedural steps  • Upon the Board's adoption of 

this Agreement, Respondent expressly waives all further procedural steps and 

expressly waives all rights to seek judicial review of or to otherwise challenge or 

DOH v. Jeffrey, Jr., M.D., 2010-12358 	 Page 7 of 8 

14179 	 



contest the validity of the Agreement and the Final Order of the Board 

incorporating said Agreement. 

SIGNED this  10  day of 	 •  2012. 

Jaf)effre3A; 	 
STATE OF  41orid0.  
COUNTY OF  Alachum,  

BEFORE ME, personally appeared JOHN E. JEFFREY, JR., whose identity is 

known to me or by4-01tiVeAtAti1d  (type of identification) and 

who, under oath, acknowledges that his signature appears above. 

 

SWORN to and subscribed before me this 

-Feb. 	, 2012. 

Jo day of 

  

   

tel 	I r"IYUIPILLIE SIEN:teCITA  OrROlit 
NMI I 

MY COMM. woirea Apd 19, 2014 
OommIssion0D0973427 

My Commission Expires: 	f3— 74114  

# 4., 
'TAW( 79  .17°  

   

   

APPROVED this 	day of 2012. 

  

H. Frank Farmer, Jr., MD, PhD, FACP 
State Surgeon General 
Dep ment 	aith 

WI  By:  ra L. Glenn 
Assistant General Counsel 
Department of Health 

DOH v. Jeffrey, Jr., M.D., 2010-12358 
	

Page 8 of 8 

14180 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

PETITIONER, 

v. 	 CASE NO.: 2010-12358 

JOHN EDWARD JEFFREY, JR., M.D., 

RESPONDENT. 

ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLAINT 

COMES NOW, Petitioner, Department of Health, by and through its 

undersigned counsel, and files this Administrative Complaint before the 

Board of Medicine against the Respondent, John Edward Jeffrey, Jr., M.D., 

and in support thereof alleges: 

1. Petitioner is the state department charged with regulating the 

practice of medicine pursuant to Section 20,43, Florida Statutes; Chapter 

456, Florida Statutes; and Chapter 458, Florida Statutes. 

2. At all times material to this Complaint, Respondent was a 

licensed physician within the State of Florida, having been issued license 

number ME 83430. 

DOH v. JEFFREY, M.D., Case Number 2010-12358 	 Page 1 of 9 

14181 



3. Respondent's address of record is 5333 S.W. 75 th  Street, Suite 

# 112, Gainesville, Florida 32608. 

4. At all times material to this Complaint, Respondent was 

certified by the American Board of Anesthesiology. 

5. On or about September 25, 2008, Patient J.P. presented to 

Memorial Hospital of Tampa ("MHT") for a prescheduled surgery for 

removal of a pelvic mass ("surgery"). The surgery was performed by Dr. 

D.P. 

6. During Patient ).P.'s surgery, she suffered significant and 

unexpected bleeding and on-going deterioration of blood pressure. 

7. Ultimately, Patient J.P.'s bleeding could not be stopped and the 

surgery was concluded with her abdomen "packed closed." She was then 

transferred to I.C.U. where her blood pressure remained low and she 

suffered a cardiac arrest. 

8. The written anesthesiology record for the surgery erroneously 

indicates that Dr. J.H. was the attending anesthesiologist and was present 

for induction and emergence. 

DOH v. JEFFREY, M.D., Case Number 2010-12358 	 Page 2 of 9 

14182 



9. In fact, Respondent was the attending anesthesiologist for J.P.'s 

surgery. However, Respondent did not document that he was the attending 

anesthesiologist for J.P.'s surgery. 

10. Respondent did not document that he was personally present in 

the operating room for induction or emergence of J.P.'s anesthesia. 

11. Respondent not document that he was personally present in 

the operating room at any time during J.P.'s surgery. 

12. During J.P.'s surgery Respondent signed several blood bank 

orders (blood transfusion slips) ordering un-crossmatched blood for J.P. 

13. Respondent's anesthesiology assistant for J.P.'s surgery was 

Certified Registered Nurse Anesthetist ("CRNA") A.M. 

14. CRNA A.M. provided intraoperative anesthesiology care during 

J.P.'s surgery. 

15. During ].P.'s surgery, CRNA A.M. administered multiple and 

continuous non-routine, emergent diagnostic procedures and emergent 

treatments for J.P. 

16. A CRNA must be supervised by a physician. CRNA A.M.'s 

supervising physician during J.P.'s surgery was Respondent. 

DOH v. JEFFREY, M.D., Case Number 2010-12358 	 Page 3 of 9 

14183 



17. Respondent failed to document in the anesthesiology record 

that he adequately monitored and assessed Patient J.P.'s condition. 

18.. Respondent failed to document in the anesthesiology record 

that he developed an appropriate treatment plan for Patient J.P. 

19. Respondent failed to document in the anesthesiology record 

that he was the attending Anesthesiologist. 

20. Respondent failed to document in the anesthesiology record 

that he was personally present in the operating room for induction and 

emergence of J.P.'s anesthesiology. 

21. Respondent failed to document in the anesthesiology record 

that he was personally present in the operating room for the administration 

of any non-routine, emergent diagnostic procedures and emergent 

treatments. 

22. Respondent failed to document in the anesthesiology record his 

justification for any non-routine, emergent diagnostic procedures and 

emergent treatments. 

23. Respondent failed to document In the anesthesiology record 

that he supervised CRNA A.M. during .1.P.'s surgery. 

DOH v. JEFFREY, M.D., Case Number 2010-12358 	 Page 4 of 9 

14184 



24. Section 458.331(1)(m), Florida Statutes (2008), provides that 

Failing to keep legible, as defined by department rule in consultation with 

the board, medical records that identify the licensed physician or the 

physician extender and supervising physician by name and professional title 

who is or are responsible for rendering, ordering, supervising, or billing for 

each diagnostic or treatment procedure and that justify the course of 

treatment of the patient, including, but not limited to, patient histories; 

examination results; test results; records of drugs prescribed, dispensed, or 

administered; and reports of consultations and hospitalizations, is grounds 

for discipline by the Board of Medicine. 

25. Rule 6488-9.003(3), Florida Administrative Code (2008), 

provides that the medical record shall contain sufficient information to 

identify the patient, support the diagnosis, justify the treatment and 

document the course and results of treatment accurately, by including, at a 

minimum, patient histories; examination results; test results; records of 

drugs prescribed, dispensed, or administered; reports of consultations and 

hospitalizations; and copies of records or reports or other documentation 

obtained from other health care practitioners at the request of the 

DOH v. JEFFREY, M.D., Case Number 2010-12358 	 Page 5 of 9 

14185 



physician and relied upon by the physician in determining the appropriate 

treatment of the patient. 

26. Respondent failed to keep legible medical records that justified 

the course and results of treatment accurately, with regard to Patient J.P., 

in one or more of the following ways: 

(a) By failing to document his monitoring and assessment of 

Patient J.P.'s condition; and/or 

(b) By failing to document his development of an appropriate 

treatment plan for Patient J.P.; and/or 

(c) By failing to document that he was the attending 

Anesthesiologist; and/or 

(d) By failing to document that he was personally present in 

the operating room for induction and emergence of J.P.'s 

anesthesiology; and/or 

(e) By failing to document that he was personally present in 

the operating room for the administration of any non-routine, 

emergent diagnostic procedures and emergent treatments during 

J.P.'s surgery; and/or 

DOH v. JEFFREY, M.D., Case Number 2010-12358 	 Page 6 of 9 

14186 



(f) By failing to document his justification for any non-

routine, emergent diagnostic procedures and emergent treatments; 

and/or 

(g) By failing to document his supervision of the CRNA. 

27. Based on the foregoing, Respondent has violated Section 

458.331(1)(m), Florida Statutes (2008), by failing to keep legible medical 

records that justified the course and results of treatment accurately, with 

regard to Patient J.P. 

WHEREFORE, the Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board of 

Medicine enter an order Imposing one or more of the following penalties: 

permanent revocation or suspension of Respondent's license, restriction of 

practice, imposition of an administrative fine, issuance of a reprimand, 

placement of the Respondent on probation, corrective action, refund of 

fees billed or collected, remedial education and/or any other relief that the 

Board deems appropriate. 

DOH v. JEFFREY, M.D., Case Number 2010-12358 	 Page 7 of 9 

14187 



SIGNED this 13th day of January,  2012. 

H. Frank Farmer, Jr., M.D., Ph.D., FACP 
State Surgeon General 

fa f 
Laura L. Glen w 

A 

 Assistant General Counsel 
DOH Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3265 
Florida Bar # 0861413 
(850) 245-4640 
(850) 245-4681 FAX 

PCP Date: January 13, 2012 
PCP Members: Ashkar, Bearison 

DEPARTMENT OF MAIM, 
 PM CLERK 

CLERK: 	 e 
DATE_ 

DOH vs. Sohn Edward 3effrey, 3r., M.D. Case No.: 2010-12358 

DOH v. JEFFREY, M.D., Case Number 201042358 	 Page 8 of 9 

14188 	 



DOH vs. John Edward Jeffrey, Jr., M.D. Case No.: 2010-12358 

NOTICE OF RIGHTS 

Respondent has the right to request a hearing to be 
conducted in accordance with Section 120.569 and 120.57, 
Florida Statutes, to be represented by counsel or other qualified 
representative, to present evidence and argument, to call and 
cross-examine witnesses and to have subpoena and subpoena 
duces tecum issued on his or her behalf if a hearing is requested. 

NOTICE REGARDING ASSESSMENT OF COSTS 

Respondent is placed on notice that Petitioner has incurred 
costs related to the investigation and prosecution of this matter. 
Pursuant to Section 456.072(41 Florida Statutes, the Board shall 
assess costs related to the investigation and prosecution of a 
disciplinary matter, which may include attorney hours and costs, 
on the Respondent in addition any other discipline imposed. 

DOH v. JEFFREY, M.D., Case Number 2010-12358 	 Page 9 of 9 

14189 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

PETITIONER, 

v. 
	 CASE NO. 2011-08740 

RONALD JOHN LEWIS, M.D., 

RESPONDENT. 

ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLAINT 

Petitioner, Department of Health, by and through its undersigned 

counsel, hereby files this Administrative Complaint before the Board of 

Medicine against Respondent, Ronald John Lewis, M.D., and in support 

thereof alleges: 

1. Petitioner is the state department charged with regulating the 

practice of medicine pursuant to Section 20.43, Florida Statutes; Chapter 

456, Florida Statutes; and Chapter 458, Florida Statutes. 

2. At all times material to this Complaint, Respondent was a 

licensed physician within the state of Florida, having been issued license 

number ME 46177. 

34396 



3. Respondent's address of record is 98. Ocean Drive, St. 

Augustine, Florida 32080. 

4. At all times material to this Complaint, Respondent was 

certified by the American Board of Radiology, with a certification in 

Diagnostic Radiology. 

5. The State of Colorado, Department of Regulatory Agencies 

(Colorado Board), is the licensing authority regulating the practice of 

medicine in the State of Colorado. 

6. On or about April 14, 2011, the Colorado Board issued a Letter 

of Admonition (Case Number 2011-002268-A) which admonished 

Respondent's license and assessed an administrative fine of $287.50. 

7. The April 14, 2011, disciplinary action taken by Colorado Board 

against Respondent was based on allegations that Respondent made an 

affirmative answer to a 2009 Colorado license renewal question regarding 

payments paid on his medical malpractice insurance and failed to answer 

the Colorado Board's inquiry regarding the affirmative answer. 

8. Respondent failed to notify the Florida Board of Medicine, in 

writing, within 30 days of the April 14, 2011, disciplinary action of the 

Colorado Board. 
EP 

DOH v. Lewis, M.D., Case Number 2011-08740 	 Page 2 of 6 

34397 



9. As of November 29, 2011, Respondent has failed to update his 

Florida Practitioner Profile to disclose the April 14, 2011, disciplinary action 

of the Colorado Board. 

COUNT I 

10. Petitioner re-alleges and incorporates by reference Paragraphs 

1 through 6, as if fully set forth herein. 

11. Section 458.331(1)(b), Florida Statutes (2010), sets forth the 

grounds for disciplinary action by the Board of Medicine and provides that 

having a license or the authority to practice medicine revoked, suspended, 

or otherwise acted against, including the denial of licensure, by the 

licensing authority of another jurisdiction constitutes grounds for discipline. 

12. The Colorado Board acted against Respondent's Colorado 

medical license on or about April 14, 2011, by entering the above-

referenced order. 

13. Based on the foregoing, Respondent has violated Section 

458.331(1)(b), Florida Statutes (2010), by having his license acted against 

by the licensing authority of Colorado. 

COUNT II 

14. Petitioner re-alleges and incorporates by reference Paragraphs 

1 through 6 and Paragraph 8, as if fully set forth herein. 

DOH v. Lewis, M.D., Case Number 2011-08740 	 Page 3 of 6 

34398 



15. Section 458.331(1)(kk), Florida Statutes (2010), provides that 

failing to report to the Board of Medicine, in writing, within 30 days when 

action, as defined in Section 458.331(1)(b), Florida Statutes, is taken 

against one's license to practice as a physician in another state, territory or 

country, constitutes grounds for discipline by the Florida Board of Medicine. 

16. Respondent failed to report the April 14, 2011, disciplinary 

action taken against his license by the Colorado Board, in writing, to the 

Florida Board of Medicine within 30 days of such action. 

17. Based on the foregoing, Respondent has violated Section 

458.331(1)(kk), Florida Statutes (2010), by failing to timely report the April 

14, 2011, Colorado disciplinary action to the Florida Board of Medicine, in 

writing, within 30 days of such action. 

WHEREFORE, the Petitioner respectfully requests that the Board of 

Medicine enter an order imposing one or more of the following penalties: 

permanent revocation or suspension of Respondent's license, restriction of 

practice, imposition of an administrative fine, issuance of a reprimand, 

placement of the Respondent on probation, corrective action, refund of 

fees billed or collected, remedial education and/or any other relief that the 

Board deems appropriate. 

D H v. Lewis, M.D., Case Number 2011-08740 	 Page 4 of 6 

34399 



SIGNED this day of 2012. 

H. Frank Farmer, Jr., M.D., Ph.D., FACP 
State Surgeon General 

4P, 
fik■r ,4 

L. Glenn 0 
Assistant General Counsel 
DOH, Prosecution Services Unit 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-65 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3265 
Florida Bar No. 0861413 
Telephone: (850) 245-4640 
Facsimile: (850) 245-4681 

PCP: January 13, 2012 
PCP Members: Ashkar & Bearison 

FiLE13 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH D" 

UT; CLERK 
CLERK 

DATELlat-  / 

DOH VS. LEWIS, M.D., CASE NO. 2011-08740 

DOH v. Lewis, M.D., Case Number 2011-08740 	 Page 5 of 6 

34400 

J 



DOH VS. LEWIS, M.D., CASE NO. 2011-08740 

NOTICE OF RIGHTS  

Respondent has the right to request a hearing to be 
conducted in accordance with Section 120.569 and 120.57, 
Florida Statutes, to be represented by counsel or other qualified 
representative, to present evidence and argument, to call and 
cross-examine witnesses and to have subpoena and subpoena 
duces tecum issued on his or her behalf if a hearing is requested. 

NOTICE REGARDING ASSESSMENT OF COSTS 

Respondent is placed on notice that Petitioner has incurred 
costs related to the investigation and prosecution of this matter. 
Pursuant to Section 456.072(4), Florida Statutes, the Board shall 
assess costs related to the investigation and prosecution of a 
disciplinary matter, which may include attorney hours and costs, 
on the Respondent in addition to any other discipline imposed. 

DOH v. Lewis, M.D., Case Number 2011-08740 	 Page 6 of 6 

34401 



John D. Campbell, M.D. –
Request for Modification of Final Order 











MissionMissionMissionMission: 

To protect, promote & improve the health 
of all people in Florida through integrated 
state, county & community efforts. 

 

Rick ScottRick ScottRick ScottRick Scott    

Governor 
 

John H. Armstrong, MD, FACSJohn H. Armstrong, MD, FACSJohn H. Armstrong, MD, FACSJohn H. Armstrong, MD, FACS    

State Surgeon General & Secretary 

ViViViVisionsionsionsion: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation 

 

  
Florida Department of HealthFlorida Department of HealthFlorida Department of HealthFlorida Department of Health    

Division of Medical Quality Assurance • Bureau of Enforcement 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-76 • Tallahassee, FL 32399-3276 
PHONE: (850)245-4268 • FAX (850)488-0796 

wwwwwwwww.FloridasHealth.comw.FloridasHealth.comw.FloridasHealth.comw.FloridasHealth.com    

TWITTER:HealthyFLA 
FACEBOOK:FLDepartmentofHealth 

YOUTUBE: fldoh 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Board of Medicine 
From:   Shaila Washington, Compliance Officer 
Respondent: John D. Campbell, M.D. – ME 34315  
RE:  Modification Request  
 
Current Issues: 
 
Enclosed you will find a request for modification of the probationary requirements. Dr. Campbell is 
specifically requesting the Board’s consideration in the following areas: 
  

• Decrease the total time of supervision to six months 
• Changing the supervision from direct to indirect 
• Elimination of the 0-20 hour part time work week 

 
CARES Recommendations: 

1. Additional 40 hours of CME in family medicine-preferably a Board Review Course 
2. Reestablishment of a contract with PRN in order to insure continued psychiatric follow up for 

Bipolar disorder and reinitiating psychotherapy and/or cognitive behavioral therapy as 
recommended by an appropriate psychiatrist/therapist  

3. Completion of a physical examination refresher course-self-directed or CME providing if 
available. 

4. Restriction of practice to part-time for 6-12 months with direct supervision to assure 
successful re-initiation back into practice.  

5. Period of probation and additional supervision to be determined by the Board. 
 

Requirements: 
 

• Costs:  $32,701.57 due within one year of the reinstatement of license to practice 
• Suspension: Suspended until such time as he personally appears before the Board and 

demonstrates the ability to practice medicine with reasonable skill and safety. 
• Neuropsychological Costs - The costs associated with the neuropsychological assessment 

must be paid with one year from the date the Final Order is filed. 
• Reinstatement Appearance: Respondent must personally appear before the Board and 

demonstrate the ability to practice with reasonable skill and safety. 
 
Order Granting Reinstatement filed December 23, 2013: 

• Probation:  Respondent shall be placed on probation for as long as he holds an active license 
to practice medicine in the State of Florida 

o First Appearance 
o Direct Supervision 
o Triannual Monitor Reports 

� Review 100% of respondent’s patient records at least once every month 
o Triannual Appearances 
o Last Appearance 



 

o Tolling 
o After 2 years of practice under the direct supervision as outlined above, and PRN's 

approval, Respondent may petition the Board to change his supervision level from direct 
to in direct supervision. 

o Respondent must limit his practice of medicine to less than 20 hours per week. After 12 
months, Respondent may petition the Probation Committee to lift this practice restriction 
provided the Professionals Resource Network (PRN) agrees that it is appropriate to do 
so. 

• PRN shall provide monthly reports to the Board's Probation Committee with regard to 
Respondent's continued ability to practice medicine with reasonable skill and safety. 

 
Outstanding Requirements: 
 

• Costs:  $32,701.57 due within one year of the reinstatement of license to practice 
• Suspension: Suspended until such time as he personally appears before the Board and 

demonstrates the ability to practice medicine with reasonable skill and safety. 
• Neuropsychological Costs - The costs associated with the neuropsychological assessment 

must be paid with one year from the date the Final Order is filed. 
• Reinstatement Appearance: Respondent must personally appear before the Board and 

demonstrate the ability to practice with reasonable skill and safety. 
 

Order Granting Reinstatement filed December 23, 2013: 
• Probation:  Respondent shall be placed on probation for as long as he holds an active license 

to practice medicine in the State of Florida 
o First Appearance 
o Direct Supervision 
o Triannual Monitor Reports 

� Review 100% of respondent’s patient records at least once every month 
o Triannual Appearances 
o Last Appearance 
o Tolling 
o After 2 years of practice under the direct supervision as outlined above, and PRN's 

approval, Respondent may petition the Board to change his supervision level from direct 
to in direct supervision. 

o Respondent must limit his practice of medicine to less than 20 hours per week. After 12 
months, Respondent may petition the Probation Committee to lift this practice restriction 
provided the Professionals Resource Network (PRN) agrees that it is appropriate to do 
so. 

• PRN shall provide monthly reports to the Board's Probation Committee with regard to 
Respondent's continued ability to practice medicine with reasonable skill and safety. 

 



Page 1 of 8Processed:  8:46:11AM 

COMPAS DataMart Reporting System  
CMU Board Summary/Case File Report 200908871 

May 15, 2014 
 

Current Issue:     

In Compliance 

John D. Campbell 

Mailing 
Address: 

Licensee:     

Profession:   1501: Medical Doctor    

 34315  License Nbr:     26766  File Nbr:     

License Status:    Probation/Active 

Not Practicing In Florida 
P O Box 6320 
Tallahassee, FL 32314-6320 

Primary 
Location:  

PO Box 2034 
Winter Haven, FL 33883 

(863) 968-3429 Phone:     

None on Record Attorney: 

Monitor: None on Record 

Supervisor: None on Record 

Respondent:    John D. Campbell 

529 Berkley Rd 
Auburndale, FL 33823 

Address: 

Appeal:     no 

10/13/2010 File Date:     

Disposition:     Suspension 

Violation:     Impaired from alc/drugs/other 

Info Package Mailed Date:    10/22/2010 

Summary:     Possible violation of F.S. 458.331(1)(s).  Complainant alleges subject was responding to an election of 
proceedings after being declared/told he was mentally unfit by AHCA.  Subject complaint history shows 
possible PRN involvement.  After preliminary investigation, it was determined through an interview with 
an AHCA program administrator staff was quite concerned about subject's managment of office.  It was 
stated by this administrator that subject spoke at times incoherently by discussing patient's sexual 
habits.  AHCA decided to terminate subject's participation in various programs.  During this interview, 
the administrator noted having numerous phone conversations with subject, and that it was her 
understanding that the subject suffered a brain injury and that subject admitted to "stealing his 
medication" from patients.   Documentation includes communication between subject and 
representatives from AHCA.  An on-site visit was conducted on 12/04/2006 which noted subject could 
not remain focused in a conversation, his emotional state, discussion of unusual sexual practices of 
patients, and the physical state of his office.  Analyzed by:  Ronnie Shipp 



 
Comments   End DateStart Date  Discipline Imposed:    

Emergency Suspension 02/26/2010 10/12/2010
Respondent's license to practice medicine in the State of 
Florida is suspended until such time as he personally 
appears before the Board and demonstrates the ability to 
practice medicine with reasonable skill and safety. 

Suspension 10/13/2010 12/22/2013

Respondent must limit his practice of medicine to less 
than 20 hours per week. After 12 months, Respondent 
may petition the Probation Committee to lift this practice 
restriction provided the Professionals Resource Network 
(PRN) agrees that it is appropriate to do so. 
 
Respondent shall be placed on probation for as long as 
he holds an active license to practice medicine in the 
State of Florida. 

Probation 12/23/2013



 
Due Date  Cmpl Date Amt Imposed Amt PaidRecord Compliance: 

12/06/2013 Reinstatement Appearance 

Personally appear and demonstrate the ability to practice medicine with reasonable skill and 
safety. 
 
08/18/11 - Order filed denying reinstatement. Dr. Campbell has not demonstrated the ability to 
practice medicine with reasonable skill and safety. 
 
04/11/11 ¿ Order filed denying reinstatement. Dr. Campbell has not demonstrated that he is 
capable of practicing medicine with reasonable skill and safety 

x 
NO 10/13/2011 Miscellaneous 

The costs associated with the neuropsychological assessment must be paid with one year from 
the date the Final Order is filed. 

x 
 0.00 32,701.57 12/23/2014 Costs 

The remaining costs shall be paid within one year of reinstatement of Respondent's license to 
practice medicine. 

x 
04/11/2011 Reinstatement Denied 

Order Denying Reinstatement - Respondent has not demonstrated that he is capable of practicing 
medicine with reasonable skill and safety. 

x 
08/18/2011 Reinstatement Denied 

Order Denying Reinstatement - Respondent has not demonstrated the ability to practice medicine 
with reasonable skill and safety. 

x 
08/13/2013 Reinstatement Denied 

Order Denying Reinstatement - Respondent has not demonstrated that he is complied with the 
recommendations made by Florida CARES. 

x 
12/23/2013 Reinstatement with Conditions 

The Board GRANTED Respondent's request for reinstatement subject to the following terms and 
conditions: 
1. Respondent shall be placed on probation for as long as he holds an active license to practice 
medicine in the State of Florida. 

x 
02/19/2014 01/23/2014 PRN Status Reports 

02/19/14 - There have been no changes in his condition, which have come to the attention of 
PRN, that would indicate he is not safe to practice.   
02/17/14 - Dr. John Campbell remains in compliance with his PRN monitoring contract.  
 
PRN shall provide monthly reports to the  
Board's Probation Committee with regard to Respondent's continued ability to practice medicine 
with reasonable skill and safety. 

x 
02/19/2014 02/23/2014 PRN Status Reports 

02/19/14 - There have been no changes in his condition, which have come to the attention of 
PRN, that would indicate he is not safe to practice.   
02/17/14 - Dr. John Campbell remains in compliance with his PRN monitoring contract.  
PRN shall provide monthly reports to the Board's Probation Committee with regard to 
Respondent's continued ability to practice medicine with reasonable skill and safety. 

x 
03/21/2014 03/23/2014 PRN Status Reports 



 03/21/14 - Email received from N. Tomaszewski with PRN - Good morning, this is the required 
monthly compliance report for John Campbell, M. D.  Dr. Campbell remains in compliance with 
his PRN monitoring contract and is safe to practice with reasonable skill and safety in accordance 
with his final order from the Board of Medicine. 
 
PRN shall provide monthly reports to the Board's Probation Committee with regard to 
Respondent's continued ability to practice medicine with reasonable skill and safety. 

x 
04/21/2014 04/23/2014 PRN Status Reports 

Email received from N. Tomaszewski with PRN - Good Afternoon, this is the required monthly 
compliance report for John Campbell, M. D.  Dr. Campbell remains in compliance with his PRN 
monitoring contract and is safe to practice with reasonable skill and safety in accordance with his 
final order from the Board of Medicine. Thank you. 
 
PRN shall provide monthly reports to the  
Board's Probation Committee with regard to Respondent's continued ability to practice medicine 
with reasonable skill and safety. 

x 
05/23/2014 PRN Status Reports 

PRN shall provide monthly reports to the Board's Probation Committee with regard to 
Respondent's continued ability to practice medicine with reasonable skill and safety. 

x 
06/23/2014 PRN Status Reports 

PRN shall provide monthly reports to the Board's Probation Committee with regard to 
Respondent's continued ability to practice medicine with reasonable skill and safety. 

x 
07/23/2014 PRN Status Reports 

PRN shall provide monthly reports to the Board's Probation Committee with regard to 
Respondent's continued ability to practice medicine with reasonable skill and safety. 

x 
08/23/2014 PRN Status Reports 

PRN shall provide monthly reports to the Board's Probation Committee with regard to 
Respondent's continued ability to practice medicine with reasonable skill and safety. 

x 
09/23/2014 PRN Status Reports 

PRN shall provide monthly reports to the Board's Probation Committee with regard to 
Respondent's continued ability to practice medicine with reasonable skill and safety. 

x 
10/23/2014 PRN Status Reports 

PRN shall provide monthly reports to the Board's Probation Committee with regard to 
Respondent's continued ability to practice medicine with reasonable skill and safety. 

x 
11/23/2014 PRN Status Reports 

PRN shall provide monthly reports to the Board's Probation Committee with regard to 
Respondent's continued ability to practice medicine with reasonable skill and safety. 

x 
12/23/2014 PRN Status Reports 

PRN shall provide monthly reports to the Board's Probation Committee with regard to 
Respondent's continued ability to practice medicine with reasonable skill and safety. 



 x 
01/23/2015 PRN Status Reports 

PRN shall provide monthly reports to the Board's Probation Committee with regard to 
Respondent's continued ability to practice medicine with reasonable skill and safety. 

x 
02/23/2015 PRN Status Reports 

PRN shall provide monthly reports to the Board's Probation Committee with regard to 
Respondent's continued ability to practice medicine with reasonable skill and safety. 

x 
03/23/2015 PRN Status Reports 

PRN shall provide monthly reports to the Board's Probation Committee with regard to 
Respondent's continued ability to practice medicine with reasonable skill and safety. 

x 
04/23/2015 PRN Status Reports 

PRN shall provide monthly reports to the Board's Probation Committee with regard to 
Respondent's continued ability to practice medicine with reasonable skill and safety. 

x 
05/23/2015 PRN Status Reports 

PRN shall provide monthly reports to the Board's Probation Committee with regard to 
Respondent's continued ability to practice medicine with reasonable skill and safety. 

x 
06/23/2015 PRN Status Reports 

PRN shall provide monthly reports to the Board's Probation Committee with regard to 
Respondent's continued ability to practice medicine with reasonable skill and safety. 

x 
07/23/2015 PRN Status Reports 

PRN shall provide monthly reports to the Board's Probation Committee with regard to 
Respondent's continued ability to practice medicine with reasonable skill and safety. 

x 
08/23/2015 PRN Status Reports 

PRN shall provide monthly reports to the Board's Probation Committee with regard to 
Respondent's continued ability to practice medicine with reasonable skill and safety. 

x 
09/23/2015 PRN Status Reports 

PRN shall provide monthly reports to the Board's Probation Committee with regard to 
Respondent's continued ability to practice medicine with reasonable skill and safety. 

x 
10/23/2015 PRN Status Reports 

PRN shall provide monthly reports to the Board's Probation Committee with regard to 
Respondent's continued ability to practice medicine with reasonable skill and safety. 

x 
11/23/2015 PRN Status Reports 

PRN shall provide monthly reports to the Board's Probation Committee with regard to 
Respondent's continued ability to practice medicine with reasonable skill and safety. 

x 
12/23/2015 PRN Status Reports 

PRN shall provide monthly reports to the Board's Probation Committee with regard to 
Respondent's continued ability to practice medicine with reasonable skill and safety. 

x 
01/23/2016 PRN Status Reports 

PRN shall provide monthly reports to the Board's Probation Committee with regard to 
Respondent's continued ability to practice medicine with reasonable skill and safety. 

x 
02/23/2016 PRN Status Reports 



 PRN shall provide monthly reports to the Board's Probation Committee with regard to 
Respondent's continued ability to practice medicine with reasonable skill and safety. 

x 
03/23/2016 PRN Status Reports 

PRN shall provide monthly reports to the Board's Probation Committee with regard to 
Respondent's continued ability to practice medicine with reasonable skill and safety. 

x 
04/23/2016 PRN Status Reports 

PRN shall provide monthly reports to the Board's Probation Committee with regard to 
Respondent's continued ability to practice medicine with reasonable skill and safety. 

x 
05/23/2016 PRN Status Reports 

PRN shall provide monthly reports to the Board's Probation Committee with regard to 
Respondent's continued ability to practice medicine with reasonable skill and safety. 

x 
06/23/2016 PRN Status Reports 

PRN shall provide monthly reports to the Board's Probation Committee with regard to 
Respondent's continued ability to practice medicine with reasonable skill and safety. 

x 
07/23/2016 PRN Status Reports 

PRN shall provide monthly reports to the Board's Probation Committee with regard to 
Respondent's continued ability to practice medicine with reasonable skill and safety. 

x 
08/23/2016 PRN Status Reports 

PRN shall provide monthly reports to the Board's Probation Committee with regard to 
Respondent's continued ability to practice medicine with reasonable skill and safety. 

x 
09/23/2016 PRN Status Reports 

PRN shall provide monthly reports to the Board's Probation Committee with regard to 
Respondent's continued ability to practice medicine with reasonable skill and safety. 

x 
10/23/2016 PRN Status Reports 

PRN shall provide monthly reports to the Board's Probation Committee with regard to 
Respondent's continued ability to practice medicine with reasonable skill and safety. 

x 
11/23/2016 PRN Status Reports 

PRN shall provide monthly reports to the Board's Probation Committee with regard to 
Respondent's continued ability to practice medicine with reasonable skill and safety. 

x 
12/23/2016 PRN Status Reports 

PRN shall provide monthly reports to the Board's Probation Committee with regard to 
Respondent's continued ability to practice medicine with reasonable skill and safety. 

x 
NO Subsequent Order 

The Board GRANTED Respondent's request for reinstatement subject to the following terms and 
conditions: 
1. Respondent shall be placed on probation for as long as he holds an active license to practice 
medicine in the State of Florida. 

x 
NO First Appearance 

Respondent shall appear before the Board's Probation Committee at the first meeting after said 
probation commences. 

x 
NO Last Appearance 
NO Triannual Appearance 



 
NO Pre-approval of Supervisor/Monitor 

NO Triannual Monitor Report 
Submit triannual reports, in affidavit form, which shall include: 
(1) Brief statement of why physician is on probation. 
(2) Description of probationer's practice. 
(3) Brief statement of probationer's compliance with terms of probation. 
(4) Brief description of probationer's relationship with supervising physician. 
(5) Detail any problems which may have arisen with probationer. 
b. Review 100% of Respondent's patient records at least once every month. 
c. Report to the Board any violation by the probationer of Chapter 456 and 458, Florida Statutes, 
and the rules promulgated pursuant thereto. 

x 
NO Tolling 
NO Direct Supervision 

Respondent shall not practice except under the direct supervision of a BOARD CERTIFIED 
physician fully licensed under Chapter 458 who has been approved by the Probation Committee. 
 
After 2 years of practice under the direct supervision as outlined above, and PRN's approval, 
Respondent may petition the Board to change his supervision level from direct to indirect 
supervision. 

x 



 
Actv Code Activity Description Activities: Activity Date 

04/21/2010 923 Mail Processed/Reviewed 
10/22/2010 901 Info pack mailed 
01/07/2011 931 Respondent Contacted CO 
01/11/2011 915 Mail Received in CMU 
03/10/2011 931 Respondent Contacted CO 
03/11/2011 916 Fax Received 
03/15/2011 915 Mail Received in CMU 
03/22/2011 923 Mail Processed/Reviewed 
04/11/2011 997 Reinstatement Denied 
08/18/2011 997 Reinstatement Denied 
09/15/2011 915 Mail Received in CMU 
10/17/2011 931 Respondent Contacted CO 
10/17/2011 932 CO Contacted Respondent 
10/17/2011 923 Mail Processed/Reviewed 
10/24/2011 932 CO Contacted Respondent 
03/15/2012 956 CO Contacted PSU 
03/16/2012 915 Mail Received in CMU 
03/23/2012 932 CO Contacted Respondent 
08/08/2012 932 CO Contacted Respondent 
10/04/2012 932 CO Contacted Respondent 
10/04/2012 937 CO File Sent to Warehouse 
08/13/2013 997 Reinstatement Denied 
08/28/2013 923 Mail Processed/Reviewed 
11/25/2013 915 Mail Received in CMU 
01/07/2014 962 Board Contacted CO 
01/07/2014 961 CO Contacted Board 
02/14/2014 941 Contact with IPN/PRN 
02/19/2014 941 Contact with IPN/PRN 
02/19/2014 941 Contact with IPN/PRN 
02/19/2014 941 Contact with IPN/PRN 
03/21/2014 941 Contact with IPN/PRN 
03/21/2014 941 Contact with IPN/PRN 
03/21/2014 923 Mail Processed/Reviewed 
04/24/2014 941 Contact with IPN/PRN 
04/24/2014 941 Contact with IPN/PRN 
04/24/2014 932 CO Contacted Respondent 

Contact History: Contact Date Letter Code Letter Description 
10/22/2010 NN179 INVOICE 
10/22/2010 NN156 CMU SUSPENDED LETTER W/ OBLIGATIONS 
02/14/2014 NN101 WARNING LETTER 

Attachments:     

          

pkg_enf_rpt_cmply.p_dxo002:05/15/2014 08:46:08  OND-- FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY -- Florida Department of Health 



 
CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 

 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 

 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all pages 
have been removed. 

 
SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS. 

 
456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 

furnished.— 
10)(a)All  patient  records  obtained  by  the  department  and  any  other  documents 

maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records  shall  not  be  available to  the  public  as  part  of  the  record  of  investigation for  and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 

 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
BOARD OF MEDICINE 

FILED 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPUTY CLERK 
CLERK .AngelSander.s 
DATE 	/ J3°/3- 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, 

Petitioner, 

VS. 

DOH CASE NO.: 2009-08871 
DOAH CASE NO.: 10-1678PL 
LICENSE NO.: ME0034315 

JOHN D. CAMPBELL, M.D., 

Respondent. 

ORDER GRANTING REINSTATEMENT  

THIS CAUSE came before the BOARD OF MEDICINE (Board), on 

December 6, 2013, in Orlando, Florida, for the purpose of 

considering Respondent's request for reinstatement of his 

license to practice medicine. The Respondent's license was 

suspended by Final Order filed in this matter on October 13, 

2010. Upon review of the documents submitted, and the argument 

of the parties, the Board GRANTED Respondent's request for 

reinstatement subject to the following terms and conditions: 

1. Respondent shall be placed on probation for as long as 

he holds an active license to practice medicine in the 

State of Florida subject to the following terms and 

conditions: 

1 



2. Respondent shall appear before the Board's Probation 

Committee at the first meeting after said probation 

commences, triannually, and at such other times requested 

by the Committee. Respondent shall be noticed by Board 

staff of the date, time and place of the Board's 

Probation Committee whereat Respondent's appearance is 

required. Failure of the Respondent to appear as 

requested or directed shall be considered a violation of 

the terms of probation, and shall subject the Respondent 

to disciplinary action. 

3. Respondent shall not practice except under the direct 

supervision of a BOARD CERTIFIED physician fully licensed 

under Chapter 458 who has been approved by the Probation 

Committee. The supervisory physician shall work in the 

same office with the Respondent. Absent provision for 

and compliance with the terms regarding temporary 

approval of a supervising physician set forth below, 

Respondent shall cease practice and not practice until 

the Probation Committee approves a supervising physician. 

Respondent shall have the supervising physician appear at 

the first probation appearance before the Probation 

Committee. Prior to approval of the supervising 

physician by the Committee, the Respondent shall provide 

2 



to the supervising physician a copy of the Administrative 

Complaint and Final Order filed in this case. A failure 

of the Respondent or the supervising physician to appear 

at the scheduled probation meeting shall constitute a 

violation of the Board's Final Order. Prior to the 

approval of the supervising physician by the committee, 

Respondent shall submit to the committee a current 

curriculum vitae and description of the current practice 

of the proposed supervising physician. Said materials 

shall be received in the Board office no later than 

fourteen days before the Respondent's first scheduled 

probation appearance. The attached definition of a 

supervising physician is incorporated herein. The 

responsibilities of a supervising physician shall 

include: 

a. Submit triannual reports, in affidavit form, which 

shall include: 

(1) Brief statement of why physician is on probation. 

(2) Description of probationer's practice. 

(3) Brief statement of probationer's compliance with 

terms of probation. 

(4) Brief description of probationer's relationship 

with supervising physician. 

3 



(5) Detail any problems which may have arisen with 

probationer. 

b. Review 100% of Respondent's patient records 

at least once every month. 

c. Report to the Board any violation by the 

probationer of Chapter 456 and 458, Florida Statutes, 

and the rules promulgated pursuant thereto. 

4. 	ALTERNATE MONITOR. In view of the need for ongoing and 

continuous monitoring or supervision, Respondent shall 

also submit the curriculum vitae and name of an alternate 

supervising/monitoring physician who shall be approved by 

Probation Committee. Such physician shall be licensed 

pursuant to Chapter 458, Florida Statutes, and shall have 

the same duties and responsibilities as specified for 

Respondent's monitoring/supervising physician during 

those periods of time which Respondent's 

monitoring/supervising physician is temporarily unable to 

provide supervision. Prior to practicing under the 

indirect supervision of the alternate monitoring 

physician or the direct supervision of the alternate 

supervising physician, Respondent shall so advise the 

Board in writing. Respondent shall further advise the 

Board in writing of the period of time during which 

4 



Respondent shall practice under the supervision of the 

alternate monitoring/supervising physician. Respondent 

shall not practice unless Respondent is under the 

supervision of either the approved supervising/monitoring 

physician or the approved alternate. 

5. 	CONTINUITY OF PRACTICE. 

a. TOLLING PROVISIONS. In the event the Respondent 

leaves the State of Florida for a period of 30 days or 

more or otherwise does not or may not engage in the 

active practice of medicine in the State of Florida, 

then certain provisions of the requirements in the 

Final Order shall be tolled and shall remain in a 

tolled status until Respondent returns to the active 

practice of medicine in the State of Florida. 

Respondent shall notify the Compliance Officer 10 days 

prior to his/her return to practice in the State of 

Florida. Unless otherwise set forth in the Final 

Order, the following requirements and only the  

following requirements  shall be tolled until the 

Respondent returns to active practice: 

(1) The time period of probation shall be tolled. 

(2) The provisions regarding supervision whether 

direct or indirect by the monitor/supervisor, and 

5 



required reports from the monitor/supervisor shall be 

tolled. 

b. ACTIVE PRACTICE. In the event that Respondent 

leaves the active practice of medicine for a period of 

one year or more, the Respondent may be required to 

appear before the Board and demonstrate the ability to 

practice medicine with reasonable skill and safety to 

patients prior to resuming the practice of medicine in 

the State of Florida. 

6. After 2 years of practice under the direct 

supervision as outlined above, and PRN's approval, 

Respondent may petition the Board to change his 

supervision level from direct to indirect supervision. 

7. Respondent must limit his practice of medicine to 

less than 20 hours per week. After 12 months, 

Respondent may petition the Probation Committee to 

lift this practice restriction provided the 

Professionals Resource Network (PRN) agrees that it is 

appropriate to do so. 

8. PRN shall provide monthly reports to the Board's 

Probation Committee with regard to Respondent's 

continued ability to practice medicine with reasonable 

skill and safety. 



eptity Agency Clerk 

DONE AND ORDERED this  04)41.--- 	day ofTlIke2....1Lbie  

2013. 

BOARD OF MEDICINE 

/)  
Al ison M. Dudley, J.D., Executive Director 
For Zachariah P. Zac 	h, M.D., Chair 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE  

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the 

foregoing Order has been provided by U.S. Mail to JOHN D. 

CAMPBELL, M.D., 529 Berkley Road, Auburndale, Florida 33823; and 

5805 Spirit Lake Road, Winter Haven, Florida 33880; to Allen R. 

Grossman, Esquire, Grossman, Furlow & Bayo, 2022-2 Raymond Diehl 

Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32308; and by interoffice delivery to 

Doug Sunshine, Department of Health, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin 

#C-65, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3253 this 

'- f -)eee,„hmDer,-  2013. 
day of 

7 







































































































Licensure Recommended Order:



Leon Rawner, M.D.  –
Refer to original tab 41









































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































 
 

Florida Board of Medicine 
June 6, 2014 

Full Board Supplemental 



 
 

Updated PCP List 



June 2014 PCP List 
Tampa Airport Marriott - Tampa, Florida

   (front and back pages)     

Tab 
No.

Type of Case Respondent
Lic. 

Type 
Case No. PCP Members

1 Settlement Agreement Harry A. Huntt Jr. M.D. 201312261 Averhoff & Goersch

2 Settlement Agreement Jeffrey I. Marder M.D. 201205859 Stringer

3 Settlement Agreement John E. Davis M.D. 201306049 El-Sanadi & Goersch

4 Settlement Agreement Michael C. Miranda M.D. 201316812 Orr & Tootle

5 Settlement Agreement David G. Lehrman M.D. 201102621 Orr & Tootle

6 Settlement Agreement Betty Jo Carter M.D. 201206026 Lage & Tootle

7 Settlement Agreement Juan Carlos Gutierrez M.D. 201306329 Fernandez & Tootle

8 Settlement Agreement Celestino Pedro Castellon M.D. 201217871 Fernandez & Tootle

9 Settlement Agreement Shlomo Pascal M.D. 201207498 Orr & Tootle

10 Settlement Agreement Angel Marty Garcia M.D. 200728234 & 201102938 N/A

11 Settlement Agreement Ronald Evan Wheeler M.D. 201203027, 201216053 & 201306688 El-Sanadi & Rosenberg

12 Settlement Agreement Randy Mitchell Dean M.D. 201112217 Rosenberg

13 Settlement Agreement Richard Douglas Curtis M.D. 201308285 Goersch & Orr

14 Settlement Agreement Scott Steven Katzman M.D. 201115871 N/A

15 Settlement Agreement Willem Bian Gwan Ouw M.D. 200912216 & 201005931 Goersch

16 Settlement Agreement Michael Dimayuga M.D. 201314254 Averhoff & Goersch

17 Settlement Agreement Rajan Kumar Sareen M.D. 201313101 El-Sanadi

18 Settlement Agreement Abdon S. Borges M.D. 201014416 N/A

19 Settlement Agreement Mohammed Naji M.D. 201216334 Lage & Rosenberg

20 Settlement Agreement Gregory Francis Paine M.D. 201312290 Rosenberg

21 Settlement Agreement Paul Joseph Chappano M.D. 201306379 El-Sanadi

22 Settlement Agreement Kevin Martin Hornsby M.D. 201006772 Thomas

23 Settlement Agreement Cesar A. Velilla M.D. 201117075 Stringer

24 Settlement Agreement John R. Chase M.D. 201308252 Lage & Tootle

25 Settlement Agreement Juan Manuel Pittaluga M.D. 201312878 Lage & Tootle

26 Settlement Agreement Kenneth A. Berdick M.D.
200914917, 200920820, 200924320 

& 201016933
Averhoff & Tootle

27 Settlement Agreement Murshid A. Al-Awady M.D. 201208648 Stringer

28 Settlement Agreement Joseph Michael Plunkett M.D. 201301695 Averhoff & Goersch

29 Settlement Agreement Michael J. Benjamin M.D. 201003039 Goersch

30 Settlement Agreement Steven Lee Case M.D. 201302731 Rosenberg

31 Settlement Agreement Idelfonso Quintero M.D. 201308250 Stringer

32 Settlement Agreement Paul Henry Wand M.D. 200923424 Stringer & Thomas

33
Hearing Not Involving Disputed Issues 
of Material Facts

Oscar Mendez Turino M.D. 201300331 Thomas

34
Hearing Not Involving Disputed Issues 
of Material Facts

James Michael Desantis M.D. 201309558 El- Sanadi

35 Recommended Order Peter V. Choy M.D. 201111189 El-Sanadi, Goersch & Stringer

36 Determination of Waiver Hearing Sheela Thakor Patel M.D. 201301164 N/A

37 Determination of Waiver Hearing Hoon Dae Yu M.D. 201114955 & 201100164 El-Sanadi & Goersch

38 Determination of Waiver Hearing Richard B. Karsh M.D. 201312120 Goersch & Orr

39 Determination of Waiver Hearing Kwame Asante-Nkansa M.D. 201314005 Averhoff & Goersch

40 Determination of Waiver Hearing Fadejimi Adelakun M.D. 201016999 N/A

44 Voluntary Relinquishment Thomas James Rodenberg M.D. 201212070 El-Sanadi & Goersch

45 Voluntary Relinquishment David Guy Malen M.D. 200718402 Stringer

46 Voluntary Relinquishment Anna Maria Kupczyk M.D. 201400279 Waived



June 2014 PCP List 
Tampa Airport Marriott - Tampa, Florida

   (front and back pages)     

47 Voluntary Relinquishment Abdur Razzak Tai M.D. 201213211, 200923303 & 201022800 Zachariah

48 Voluntary Relinquishment Christine Patricia Glavey M.D. 201309978 Averhoff & Goersch

49 Voluntary Relinquishment Riyaz A. Jummani M.D. 201108947 N/A
50 Voluntary Relinquishment Roger L. Gordon M.D. 201008233 & 201005889 N/A

51 Voluntary Relinquishment Miguel Antonio Montejo M.D. 201320235 Waived

52 Voluntary Relinquishment Ernestina Giron Schupke E.O. 201215437 & 201303335 Averhoff
65 Voluntary Relinquishment Harold E. Smith M.D. 201205273 Averhoff

69
Hearing Not Involving Disputed Issues 
of Material Facts

Clayton E. Linkous M.D. 201120524
Averhoff, Goersch, Rosenberg & 

Thomas
Updated 6/2/2014



 
 

       Additional Information 
 



 
 

   David Lehrman, M.D. –  
   Refer to original tab 5 

 



From: Julia <jmi@lubellrosen.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, May 28, 2014 1:09 PM 
To: Sanford, Crystal 
Subject: RE: Dr. Lehrman 
 
Just to confirm, by way of this email, the Board members are aware that 
the doctor won’t be at this  
meeting but he in no way is disregarding the need for his appearance.  He 
is only missing this meeting  
because of his wife’s condition and is certainly willing and able to 
attend a board meeting in the near  
future. 
 
Thanks, 
Julia Ingle  
 
From: Sanford, Crystal [mailto:Crystal.Sanford@flhealth.gov]   
Sent: Friday, May 23, 2014 2:02 PM  
To: Julia  
Subject: RE: Dr. Lehrman 
 
Hi Julia 
 
The way continuances work with Settlement Agreements is the matter will 
stay on the agenda.  If the  
Board does not approve the Settlement Agreement at the beginning of the 
meeting, we will hear the  
case.  The Board will determine at that time if they want to waive his 
appearance and move forward  
with the hearing or if they have questions for him, the matter will be 
rescheduled for the August Board  
Meeting.  I will provide this email to the members to assist with their 
decision.  If you need anything  
further, please let me know.  
Crystal A. Sanford, CPM  
Program Operations Administrator  
Department of Health (DOH) | Division of Medical Quality Assurance (MQA)  
Board of Medicine  
Phone: 850-245-4132 | Fax: 850-412-1261   
4052 Bald Cypress Way, # C03 | Tallahassee, FL. 32399-3256   
New Website: www.flboardofmedicine.gov   
Twitter: www.twitter.com/FLBoardofMed   
There have been changes to the license renewal process. Please visit 
www.CEAtRenewal.com to learn  
more.  
  
Mission: To protect, promote and improve the health of all people in 
Florida through integrated state,  
county, and community efforts. 
Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation.   
Purpose: To protect the public through health care licensure, enforcement 
and information.   
Focus: To be the nation's leader in quality health care regulation.   



Values: I.C.A.R.E. (Innovation, Collaboration, Accountability, 
Responsiveness, Excellence)   
PLEASE NOTE: Florida has a very broad public records law. Most written 
communications to or from  
State officials regarding State business are public records available to 
the public and media upon request.  
Your email communications may therefore be subject to public disclosure. 
From: Julia [mailto:jmi@lubellrosen.com]   
Sent: Friday, May 23, 2014 1:35 PM  
To: Sanford, Crystal  
Subject: FW: Dr. Lehrman 
 
Crystal, how are you? 
 
The email chain below is copied to you for assistance with rescheduling 
Dr. David Lehrman’s Board  
Appearance for his settlement agreement which is scheduled for June in 
Tampa.  Dr. Lehrman’s wife was  
recently diagnosed with metastatic breast cancer and he is completely 
occupied with taking care of  
her.  Is it possible to get his appearance postponed until August?  The 
doctor has only been practicing  
part time for the last couple of years and is not really working at all 
right now due to his wife’s grave  
condition. 
 
Any assistance would be greatly appreciated. 
 
Sincerely, 
Julia Ingle 
 
From: Zachem, Jonathan [mailto:Jonathan.Zachem@flhealth.gov]   
Sent: Friday, May 23, 2014 1:11 PM  
To: Julia  
Subject: RE: Dr. Lehrman 
 
Yes, Crystal can either direct you to the right person or help you with 
the request.  She will copy me with  
the decision and let me know if they reschedule.  Good luck. 
 
Jonathan R. Zachem, Assistant General Counsel   
Office of General Counsel   
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # C-65   
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3265   
Telephone: (850) 245-4444 Ext. 8117   
Email: Jonathan.Zachem@flhealth.gov   
Please note: Florida has a very broad public records law. Most written 
communications to or from state  
officials regarding state business are public records available to the 
public and media upon request. Your  
e-mail communications may therefore be subject to public disclosure.  
However, if this e-mail concerns anticipated or current litigation or 
adversarial administrative proceeding  



to which the Florida Department of Health is a party, this email is an 
attorney-client communication, and  
is, therefore, a limited access public document exempt from the 
provisions of Chapter 119, Florida  
Statutes.  
See Section 119.071(d)1., Florida Statutes (2010).   
DOH Mission: To protect, promote & improve the health of all people in 
Florida through integrated state,  
county, & community efforts. 
Vision: Healthiest State in the Nation   
Values: (ICARE)  
Innovation: We search for creative solutions and manage resources wisely.  
Collaboration: We use teamwork to achieve common goals & solve problems.  
Accountability: We perform with integrity & respect.  
Responsiveness: We achieve our mission by serving our customers & 
engaging our partners.  
Excellence: We promote quality outcomes through learning & continuous 
performance improvement.  
From: Julia [mailto:jmi@lubellrosen.com]   
Sent: Friday, May 23, 2014 1:09 PM  
To: Zachem, Jonathan  
Subject: RE: Dr. Lehrman 
 
Do I contact Crystal Sanford or can you refer me to the right person to 
ask? 
 
From: Zachem, Jonathan [mailto:Jonathan.Zachem@flhealth.gov]   
Sent: Friday, May 23, 2014 12:21 PM  
To: Julia  
Subject: RE: Dr. Lehrman 
 
Julia, 
 
  I am fine, thank you.  I hope you are well too. 
 
  I have no opposition to a continuance for medical reasons such as this.  
I would suggest you contact the  
Board office to see if they will send the case to the Chairman and get 
his approval. 
 
Jonathan R. Zachem, Assistant General Counsel   
Office of General Counsel   
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # C-65   
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3265   
Telephone: (850) 245-4444 Ext. 8117   
Email: Jonathan.Zachem@flhealth.gov   
Please note: Florida has a very broad public records law. Most written 
communications to or from state  
officials regarding state business are public records available to the 
public and media upon request. Your  
e-mail communications may therefore be subject to public disclosure.  
However, if this e-mail concerns anticipated or current litigation or 
adversarial administrative proceeding  



to which the Florida Department of Health is a party, this email is an 
attorney-client communication, and  
is, therefore, a limited access public document exempt from the 
provisions of Chapter 119, Florida  
Statutes.  
See Section 119.071(d)1., Florida Statutes (2010).   
DOH Mission: To protect, promote & improve the health of all people in 
Florida through integrated state,  
county, & community efforts. 
Vision: Healthiest State in the Nation   
Values: (ICARE)  
Innovation: We search for creative solutions and manage resources wisely.  
Collaboration: We use teamwork to achieve common goals & solve problems.  
Accountability: We perform with integrity & respect.  
Responsiveness: We achieve our mission by serving our customers & 
engaging our partners.  
Excellence: We promote quality outcomes through learning & continuous 
performance improvement.  
From: Julia [mailto:jmi@lubellrosen.com]   
Sent: Friday, May 23, 2014 10:39 AM  
To: Zachem, Jonathan  
Subject: Dr. Lehrman 
 
Mr. Zachem, how are you? 
 
I just got off the phone with my client, Dr. Lehrman and I need to ask if 
his appearance at the board  
meeting can be changed to August.  Dr. Lehrman’s wife was recently 
diagnosed with metastatic breast  
cancer and she is currently undergoing chemotherapy.  He needs to be with 
her for the treatments and  
has no one else to assist with the appointments and taking care of her at 
this point.   
 
I apologize for the timing of this, but figured I would ask as soon as I 
got off the phone with him. 
 
Thank you for your courtesies. 
 
Julia Ingle 
 
Julia M. Ingle, Esq.   
Lubell & Rosen, L.L.C.   
Museum Plaza, Suite 900   
200 S. Andrews Ave.   
Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33301   
954.755.3425 Office   
954.755.2993 Fax   
JMI@lubellrosen.com  
STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY AND PRIVILEGE 
This e-mail transmission, which includes its attachments, if any, is 
intended for a particular addressee(s) and may contain confidential 
and/or attorney-client or work product  



privileged material. If you are not the named addressee, or if this e-
mail transmission has been addressed to you in error, or it is otherwise 
not clear that you are the  
intended recipient (or his or her authorized agent), you are hereby 
notified that you have received this e-mail transmission in error and 
that any review, disclosure,  
distribution, dissemination, copying, printing, maintaining, saving, or 
other use of this e-mail transmission is strictly prohibited. Delivery of 
this e-mail transmission to any  
person other than the intended recipient(s) is not intended in any way to 
waive privilege or confidentiality. If you have received this e-mail 
transmission in error, please notify  
Lubell & Rosen, LLC immediately by reply e-mail to the sender and 
permanently delete the e-mail transmission and its attachments, if any. 
Thank you. 
 



 
 

   Juan Gutierrez, M.D. –  
   Refer to original tab 7 



 
CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 

 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 

 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all pages 
have been removed. 

 
SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS. 

 
456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 

furnished.— 
10)(a)All  patient  records  obtained  by  the  department  and  any  other  documents 

maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records  shall  not  be  available to  the  public  as  part  of  the  record  of  investigation for  and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 

 



 
 

   Mohammed Naji, M.D. –  
   Refer to original tab 19 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

Mohammed Naji, M.D. 
Post Office Box 795 
Glendora, California 91740 

STATE OF FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

Petitioner, 

BOARD OF MEDICINE 

) Case No.: 2012-16334 
) 
) 

10 vs. 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

MOTION TO CONTINUE 
DISCIPLINARY HEARING SET FOR 
JUNE 6, 2014; DECLARATION OF 
MOHAMMED NAJI, M.D.; 
DECLARATOIN OF GLENN E. STERN 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

MOHAMMED NAJI, M.D. 

Respondent. 

) 
______________________________ ) 

Hearing Date: June 6, 2013 
Time: 8:00a.m. 
Place: Tampa Airport Marriott 

4200 George J. Bean 
Outbound Parkway 
Tampa, Florida 33607 

TO THE STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH: 

Respondent Plaintiff Mohammed Naji ("Respondent") hereby requests that hi 

20 disciplinary hearing before the Florida Board of Medicine set for June 6, 2014 at 8:00 a.m. b 

21 continued to a future date because Respondent is scheduled to attend his daughter's graduatio 

22 

23 

24 

from The Institute of Knowledge ("Institute") on June 6, 2014 at 6:30 p.m. in Diamond Bar, 

California. 

25 Respondent's daughter's graduation ceremony is set for June 6, 2014. (Naji Decl., ~ 2). 

26 On May 12, 2014, the Institute emailed Respondent an invitation to the graduation ceremony. 

27 (Naji Decl., Ex. "A"). The graduation ceremony is being held at the Diamond Bar Cente 

28 

MOTION TO CONTINUE DISCIPLINARY HEARING SET FOR JUNE 6, 2014 
1 



1 located at 1600 Grand Ave., Diamond Bar, California. (Naji Decl., Ex. "B", see middle left hand 

2 
side of Exhibit "B"). 

3 

4 
When the date of the June 6, 2014 hearing was set with my attorney, Glenn E. Stern 

5 Esq., Mr. Stern was unaware that I needed to attend my daughter's graduation ceremony fro 

6 the Institute on June 6, 2014. (Stern Decl., ~ 2). 

7 Respondent respectfully requests that the June 6, 2014 disciplinary hearing before th 

8 
Florida Board of Medicine be continued to a later date that is acceptable to the Florida Board o 

9 
Medicine so Respondent can attend his daughter's graduation ceremony on June 6, 2014. (Naj· 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Decl., ~ 4). 

Dated: May 28, 2014 

MOTION TO CONTINUE DISCIPLINARY HEARING SET FOR JUNE 6. 2014 
2 



1 

2 

DECLARATION OF MOHAMMED NAJI, M.D. 

3 1. I, Mohammed Naji, M.D., declare that I am the Respondent in this matter, that I hav 

4 

5 

6 

7 

personal knowledge of the following facts and if called as a witness I would competent! 

testify thereto. 

2. Attached as Exhibit "A" is a true and correct copy of the notice of The Institute 

8 Knowledge's Annual Graduation Ceremony that was emailed to me by the Institute o 

9 Knowledge. 

10 3. On June 6, 2014, there is a graduation ceremony for students graduating from The Institute o 

11 

12 

13 

Knowledge. Attached hereto marked as Exhibit "B" and incorporated herein by reference i 

a true and correct copy of a notice from the June 6, 2014 graduation ceremony. 

14 4. My daughter's graduation from the Institute of Knowledge is a major event in her life and i 

15 is critical that I attend her graduation ceremony. Therefore, I am requesting that m 

16 

17 

18 

19 

disciplinary hearing before the Florida Board of Medicine set for June 6, 2014 be continued 

to a future date. 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that th 

20 foregoing is true and correct. Executed this 28th day of May, 2014 in Glendora, California. 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

I. 
Mohammed Naji, M.D., Declarant 

MOTION TO CONTINUE DISCIPLINARY HEARING SET FOR JUNE 6, 2014 
3 



EXHIBIT A 
i 



From: Institute of Knowledge <events@instituteofknowledge.com> 
Date: May 12, 2014, 12:42:38 PM PDT 
To: jalmajzoub@yahoo.com 
Subject: IOK's Annual Graduation Ceremony 1 Friday, June 6th, 2014 
Reply-To: events@instituteofknowledqe.com 

MAY 12, 2014 
newsletter 

In This Issue: !~~~~ .0~~~a~ -~~~?-~~ti_n~ ~~!~:ll_o~tJ ~:~d~y~ J~_r:: _?th, ?.~~~- _______ .. _____ _ 
~~~- ~~jj _If!!.?~: -~-O.rt'1~~~- B~i~: -~~: !.~C~~~- ~-~b~!Ci_ ~ rn:~nl-~~s-~rt'1 -~~~:~~ff_ 

Friday, June 6th, 2014! 
Institute of Knowledge's Annual Graduation Ceremony 

with Guest Speaker Shaykh Mohammed Faqih 

Join us to celebrate the hard work of our graduating students and those among them who 

https://email14.secureserver .net/view _print_ multi.php?uidArray=6166IINBOX&aEmlPart=O 5/28/2014 



EXHIBIT B 



Calendar Page 1 of 2 

iOK PODCAST SPEAKER REQUEST FORM ADMISSIONS a;ONTI\CT ~1UL TIMEDiA 

ABOUT SCIIOOL 

Annual Graduation Ceremonv 
' 

Friday, june 6, 2014 

6:30pm- 10:30 pm 

Diamond Bar Center 

Yon are invited .to 

FRIDAY, JUNE 6TH, 2014 

fOHl\VLfDG£ !S LIGHT 

The Insf:iiule of Knowledge Board of Dirf'ctors. 
Slwyhh Noma an Baig, Taller Di:Hiaaiwy & !mtiaz 

re1pJe.~i !he honor of your presence at the 
Graduat.ion cr Hijdh al<!?_,n-an et1mpletion ceremony. 

~"\tHERE 

GUEST SPEAKER 

SHAYKH MOHAC\11\fED FAQJH 
!MA~~,t AT HOC 

Dlanmnd Bar Onit><r 
1600 Grand Ave, Oiam<.md Bar 

WHEN 

Friday ,June 6th, 2014 
Gu""t Arrival: 6:JOJ>M 

SFi\:UNARY EXTENSION PROGHAMS 

PURCHASE TICKETS 
Number of Tickets 

1 Ticket $20.00 USD 

Narne 

Phone 

http:/ /www.instituteofknowledge.com/index.php/calendar/event/1/0tbabu9iqom 7 c 1 e40p4s... 5/28/2014 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

Mohammed Naji, M.D. 
Post Office Box 795 
Glendora, California 917 40 

STATE OF FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

Petitioner, 

BOARD OF MEDICINE 

) Case No.: 2012-16334 
) 
) 

10 vs. 
) DECLARATION OF GLENN E. STERN 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

MOHAMMED NAJI, M.D. 

Respondent. 

--------------) 

---

Hearing Date: June 6, 2013 
Time: 8:00a.m. 
Place: Tampa Airport Marriott 

4200 George J. Bean 
Outbound Parkway 
Tampa, Florida 33607 

DECLARATION OF GLENN E. STERN 
I 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

z = 12 "' U.l 
f-- ~ "' 
"' -"' z i: ~ 13 z 
w c- 'D 

...J .:-
0 u>< 
u. ~ ~ 14 0 
w 5~ u 
w:: 5 ~ 15 0.. 
0 

"' 
-o 

"' <( :S ...J 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

DECLARATION OF GLENN E. STERN 

1. I, Glenn E. Stern am Dr. Mohammed Naji, M.D.'s attorney. I have personal knowledge of 

the matters set forth herein, unless any matters are stated upon information and belief and 

as to those matters I believe them to be true. If called as a witness I would and could 

competently testify to the following: 

2. I advised on Dr. Naji's proposed settlement with the Board. At the time the date was set, I 

was unaware that Dr. Naji's daughter was graduating. 

3. Dr. Naji is a very strong family man who loves his daughter. I know that it is very 

important to he and his daughter that he attends the graduation. He has a large family that 

will also be attending. 

4. Graduation is a one time event and for a daughter a father's absence could be very hurtful. 

5. I believe it is appropriate that the Board grant him another date to attend this hearing. 

6. There is no prejudice to the Board or the people of the State of Florida as Dr. Naji lives in 

California and is not practicing in Florida at the present time. He is merely wishing to keep 

his license intact and restore his good name. 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the 

foregoing is true and correct . 

Executed in Los Angeles County on May 28, 2014. 

Glenn E. §iern 
/ 

Declaration of]Gienn E. Stern 



1

Sanford, Crystal

From: Sanford, Crystal
Sent: Friday, May 30, 2014 1:12 PM
To: 'glennstern@sternatlaw.com'
Cc: Reynolds, Patrick
Subject: RE: Dr. Naji Matter

Dear Mr. Stern 

 

Thank you for your email.  This matter will remain on the agenda as scheduled for June 6
th

.  When the Settlement 

Agreement is presented, the Board will make a decision about whether to waive Dr. Naji’s appearance or require him to 

appear at the next meeting.  They may also waive his appearance and accept the Settlement Agreement.  If that occurs, 

you and your client will receive a Final Order approximately two weeks after the hearing date.  If you need anything 

further, please do not hesitate to contact this office.   

Crystal A. Sanford, CPM 
Program Operations Administrator 
Department of Health (DOH) | Division of Medical Quality Assurance (MQA) 
Board of Medicine 
Phone: 850-245-4132 | Fax: 850-412-1261  
4052 Bald Cypress Way, # C03 | Tallahassee, FL. 32399-3256  
New Website: www.flboardofmedicine.gov  
Twitter: www.twitter.com/FLBoardofMed  
There have been changes to the license renewal process. Please visit www.CEAtRenewal.com to learn more. 
 
Mission: To protect, promote and improve the health of all people in Florida through integrated state, county, and 
community efforts. 

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation.  
Purpose: To protect the public through health care licensure, enforcement and information.  
Focus: To be the nation's leader in quality health care regulation.  
Values: I.C.A.R.E. (Innovation, Collaboration, Accountability, Responsiveness, Excellence)  
PLEASE NOTE: Florida has a very broad public records law. Most written communications to or from State officials 
regarding State business are public records available to the public and media upon request. Your email communications 
may therefore be subject to public disclosure. 

From: Reynolds, Patrick  
Sent: Friday, May 30, 2014 12:28 PM 

To: Sanford, Crystal 

Subject: FW: Dr. Naji Matter 

 
Ms. Sanford, 

 

Dr. Mohammed Naji, through counsel, has requested that his case be continued to the next Board meeting.  His 

settlement agreement is at Tab No. 19 for the June 6
th

 Board meeting.  His motion for continuance is attached. 

 

J. Patrick Reynolds 
Assistant General Counsel 
Prosecution Services Unit 
Florida Department of Health 
 
 

From: Glenn Stern [mailto:glennstern@sternatlaw.com]  

Sent: Thursday, May 29, 2014 9:10 PM 



2

To: Reynolds, Patrick 

Subject: Dr. Naji Matter 

 
Dear Mr. Reynolds, 
 
Attached please find Dr. Naji’s motion for a later hearing date.  If for any reason it does not come through 
please let me know. 
 
Thank you for your courtesy throughout this process. 
 
Regards, 
 
Glenn Stern 
 
 
LAW OFFICE OF GLENN E. STERN 
Glenn E. Stern 
Attorney at Law 
333 West Foothill Boulevard, 
Glendora, CA 91741 
626.335.6844 
213.232.7111 Fax 
glennstern@sternatlaw.com   
 
 
 



 
 

   Cesar Velilla, M.D. –  
   Refer to original tab 23 



May 19, 2014 

Via electronic mail and regular US. mail 

Alli son Dudley, Esquire, 
Executive Director- Board of Medicine 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin A-02 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 

Re: DOH v. Cesar Velilla, M.D. 

Dear Allison: 

DOH Case No. 2011-17075 
Patient: C.A. 
Our File No. 00036495.0000 I 

Bruce D. Lamb, Esquire 
(8 13) 222-6605 

blamb@gunster.com 

The settlement agreement for the above-referenced case is scheduled to be presented to the 
Board of Medicine at its June 2014 meeting. We have previously submitted a letter and materials on 
behalf of Dr. Yelilla for distribution to members of the Board for their consideration in conjunction 
with the settlement agreement. We are writing to provide additional information that was recently 
recei ved regarding the quality of Dr. Velilla's medical records. 

Dr. Vel ilia recently began the FMA medical records course which is required as part of the 
proposed settlement of this case. As part of this course, Dr. Velilla was asked to submit copies of his 
own medical records for evaluation by the course instructors. Dr. Velilla's medical records were 
deemed to be "excel lent" overall. We are enclosing a copy of the medical records evaluation that 
was provided to Dr. Yelilla. We believe that thi s information is germane to the Board ' s 
consideration of the proposed settlement agreement and request that you distribute this information to 
the members of the Board for their consideration in conjunction with the information that has 
previously been provided. Thank you for your assistance. 

BDL/ppb 
Enclosure 

cc: Cesar Velilla, M.D. 

Very truly yours, 

/; c. .. l . . /_ C- (______ .. v/ -/~ 
Bruce D. Lamb 
Paula P. Bentley 

Andre Ourso, Asst. General Counsel 

WPB ACTIVE 592 1689.1 
- 401 East Jackson Street. Suite 2500 Tampa. Fl33602 p 813-228·9080 f 813-228·6739 GUNSTER.COM 

_, 
-4 ..... r \' 
. -.. 

-::: 
r-.:- . 
N ... 
:r-·· 
-~ ,... .. . 
CJ 

~ 

I.. ,ill \ 

Fort Lauderdale I Jncksonville I M1ami I Orlando I Palm Beach I Stuart I Tallahassee I Tampa I The Flonda Keys I Vero Beach I West Palm Beach 



IV. PLEASE COMMENT ON ANY OF THE ABOVE ITEMS WHICH WERE MARKED uNO" AND USE ., 
THIS SECTION TO MAKE SUGGESTIONS WHICH YOU FEEL WOULD HELP IMPROVE THE 
OVERALL QUALITY OFTHIS MEDICAL RECORD. 

{Jr. ([eJ£1{~ mP. / ,g.-, lvlf;-~- ao. 

(J 

-meducl ll=t ~tc, I Hx. allt1w../ ~!ltdo~d 

S/17 /t(. ' 

- He:· t: PE" -::: A <~-P .. &rr: ~/,tv ~ /ac;tc.;.l tA!'1~~¢rr-4: • 

- Cl1vl.Jb...("-Av~r ~~ '1?/:'~m.ff ;4, .tfruqr;:/n::, t: n9;.;/ 

- t"t(Pcfr ./idL ~t, ratl~ ~pi/h/~d /A a ~Jr· .P'~.J(f~ 
- Vth:-1 .rt~/1/' yy ~~ eP-~t. u_,; . .,. . 

, 
-flu- f:v-.-.pfv dv~J. 

JJ,,Vt.!r h ~""' ,• -(2,~¢- r./ ~~/ .f'e~r~ cJ...,.r A!n/ Cct=-*Mcw-e 

<j&! F#cch o/' ~df ~~~ , 

I . '/'C'/~ .. 

.. 



 
 

   Juan Pittaluga, M.D.  –  
   Refer to tab 25 



K~_,..,,~IHj. M~I/C.Ht, ~\QIIIH 

AV" PREP.MINENT~ PEER RhVIF.W RATBD 

FLORIDA BAR BoARD CERTIFIED TN STATE & FEDERAL GovERNMENT & ADMINISTRATIVE PRACTICE 

LJ:.~Ul:. J. PAL <..H, t\QL IR~ • \11< HAH M. PAitRI'>H, ~'QL 11u "o~ to I "~H" 

Via Electronic Mail 
Allison M. Dudley, Exec. Director 
Board of Medicine 
Department of Health 
Board of Medicine 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-03 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3253 

June 2, 2014 

RE: Pittaluga, Juan Manuel , M.D. - MESO 173 I FL DOH vs. Pittaluga, M.D. , Case # 2013-12878 

Dear Allison : 

This will serve as Dr. Pittaluga ' s timely compliance with the Department' s reporting 
requirement associated with his May 6, 2014 plea to a ·'cocaine" charge in Winchester Count, 
Virginia and a Deferred Disposition Order (attached) withholding adjudication and placing 
him on Probation. Additionally, we would request that his Florida Practitioner Profile be 
updated consistent with this Order. 

As reflected within Dr. Pittaluga ' s Florida License Verification, he is not currently 
practicing medicine in Florida but, the subject " impairment" matter from the State of Virginia is 
set for disposition by the Florida Board of Medicine on June 6, 2014 with a proposed " indefinite 
suspension" until his medical licenses elsewhere are full y restored. Dr. Pittaluga surrendered his 
DEA permits in 2013. Accordingly, we would urge that another Florida investigation duplicative 
of these matters is not necessary. However, should you require anything further, please advise us. 

Sincerely, 

Kenneth J . Metzger 

cc: Juan Manuel Pittaluga, M .D. 

1637 METROPOLJTAN BouLEVARD, SUITE c-2 • TALLAHASSEE, FLoRIDA 32308 • PHONI! 8so.329.7500 • FAx: 85D-329.7501 • www. METZGERANoAssoCIATES.COM 



VIRGINIA: 

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE CITY OF WINCHESTER 

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA 

v Docket No: CR12001104-00 

JUAN M PITTALUGA 
Fax a copy of this order to: 
LOCAL BASED PROBATION/ 
OLD DOMINION COURT 
SERVICES 

DEFERRED DISPOSITION ORDER 

On this 6TH day of MAY, 2014 came the Assistant Attorney for the Commonwealth and the 
accused, who appeared in person with PHILLIP S GRIFFIN Esquire, his attorney. A Court 
repOrter was present and duly sworn. . 

· The att~mey for ~e defendant moved the Court to enter a plea to the indictment. The defendant 
w:aived full reading ofthe indictment and upon inquiry as to the pleathe defendant responded he .· 
would stipulate the facts were sufficient to sustain a finding of guilt in this matter. 

In accordance with the plea an4 the evidence, the Court withheld adjudication and continued this 
matter from today to MAY 19, 2015,at 10:00 AM FOR Final Disposition as contemplated in the 
Written Plea Agreement 

. The Court continued his· bail and on the following conditions: 

1. The defendant shall be of good be~avior and violate no laws of this Commonwealth. 
3 The defendant shall be subject to a curfew when she shall not be outside his place of 

residence between the hours of llPM-6 AM except for medical emergencies or 
employment purposes. 

4 The defendant shall perform 100 hours of community Service administered through the 
Local Based Probation Agency/Old Dominion Court Services. A separate order was 
entered concerning the Community Service Hours. (SEE ATTACHED) 

5 
If compliant, then the charges will be reduced to Possession of Cocaine in violation of 18.2-250 
and he will be placed on First Offender Probation. Court costs will be assessed upon 
conviction or upon placement on First offender Probation. 

Entered on MAY 6, 2014 

John E. Wetsel, Jr., Judge 

1 of<.... 



. ·--···- -·· .. -·----------------------------------

OLD DOMINION COURT SERVICES 
LOCAL PROBATION REFERRAL 

COMMONWEAL Til OF VIRGINIA: In Tt&County Of: _\J.;;;_'-"'.....:~__;;;;;;;...;__,..t~------------
0 General District Court 0 Juvenile & Domestic Court J2f Circuit Court 

Defendant :j\JA.,v U.. ~~lu~4... Docket No(s) ___;C~R~I -:~:.....O;....O.;;;.....;t:.....l.....;O~~...~...l ____ _ 

-· --··--. -~- ._ .... . _______ -- ~~D I_ ~-~-'- -~!~~~--- ~~~~~s)_ PW:( 0 ~~ <~ INl! 

Code Section(s) 

Misdemeanor 

Phone Number ( S'fo ) [J' · Bl I Convicted 

The following sentence bas been imposed: 
Fine: ____ _ Fine Suspended: ___ _ 

Jail: ----- days/montm 

The defen~nt shall appear again before this court on: 

Jail Suspended:----- days/months 

m"v c~, ~o ,~ 
Supervised probation until:----------------

[j{ The defendant is ordered to complete lOU hours of community service by: m A V I· ~~ I .Y 
0 2. The defendant is ordered to make restitution to:·----------------'----'--.....;.--'"---'---·-'-, , 

in the amount of: s __________ o.n or before: _________ _.:........; ___ ___,. ___ _ 

0 3. The defendant is ordered to .pay court costs and fines in the. amount of$--------''---- to this· court, (ln ·or . · 
before: ____________________________________ _ 

The defendant shall submit to random breath/urine tests as required by the OOCS-LPA. and may· be required to pay for such 

. ./testing at the time the test is performed. (Drug testing - $20.oo; Breath Testing - $5) . . . . . 

~- The defendant shall actively p~rticipate in any counseling, ~d~cati~n or natment program as required by .the Probation 

Officer, and shall be responsible for the cost of any such program. 

0 6. Anger Management to be completed by: ·· .. · --

{;17. Other' C.6rom'-ll'bj Svvt~o:. -to b<t. tfld1<=l'tll b ', ~ ·IY 

~ ODCS LP A is to file a report of Community Service hours completed. 

Intervention Fee: punuant to Article 2 (53.1-185.2) of Chapter 5 ofTitle 53.1 oftheCodeofVirginia. Old Domiulon LPA wm 
assess an iRteqention fee ofSISO.OO fgr six-(§) mgnths of supervision and SJZS.OI for ene-- (1) rear of s¥penislgn. Fees sl!.all 
be paid by monev order only. Fees shall be waived for offenders determined to be indigent in accordance with OCCS-LPA 
procedures. If so determined. the referring Judge may at their discretion order a reduced fee. Offenders failing to pay fees owed may 
be ~bject to litigation or may be submitted to the Virginia Department of Taxation as specified in the Virginia Set-OffDebt Program 
Information Guide. 

DISTRIBUTION: WHITE- COURT PINK- DEFENDA.l\IT 



K~NM I H J. M~ 1/(.~R, ~'()(.IR~ 
AV" PR.Ef.M INENT' " PRER. REVJEW RATED 

FLDRJDA BAR BoARD CERTIFIED 1:-1 STATE & FEDERAL GovERNMENT cs' AoMJNISTRATJVE PRACTICE 

Lt~utJ . P.~u.,H, ~.~Ql.JR~ • \1KH~H M. P.~nRJ,H, ~\QLIR~ ·ot cot "'~L" 

June 2, 2014 

Crystal Sanford, Program Op. Administrator 
(Board Meeting Coordinator) 
Florida Board of Medicine 
4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C-03 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-3253 

RE: FL DOH vs. Juan Manuel Pittaluga, M.D., Case # 2013-12878 

Dear Ms. Sanford: 

This letter with the Settlement Agreement previously submitted are in support of resolving 
the above case matter at the June 6, 2014 Board of Medicine meeting in Tampa, Florida. The 
purpose of this letter with supporting documents is to provide members of the Board with 
information perhaps not previously provided for their consideration in conjunction with the 
proposed Settlement Agreement. Please take the necessary steps to assure this letter with any 
attachments is provided to the Board in an "addendum" to already filed materials as the 
undersigned counsel was just recently retained. 

Case Overview 

This is a very unfortunate case involving a well trained and experienced physician that was a 
Board Certified Cardiologist licensed in Florida 27 years with no prior violations or complaints 
but in recent years practicing in Virginia where he was suspended from practice due to 
impairment. Married with three children, his eldest daughter was diagnosed with an advanced 
case of leukemia undergoing prolonged and expensive treatment at John Hopkins in Baltimore, 
MD. Following her recovery she experienced many personal challenges as did his son, Enrique 
attending the University of Virginia. These difficulties only compounded Dr. Pittaluga' s 
personal and financial challenges with being unable to find a suitable medical partner to share in 
his crushing overhead associated with a new office facility he had opened. Dr. Pittaluga fell 
victim to a cocaine addiction which he continues to battle today with the support of his family. 

1637 METROPOLITAN BOULEVARD, SUITE C-2 • TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32308 • PHONE 850·329-7500 • FAX: 850.329.7501 • WWW.METZGERANDASSOC!ATES.COM 



Juan Manuel Pittaluga, MD's Credentials 

Dr. Pittaluga received his initial medical training in the Dominican Republic where after he 
began his medical career in a Rural Health Center. He came to the United States in 1985 
completing an Internal Medicine residency, a Critical Care fellowship and Cardiology fellow 
ship at the University of Miami, becoming a U.S. citizen and practicing in the State of Florida 
until June 1994. He subsequently returned to Florida and practiced only a brief period from April 
to December 2008. (See attached Curriculum Vitae and Florida License Verification as a 
COMPOSITE EXHIBIT) 

cc: Diane Kiesling, Asst. Gen. Counsel 
Juan Manuel Pittaluga, M.D. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Kenneth J. Metzger 



COMPOSITE EXHIBIT 



Curriculum Vitae 
of 

JUAN M. PITTALUGA, M.D. 
2431 Springsbury Road 
Berryville, VA 22611 
Email: jpittaluga@mac.com 

CONTACT INFORMATION: 
Fax: (855) 371-7416 
Cell: (540) 550-1911 

PERSONAL: DOB: January 6, 1959 

POB: Santo Domingo, Dominican Republic 
Citizenship: United States 

Married to Maria A. Bogaert, MD 

Three Children: Enrique (26), Laura (21) and 
Gabriella (19) 

EDUCATION: 

1989-92 
Cardiology Fellow 
UNIVERSITY OF MIAMI, JACKSON MEMORIAL HOSPITAL 
Miami, Florida 

1988-89 
Critical Care Fellow 
UNIVERSITY OF MIAMI, MIAMI VA MEDICAL CENTER 
Miami, Florida 

1985-88 
Internal Medicine Resident 
UNIVERSITY OF MIAMI, JACKSON MEMORIAL HOSPITAL 
Miami, Florida 



1984-85 
Physician 
SOCIAL SERVICE PROGRAM 
Rural Health Clinic 
Haina, Dominican Republic 

1979-84 
MEDICAL SCHOOL 
UNIVERSIDAD NACIONAL PEDRO H. URENA 
Santo Domingo, Dominican Republic 

1976-79 
PRE-MED 
UNIVERSIDAD NACIONAL PEDRO H. URENA 
Santo Domingo, Dominican Republic 

HONORS/ACTIVITIES: 

Doctor in Medicine 
MAGNA CUM LAUDE 
UNIVERSIDAD NACIONAL PEDRO H. URENA 
Santo Domingo, Dominican Republic 

1989 Recipient of Sodi-Pallares Award 
Section of Clinical Electrophysiology 
University of Miami 
Miami, Florida 

EXPERIENCE: 

Skill Set: Diagnostic Cardiac Catheterization, 
Coronary Interventions including Angioplasty, Stenting, 
IVUS, Rotoblator, EKG interpretation, Nuclear Scan 
Interpretations, Performance and Interpretation of 
Trans-esophageal Echocardiograms, Trans-thoracic 
echocardiography. 

Jan 2014 - present Substance abuse Rehabilitation 
Caron Foundation 
My First Year recovery program Caron Foundation 

Jan 2014 - present Substance abuse Rehabilitation 
Rivendell 



White Post, VA 

Dec 2013 - Jan 2014 Substance abuse Rehabilitation 
Caron Foundation 
Wernersville, PA 

Sep 2012 - Jan 2013 Substance abuse Rehabilitation 
Williamsburg, Virginia 
Nashville, Tennessee 

Feb 2012 - July 2012 
Physician 
Heart and Vascular Institute of Winchester 
Winchester, Virginia 22601 

May 2009 - Jan 2012 
President/Physician 
Valley Cardiovascular 
Winchester, Virginia 

Apr 2008 - Dec 2008 
Physician 

Consultants, Inc. 
22601 

Internal Medicine-Cardiology Practice 
Garcia & Pastoriza, P.A. 
Miami, Florida 

Jul 94 - Mar 2008 
Physician/Partner 
Selma Medical Associates, Inc. 
104 Selma Drive 
Winchester, Virginia 22601 

Jul 94 - Dec 2011 
Attending Physician and Consulting/ Interventional 
Cardiologist 
Winchester Medical Center 
Winchester, Virginia 

Jan. 94 - Jun 94 
Instructor of Medicine 
Cardiac Transplant Program 
Division of Cardiology 
University of Miami 
Miami, Florida 

Oct. 93 - Dec. 93 



Staff Physician 
City Hospital, Inc. 
Martinsburg, West Virginia 

Aug. 92 - Oct. 93 
Physician 
Shenandoah Community Health Center 
Martinsburg, West Virginia 

Jul. 90 - Jun 92 
Physician 
Internal Medicine-Cardiology Practice 
Garcia & Pastoriza, P.A. 
Miami, Florida 

LICENSURE/CERTIFICATIONS: 

1991 AMERICAN BOARD OF INTERNAL MEDICINE (Diplomate) 

1993 AMERICAN BOARD OF CRITICAL CARE MEDICINE 
(Expired) 

AMERICAN BOARD OF CARDIOVASCULAR DISEASES 
(Expired) 

Board of Interventional Cardiology (Diplomate) 

Nuclear Boards Certified (2007) 

West Virginia Medical License#: 16867, (suspended) 

Florida Medical License#: ME 50173 (expired) 

Virginia Medical License#: 0101050179 (suspended) 

Maryland Medical License #: D-45292 (inactive) 

ECFMG #: 367-821-6 

DEA #: Surrendered, 2013 

PUBLICATIONS: 



1. Bogaert MA, Pittaluga JM, Bogaert Diaz H. 
Lepromatous Leprosy: Frequency of Leprosy Reactions in 
the Dominican Republic. Dominican Congress of 
Dermatology; October 1984. 

2. Koenig RE, Pittaluga JM, Bogaert MA, Castro M, 
Nunez F, Viloria I, Santo Domingo, Dominican Republic: 
Del Villar L, Calzada M, Santiago, Dominican Republic; 
Levy JA, San Francisco, California. Prevalence of 
Antibodies to the Human Immunodeficiency Virus in 
Dominicans and Haitians in the Dominican Republic. 
JAMA 1987 Feb 6; 257(5): 631-4. 

3. De Marchena EJ, Asch JA, Martinez JM, Wozniak PM, 
Pittaluga JM, Breuer G, Caralis PV, Chakko S, Kessler 
KM. Silent Myocardial Ischemia in Patients with 

Treated Angina. Abstract 62nd Scientific Sessions of 
the American Heart Association: November 13-16, 1989. 
New Orleans, Louisiana. 

4. De Marchena EJ, Asch JA, Martinez JM, Wozniak PM, 
Pittaluga JM, Breuer G, Caralis PV, Chakko S, Kessler 
KM, Myerburg RJ. Prognosis of Patients Medically 
Converted from Angina to Silent Ischemia. Abstract 

63rd Scientific Sessions of the American Heart 
Association: November 12-15, 1990. Dallas, Texas. 

5. Bauerlein JE, De Marchena EJ, Pittaluga JM, 
Martinez JM, Bilsker M. Accuracy of Catheter Placement 
During Cardiac Biopsy in Patients Following Orthotopic 
Cardiac Transplantation. Abstract American College of 
Cardiology, April 12-16, 1992. Dallas Texas. 

6. De Marchena EJ, Asch JA, Martinez JM, Wozniak PM, 
Posada DJ, Pittaluga JM, Breuer G, Chakko S, Kessler 
KM, Myerburg, RJ. Usefulness of Persistent Silent 
Myocardial Ischemia in Predicting a High Cardiac Event 
Rate in Men with Medically Controlled Stable Angina 
Pectoris. American Journal of Cardiology, 1994; vol. 



73:390-92. 



JUAN MANUEL PITTALUGA 
LICENSE NUMBER: MES0173 

Ga-.eral 
Information 

Profession 

MEDICAL DOCTOR 

License Verification 
Data As Of 5/20/2014 

License/ Activity Status Controlled Substance Prescriber 

DELINQUENT I {fJ NO (fJ 

License Expiration Date License Orig inal Issue Date 

1/ 31/ 2014 02/ 26/ 1987 

Discipline on File 

NO 

Address of Record 

Public Complaint~ 
YES Link To Complaint 

NOT PRACTICING IN FLORIDA 

Printer Friendly Version ~ 

This practitioner has indicated that they are not currently practicing their profession in the State of Florida 
at this time. The practitioner may choose to begin practice at anytime provided that the license status is 
active . If the practitioner has resumed practice, the practitioner must update their practice location address. 
If you have any questions, please contact the department at 850-488-0595. 

The information on this page is a secure, primary source for license 
verification provided by The Florida Department of Health, Division of 
Medical Quality Assurance. This website is maintained by Division staff 
and is updated immediately upon a change to our licensing and 
enforcement database. 



 
 

   James Desantis, M.D. –  
   Refer to original tab 34 



.. .. 

James Michael DeSantis MD 
..... . .. 

Date: May 29,2014 

Send 'J'o: 

Att~~ntion: 

State of Florida Department of Health 

MB. Crystal Sanford 

Oilicc L()Catinn: Tallahassee, Florida 

Frnm: Dr. James DeSamis 

Office Location: 

Phone Number: 678-361-3028 

Total Pages Including Cover: 31\ 

Urgent D Reply ASAP D Plea·~e Comment D 

Comments: 

Ms. Sanford, 

I have included my evidence for my defense. Thank you. 

....... 
390 l Regas Drive 
Maricttil, GA .300Cl6 
Phone: 678-361-3028 
E· Mail; jdesantismd@gmail.com 

Fax 
Please: Review D For Your Information D 



Page I of5 

May 30,2014 

To Whom It May Concern: 

I, Dr. James Michael DeSantis, present myself in response to Florida's 
investigation into the incident that occurred on Sept. 28, 2012. I choose to 
represent myself in this matter, and will do my utmost to adhere to legal standards. 

I have been a physician for over thirty years with a stellar track record. I have only 
been named in three malpractice suits, all of which were dismissed without moneys 
paid. Up until this event, I have never been accused of any misconduct, drug or 
alcohol issues, or personal problems. I am a family man. I am a physician who 
values his patients and their wellbeing. I never drank or took a sleep aid on a day I 
was scheduled to work; even this incident occurred on my day off in the privacy of 
my hotel room. 

Although I stand here today on my own, I am fortunate and grateful for the 
supporting team behind me. My wife of thirty years, Cheri, daughter, Megan, son· 
in-law, Ryan, and grandson, Fox are with me in spirit and I thank them for their 
unfaltering love and encouragement. Also, my friends, colleagues, employers, 
physicians, and others have given and continu.e to give their support. And I am 
very grateful to each and every one of them back home in Atlanta. 

I would like to first address the allegations made by the physicians at Talbott 
Recovery Center. 

I freely and fully submitted to a three-day evaluation at Talbott in an effort to 
satisfy the Georgia Board. This was nothing more than an isolated event that 
occurred directly from an adverse reaction to a legally prescribed medication, 
Ambien, by Dr. Deborah Hebert one of my ER directors. At the time, and in fact 
not until many months later, did I learn of Talbott's reputation and suits against 
them. I would like to stress that they made their determinations before I even 
arrived. Furthermore, they gave their recommendations without receiving my 
negative drug tests. Lastly, they stood to fmancially gain. Per Dr. Davis, "I have 
seen the self-serving evaluations they perform on physicians hundreds of times (all 



Page 2 of5 

recommend expensive in patient treatment with them.) I was an expert witness in 
3 suits against them by MDs-all settled for $1,000,000 each." 

Additionally, as my evidence states, Drs. W. Michael Brown, Nick DeFillipis, 
Jeffrey Klapper, and Dave Davis have all concluded that I do not meet criteria for 
alcohol abuse or dependence. 

Next, I would like to explain the cause of the incident. 

With the exception of this isolated event, I have never taken a sleep aid and 
consumed alcohol on the same day. Furthermore, I never consumed a sleep aid or 
alcohol on the day I was scheduled to work. I arn a conscientious physician, who 
... ~ .... l.~ ...... 1...: .. r-"': .... .-...... ..J 1-~ .. T -~~1 .J =~ 

,,_ 
person. This event occurred on my day off. 

As Dr. Brown explains, "I fi1mly believe that the incident in September 2012 was 
associated with an amnesic effect ofhis use of a legally prescribed sleeping agent, 
Ambien, and that this lead him to consuming an uncharacteristic amount of alcohol 
during his personal time." He also states, "I have known Dr. James DeSantis for 
greater than 25 years on a professional basis and for greater than 20 on a personal 
basis ... l have never seen him intoxicated, and certainly not in a professional 
setting." And again, he stresses, this incident was "due to Ambien toxicity." 
Importantly, a mere three months after this occurred, in January 2013, the FDA's 
recommended dose was cut in half. This suggests that the legally prescribed dose 
of 1 Omg was unsafe and incorrect, and supports Dr. Brown's conclusion. 

At this point, I would like to address the correctness, appropriateness, and 
adequateness ofDr. Dave Davis' plan. 

Dr. Davis' plan is working for me and has worked for others. At this point, I have 
been seeing him for ten months. In August 2013, Dr. Davis states, "I believe 
that ... the program, more than any other program, guarantees that Dr. DeSantis will 
not abuse drugs or alcohoL" In April2014, he writes, "Dr. DeSantis has done 
extremely well on his program and been entirely alcohol free since 9/28/12." The 
same month he states, "The program that Dr. DeSantis is currently involved in here 
has been extremely successful for physicians." And "Dr. DeSantis' use of 
Antabuse has been supervised carefully and a log of its administration has been 
kept. This log has been perfect since the beginning.'' 



Page 3 of5 

By the time I came to Dr. Davis, I had already voluntarily abstained from alcohol 
for ten months. I had drug tests during this time to prove that, including the ones 
conducted (though ignored) by Talbott. 

But it is not only Dr. Davis who sees value in his plan. Dr. Nick DeFillipis states, 
" ... I see no reason why your current monitoring program would require any 
modification ... [Y]ou have been fully compliant with the program, and Dr. Davis is 
closely monitoring this. The fact that you returned to full time work for three 
months without difficulty attests to the effectiveness of the current program." 

Also, Dr. Paul Earley, head of the Georgia PHP states, "one of the suggestions I 
have, is to think about having a private advocate do this versus the Georgia 
Professional Health Program." He also specifically suggests Dr. Davis as the 
physician to carry out this program. "Dr. Dave Davis and a few other[s] ... [are] 
really advocates of physicians' heath. And they can testifY in front ofthe Board. 
And the Board still accepts those types of organizations to do this work ... Dr. 
Davis. who has a long tra.ct mcori! with thP- Ro~rrl nnd..,rstand[s] thi!> "v'hole deal. 

A 1.,. 1 .,. ... ....,..• ......, "" .. ..,... , J: ····- ---·· ~·--....o ---··o~ ..,_ -~ 

Q;l'u''\..-1 .,......r:~t,...h ;.,., +l-.1"' ),;~;, o£ ~~h,a+;.o:n.." '1}~'*1, 4:\,.,i~ i!n. :n:a.:l:'l..J., Dr. D~]..,.., . .._11).•:-:A 

~ifacompl~tefY~iipportect:·-·' -- - --- ·--- - ~ -··- -- · ... · • ·• ~ · - • ~ .. 

Finally, I am safe to practice medicine. 

As I have previously mentioned, I am a physician with over thirty years 
experience, who has only been named in three malpractice suits, all of which were 
dismissed without moneys pa.id. Until the isolated incident in 2012, I have never 
been accused of alcohol abuse or dependence or any other fonn of misconduct. I 
would never endanger or risk another person, particularly a patient. This event 
occurred on my day off, in the privacy of my hotel room, which I did not leave. 

A mere two weeks after the incident, Dr. Brown concludes, "Without reservation, I 
recommend that Dr. DeSantis be ... allowed to return to practicing medicine." And 
in May 2014 again states, "I am certain that he has not consumed any alcohol or 
sleeping agents, other than OTC medication, since the incident 9/28/12. I also feel 
he is more than competent to work at the same job and level of activity that he did 
prior to 9/28/12." Dr. Jeffrey Klopper writes, "I believe Dr. DeSantis is able to 
practice hi.s profession and have no reason to believe he poses a risk or threat to 
patients or others ... Based on my personal knowledge and reported infonnation, 
Dr. DeSantis' competency or judgment has not been in question during his thirty 



Page4 of5 

year career." Dr. Nick DeFillipis concurs, "I do not see evidence that you 
represent a danger to patients, or that you ever were a danger to patients you 
treated." Also, Dr. Winokur states, "I would not have allowed Jim DeSantis to 
work clinically ifl felt that he was impaired and therefore a risk to patient safety. 
In fact I hired Jim to work at my urgent care center because he is an asset and the 
patients benefit by his presence." He describes me at work as "enthusiastic, 
energetic, diligent, responsible, prompt, knowledgeable, skillful, humorous, 
helpful, and resourceful." Dr. Winokur also adds, "He has always demonstrated 
ethical behavior around me and stays true to his strong moral compass." And Dr. 
Davis stresses in October 2013, "Dr. DeSantis' physical condition is such that he is 
capable of performing his duties, as is his mental condition." In March 2014 he 
writes, "The bottom line is that Dr. DeSantis has been perfectly compliant and is 
not abusing alcohol currently, and I have no reservations about his being able to 
practice medicine at this time." Again in April2014, Dr. Davis acquiesces, "Like 
Dr. DeFillipis, I believe that Dr. DeSantis is perfectly capable of practicing 
medicine at this time. As you know, he has agreed to continue on this program for 
as long as is necessary." Finally, Affiliated Monitors (a secondary monitoring 
company) writes in their quarterly report dated March 26, 2014 (the most recent 
report to date), "Dr. Davis has no concerns over Dr. DeSantis' ability to practice 
safely." Not to mention the Georgia, Texas, Tennessee, and Alabama Boards who 
have all agreed to consent orders, as well as North Carolina and Arkansas Boards 
that did not institute any consent orders at alL 

The fact that Drs. Brown, Klopper, DeFillipis, Winokur, and Davis, along with 
Affiliated Monitors and six Boards have emphatically stated that I am safe to 
practice medicine is proof that I am indeed, safe and competent to practice. Also, I 
worked successfully in the ER and in urgent care centers since October 2013 when 
my Georgia license was reinstated without problem or issue. 

I ask the Florida Board to follow Arkansas' action, which full_x and unconditionally 
reinstated tny state medical license without a consent order. They voted to over 
tum their suspension of my license and reinstated me to the same status l enjoyed 
before this incident in September 2012. I met with the Board in person, explained 
the event, and presented my documentation. With a near unanimous vote, 
Arkansas fully and unconditionally reinstated me as an active Arkansas physician. 
I fully understand Florida's concerns and why the Florida Board wanted to 
investigate my situation. However, I believe I provide Florida with enough 
evidence, testimony, and facts for it to also conclude the investigation in my favor. 
And I respectfully request that the Florida Board close its investigation without 
implementing a consent order. 



PageS of5 

Furthennore, it is my opinion, as well as the opinions of the professionals included 
that I am. a qualified, seasoned, skilled, devoted, and enthusiastic physician, who 
loves his job and has com.m.itted his life to practicing safely, ethically, and 
honorably. 

Thank you, 

es M. DeS ts MD 

/ 



May27, 2014 

To Whom It May Concern: 

On September 28, 2012, I took a prescription, Am bien, for sleep to help with 
transitioning between day and night shifts. Due to the memory loss effects of this 
drug, I drank without being aware I was doing so. This occurred on my day off and 
no patient care was involved. This resulted in my being anonymously reported to 
the Georgia Board and the ultimate suspension of my license on Apri118, 2013. My 
license was reinstated in October 2013. 

This entire problem is the result of the amnesic effects of the prescribed Am bien. I 
do not and have never had any issues with drugs or a.lcohol. These allegations are 
totally unfounded. I have been a practicing physician for 33 years and have worked 
in high acuity ERs in many different hospitals and hospital systems. I in fact worked 
for several months after the incident with Schumacher. I could not have functioned 
at the high level of competence, as my record reflects, if I had been impaired. Other 
than regarding this one incident, I have never been accused of drug or alcohol issues 
by any employer or coworkt!r. I have only been named in three malpractice suits, all 
of which I was dropped from without any moneys being paid on my behalf. 

I am a highly qualified physician with a sterling record who made the mistake of 
taking Am bien in an effort to improve my ability to switch between shifts and do an 
even better job for my employers. I made a personal choice not to ever drink again 
after this incident and have not had any alcohol since September 2012. This is a 
policy I will continue a/orgia Board discontinues monitoring me. 



December 31,2013 

Lasham Hughes 
Executive Director 
Georgia Composite Medical Board 
2 Peachtree St. NW, 36th Floor 
Atlanta, GA 30303-3465 

Re: James Michael DeSantis, MD 
License Number 30595 

N!l~ 
INTEGRITY THROUGfl COMPLIANCE 

ELAINE J,8TAR1-E 
ELET ARTES@AFF!LIATEDMOWJ'.QEH~PM 

First Quarterly Monitoring Report, amended, through December 2013 

Dear Director Hughes: 

As you know, Affiliated Monitors, Inc. (AMI) bas been retained by Dr. DeSantis to monitor his 
... •· . ~~.1. .. 1 .• .... ______ -.i:" 'L.!_ n •• t...t~ ... 1""1 .... - ... ....._+ A-A ........ ~ ...... ~~ .... ...:it... •• +'f..,... fl..., ... ,..,...;,.. {"''nT't'll'f'\1'\Cit+o 

Meaical Doarct on October 10, 2013. Tile;: Jlr~L <.jU<UL.,llJ '"l'VJL "'"" ~..,t.;,,,,iued on December 2:1, 
2013; tllis amendment to that report adds the compliance activities reported to AMI by Dr. 
Davis, who is conducting and overseeing Dr. DeSantis' treatment program. 

Probation: Dr. DeSantis is su~ject to a three-year period of probation from the date the Board 
signed the Agreement, that is, until October 9, 2016. 

Treatment: Dr. DeSantis is to participate in a treatment program with. a Board approted 
psychiatrist. Treatment is to include in.-person therapy session no less than once every ~wo 
weeks; random urine screenings ~very month that do not coincide with. office visit; and daily hse 
of Antabuse Jogged by a licensed pharmacist or physician. I 

Dr. DeSantis bad entered a treatment program on July 30, 2013, lUlder the care of Dave Da~s, 
MD. Dr. Davis provided the Bo<Jrd and AMI a description. of Dr. DeSantis' treatment regimen 
prior to the issuance of the Consent Agreement. Dr. DeSantis continues to participate in IDR. 
Davis' program. In a report received December 26, 2013, Dr. Davis reported to AMI on br. 
DeSantis' compliance activities. l 

Therapy sessions: Dr. Davis reported that Dr. DeSantis has attended therapy sessibns 
every two weeks. During December, when Dr. DeSantis has been practicing in 
Peunsylvan:ia, he has participated in sessions both at Dr. Davis' office and by telephon . 

"""""' M""~-\~ >0 ""961m ... "'" MA ll>196 >~• m-m-o"O ""' m-,.5-0ll 



L. Hughes 
December 31,2013 
Page2 Nl:J~ 

INTEGRITY THROUGH COMPLIANCE 

Random drug screens: The Consent Agreement required monthly random drug screens 
not to be done on dates coinciding with office visits. 

Dr. Davis provided drug screens done in October, November and December 2013. The 
most recent was a hair test, done December 16, 2013. The results of all tests were 
negative. 

While the specific panels varied for each test, the substances tested for included: 
Amphetamines; Barbiturates; Benzodiazepines; Cocaine; Cannbinoids; EtG, Meperidine; 
Methadone; Opiates; Oxycodone & Hydrocodone; PCP, Phencyclidine; Propoxyphene; 
Trarnadol Fentanyl, and SufertaniL 

Antabuse /logs: The logs submitted showed that Dr. DeSantis had been administered 
Antabuse daily from Septtmtbcr 11 through December 16, 2013. 

Support meetings: Dr. Davi.s' treatment recommendations did not include Dr. DeSantis 
participating in 12-step support groups. 

Board-approved Monitor Engaged: Dr. DeSantis signed a contact with Affiliated Monitors, 
Inc. effective October 14, 2013. 

Monitor Sends Quarterly Reports: This is the first quarterly report, amended 

Notify Board if Ceasing Practice, Moving or Changing Contact Information: Dr. DeSantis 
understands in the event he should leave Georgia to practice or reside for more than 30 daysj he 
is required to notify the Board in writing of his dates of departure and return. Dr. DeSantis 
understands that such time outside the State of Georgia, as well as times he is not in practice 
while residing in Georgia do not count towards the monitoring period, expect as authorized! by 
the Board. · 

Compliance Activiiv: On November 22, 2013, Dr. DeSantis informed AMI he had 
notified the Georgia Board he was returning to work as of December 1, 2013. Mrs. DeSantis 
confirmed that this work was outside Georgia. Dr. Davis reported that Dr. DeSantis was 
working in Pennsylvania. 

On December 2, 2013, Dr. DeSantis informed AMJ that he had entered into a Consent 
Agreement with the State of Alabama. on the same issues as covered in the Georgia Agreemtl:nt. 
He requested that a copy of AMI's quarterly reports be sent to Alabama State Board of Medical 
Examiners to fulfill the reporting requirement there. 

Unless otl1erwise instructed, AMI will send the next report to the Board in March 2014. If tou 
have questions, please contact me at 231 907-1985. 



L. Hu.ghes 
December 31,2013 
Page3 

Sincerely yours, 

D~~:t~ 
Elaine LeTarte 
Compliance Analyst 

ec: James M. DeSantis, MD 
Dave M. Davis, MD (via Jacsimile 404 355-2917) 

N!lMmAf!B. 
ll'ITllGRlTY THROUGH COMPLIANCE 

Jason O'Toole, Sr. Agent! Compliance Officer, GA Composite Medical Board 
Burke Britton Savage, Physician Monitoring, Alabama Board of Medical Exam.iners 
Catherine Keyes, Vice President for Operations, Affiliated Monitors, Inc. 



March 26, 2014 

Lasham. Hughes 
Executive Director 
Georgia Composite Medical Board 
2 Peachtree St. NW, 36th Floor 
Atlanta, GA 30303-3465 

Re: James Michael DeSantis, MD 
License Number 30595 

.N~l~8. 
INTEGRITY THROUGH COMI'I.lANCE 

ELAINE LET 1\R TE 
BI~Ue, RTr;@A eel I ,)1\TEI)MQNITORS.COM 

Second Quarterly Monitoring Report through March 2014 

Dear Director Hughes: 

As you know, Affiliated Monitors, Inc. (AMI) has been retained by Dr. DeSantis to monitor his 
compliance with the terms of his Public Consent Order issued by the Georgia Composite 
Medical Board on October 10, 2013. This second quarterly monitoring report includes Dr. 
DeS11nti.s' compU11nce activities through mid-March, 2014. 

Probation: Dr. DeSantis is subject to a three-year period of probation from the date the Board 
signed the Agreement, that is, until October 9, 2016. 

Treatment: Dr. Dc8antia io to participate in "' trc ... tmcnt proiP"c:u:n with n Bonrd approvod 
.... ········:· . 

weeks; random urine screenings every momh thai do nul cuinch.le wltli office v i~JL; !u.u.l uaily u~" 
of Antabuse logged by a licensed pharmacist or physician. 

MU. Ur. Uavts provtded the .l:loarct and AM.I a ctescnptton ot ur. ue:sa.ilus· treatment regunen 
prior to the issuance of the Consent Agreement. Dr. DeSantis continues to participate in DR. 
Davis' program. In a second report dated March 12, 2014 Dr. Davis reported to AMI on Dr. 
DeSantis' compliance activities. 

Therapy sessions: Dr. Davis reported that Dr. DeSantis has attended therapy sessions 
every two weeks. During December, when Dr. DeSantis has been practicing in 
Pt>nn•:vlvAl1i~. ht> hA• r>Artinir>A1m1 in •essions both at Dr. Davis' office and by telephonli:. 
In January through March, 2014, Dr. DeSantis and Dr. Davis met twice a month. Dr. 
Davis reports that Dr. DeSantis is doing well; Dr. Davis has no concerns over Dr. 

Affilillted Monitors, Inc. PO Box %1791 Boston, MA 02196 tel: 617-275-0620 fax: 617-345-0102 



L. Hughes 
:Ma.roh :16, :101 ~ 

Page2 

DeSantis' ability to practice safely. 

Random drug screens: The Consent Agreement required monthly random drug screens 
not to be done on dates coinciding v,.ith office visits. 

Dr. Davis provided drug screens done in October, November and December 2013; a hair 
test was done December 16, 2013. In January through March, 2014, Dr. DeSantis 
submitted to four additi.onal urine tests. The results of all tests since October 2014 were 
negative. 

While the specific pan.el s vari.ed for each test, the substances tested for included: 
Amphetamines; Barbiturates; Benzodiw..epines; Cocaine; Cannbinoids; EtG, Meperidine; 
Methadone; Opiates; Oxycodone & Hydrocodone; PCP, Phencyclidine; Pmpoxyphene; 
Tramadol Fentanyl, and Sufertanil. 

An.tabuse /logs: The logs submitted showed that Dr. DeSantis had been administered 
Aotabuse daily from September 11,2013 through. March 12,2014. 

Support meetings: Dr. Davis' treatment recommendations did not include Dr. DeSantis 
participating in 12-step support groups. 

Board-approved Monitor Engaged: Dr. DeSantis signed a contact with Affiliated Monitot$, 
Inc. effective October 14, 201.3. 

Monitor Sends Quarterly i=IAI"Hlrt!l· Thio io th" """nnn 'JH"rt"rly r;,pnrt. 

Notify Board if Ceasing Practice, Moving or Changing Contact Information: Dr. DeSantis 
understands in the event he should leave Georgia to practice or reside for more than 30 days, be 
is required to notifY the Board in writing of his dates of deoarture and return. Dr. DeSantis 
unaerstanas tnat sucn ttme outsHle tne :;tate or ueorg1.a, as weu as nmes ne 1s not m pracuce 
while residing in Georgia do not count towards the monitoring period, expect as authorized by 
the Board. 

Compliance Activi!J: On November 22, 2013, Dr. DeSantis intbrmed AMI he had 
notified the Georgia Board he was returning to work as of December 1, 2013. Mrs. DeSantis 
confirmed that this work was outside Georgia. Dr. Davis reported that Dr. DeSantis was 
working in Pe!Ulsylvania. Dr. De 'Santis informed the Georgia Board and AMI that he left 
the Pe!Ulsylvania position at the end of February 2014, and that he would be working in Texas 
and in Marietta, Georgia in March 2014. 

On December 2, 2013, Dr. DeSantis informed AMI that he had entered into a Consent 
Agreement with the State of Alabam.a, on the same issues as covered in the Georgia Agreement. 
He '"''l""~~"u tlo."-t" <-l.lj,IJ of A?.H'> ')Ui.IJ.t>Ody 1·o;porto be o;;;nt to Alabama State Dofll"d of1-1odionl 
D:ua.nU:a.e"'o to £u16.11 th~ -pQriine "o:"9'i,~<>J~X~r~.~.-t t:.b.o'*'o-



L. Hughes AF&&~ 
INTEGRITY THROUGH COMPUANCE 

Page 3 

Unless otherwise instructed, AMI wiJl send the next report to the Board in June 2014. If you. 
have questions, please contact AMI at 617 275-0620. 

Since~ely yours, 

Ott»u-:4:1~ 
Elaine LeTarte 
Compliance Analyst 

ec: James M. DeSantis, MD 
Dave M. Davis, MD (via !acsimile 404 355-2917) 
Jason O'Toole, Sr. Agent I Compliance Office~, GA Composite Medical Board 
Burke Britton Savage, Physician Monitoring, Alabama Board of Medical Examiners 
Catherine Keyes, Vice President for Operntions, Affiliated Monitors, Inc. 



Dr Earley speaking with Mr. Goldstein 

[Background noise] 

Dr. Earley: Mr. Goldstein this js Dr. Paul Earley from the Geowa emfessiqnal Health 
Prggram. do you have a moment? 

Mr. Goldstein: I sure do. What can I do for you Paul? 

Dr. Earley: Well, you know it seems like we just need to kind of figure how to move this case 
forward for you guys and I'm trying to figure out how we can best do that. I guess what I'll - we 
have - you sent us some information that's great. We really -that's very helpful. The only thing that 
we're missing is the full evaluation from Talbot. There's just a discharge letter. We need the full 
evaluation to look at the record. But so we need to get that, but I guess I want to give you another 
way of looking at this case to see if you can help your client. 

We are- there's no obligation to work with us. There are lots of other ways of skinning this cat. 
r\u\:1, l.C yuu itt:lllJ.I.:c t.ld;o:, .l:::t vvt::~'u:: U.:..iu~ U1ffi\..ult v1 V\1.._.'1'-' .l..lO...'L v"'v.'h..h.t.~;S ._. • .,...11 ·nill1 JVw vJ. ;~vw J.v.•.:w .. 'i. Ult:.""' 

whatever we had to say then, you know, there's other ways of doing this that you can help move the 
licensure thing forward. i),nd one of the suggestions I have is to think about having a private 
advocate do this venus the Georgia Professional Health Program. You know, the·· J'm sure 
you know this. You've been doing this a long time. But before we had the Physicians Health 
Program in Georgia there were groups of physicians, the Talbot Program, the Ridgeview Program, 
the MARA [ph] Program, and then some private physicians, Dr. Dave Davis and a few other, a 
few others that were really advocates of a ph11icians health. And they can testifY in front of the 
Rna-~ v & ru.\JW; 1;\~"#~ftiy xr:em~. tlm,~\',t&n<>s..qt!'rs,"W.\71.Jti nU'\.W. d<"l, tbi§. .wru:li;~ -·-- ,_. ___ --· __ 
about how we need to move forward. And if it feels, you know, onerous to you or overly difficult, 
and you don't feel like we're working well with you, I would think maybe the next- a better way of 
doing this would be to find someone else to work with that you feel like will work with you, you 
know, so you can get your client back in the saddle. 

Mr. Goldstein: Okay. Just let me say I appreciate your calling and I would you know. I don't have a 
particular problem with GHP. I think my cHent is distressful. And you know l'll tell you what I 
would like. This is just an aside for future reference. I know you all have applications for people 
you accept to do evaluations, etc., etc., etc. And T asked for a list of those people and that would be 
wonderful- a wonderful resouree for me. Because urn, honestly, and I don't know. I would assume 
that you're sending those people to either Talbot or Ridgeview just because of the makeup of your 
non-profit corporation. But if there are other people who are available such as Dave Davis or 
whatever, I mean that's great. And it'd be great for me to know, But that's an aside between us. 

I think my client's problem is he's got a lot of mistrust and I think it was because- and I don't know 
if you know the whole story as to what happened. But I wasn't representing him and he had made an 
agreement with the Board not to practice, you know, pending an evaluation. And the next thing he 
knew he was summarily suspended wi.th.out any, you know, which really kind of screwed him up 
professionally with licensure and whatever. And then. it was exacerbated h::gally by the -by the fact 
that his lawyer put him on inacti.ve status. 

So we're trying to - from my standpoint I'm trying to get him back into active status. The Board's 
the one who said he needs to be monitored. We're all like -l'm sure he would be thrilled. And again, 

Page 1 of6 



Dr Earley speaking with Mr .. Goldstein 

it's not me. You know, I've got no bone to pick particularly. But I'm sure he would be thrilled to go 
to somebody else to be monitored, absolutely thrilled. So if that's okay with you that's okay with 
him I'm sure. · 

Dr. Earley: Rlght, and so here's the thing- and I guess that was what I was sensing is that I 
couldn't tell if it was where the mistrust was. 

Mr. Goldstein: Yeah 

Dr. Earley: It felt like we weren't working well. And you know one of the things about this sort 
of thing is that if he has mistrust towards us it's going to make it difficult -

Mr. Goldstein: Absolutely. 

Dr. Earley: ... because we're in 11- we're in kind of a power position here. And if you don't trust 
those in power it's hard to work with them. So ... 

Mr. Goldstein: And there's definitely • and again, I mean I think- and it started. And correct 
me ifi'm wrong because I wasn't involved in the case. But I think it started with --you were the one 
who initially contacted him. And I'm not saying there's- you did anything in appropriately. And 
then it kind of- for him it kind of went downhill from there and it was exacerbated in my opinion 
by some mismanagement legally of what happened. And I also think that- I don't know why the 
Board suspended him summarily when he had signed an agreement not to practice, you know. 

I mean I'm sure you.'ve- I'm sure you've seen those agreements. In fuct, I saw at one point I think 
there were - it was on your website. But once they do that there's no reason for them to summarily 
suspend somebody and put it up artd you know report it to the- so anyway, it was a situation that 
just became worse. And I think he- I think· I mean I thi.nk you've read it correctly. I think there's a 
lot of mistrust on his part. And you know 1 know Dave Davis extremely well. And I wouldn't- l 
was just trying to comply with what the Board was telling him or I was trying to get him to comply 
with what the Board was telling him. But you're right. It's not a good situation for him as far as vis
a-vis the PHP. 

Dr. Earley: Sure. 

Mr. Goldstein: And you're right. And it's going to make it hard and there's like -he's like, 
"well, what's going to happen ifl don't do this. I can go to five AA meetings a week. I travel, but 
you know .... " I'm like let's get you reinstated and then worry about that. But that's you know. Your 
observation is correct. Let me just put it that way. So what do you suggest that we ... ? 

Dr. Earley: Well, um, I think- so here's the deal The way the Board- what happened when the 
PHP was instituted the Board said. you know, we're going to go with this organization and our job 
is to evaluate, you know. Our job is to evaluate the evaluators to make sure they're up to snuff, that's 
one of our jobs, and to rnake sure that, you know, we can divert people from having this kind of 
action. And that's when I spoke to the client. I said, you know, you really kind of want to get this 
evaluation, so we can avoid any kind of problems. I'm not interested, you know. I'm not a· I'm not a 
cop kind of guy. You know what 1 mean? 

Mr. Goldstein: Uh·huh 
Page 2 of6 



Dr Earley speaking with Mr. Goldstein 

Dr. Earley: I want to help people. That's my thing. And you know he chose not to go that way. I 
don't think he knew quite who we are we're kind of new, that sort of stuff. And that's why I think 
we wound up in this hole. So but I do know that one of the ways to do that would be to say we've
we can- we can let go of the case. We don't have to- you know, ours is a service, you jl;nOlf· 
We're not a- there's no obligation. I will tell you that the Board prefers to work with us 
because it's easier because they know us, because you're down there eyery month, that sort of 

st.ut'L 

Mr. Goldstein: I know and I know- right You know, T know the history and I know what 
happened. And some - I'm not - you're right. I mean I'm not a babe in the woods. I know about what 
happened and all that stuff. And I know the Board's preference. And J know they want it - they've 
been dying to get out ofthe trust ofthe monitoring, you know. And I measured- I know they're 
thrilled to not have to do that. 

Dr. Earley: Sure. But again, if- it's not a hundred percent of people --this didn't start out well for 
your client. You know, I don't you know and we can't deal for everybody. So I'm okay ''>ith i.t. The
and we'll talk about the- your statement about the evaluators list __ [00:10:04] at the end. So I'll 
make sure I address that, make sur~' I talk about that. But you know the other providers including 
Dr. Davis, who has a long track record with the Bop.rd who lw,gws. who understands this 
whole deal. And you know he'§. a ver.y tJmrongh g,ux. You know him well. 

Mr. Goldstein: I do. 

Dr. Earley: He ,t£nds, :y;gu kMW - he wguld be a fine person and may be a good match in this 
kind of situation. because Dr. DeSantis travels a lot, and tbat sort of thing, then maybe, you 
kngw, Dr. Davis might he able to figure out how to be a little more flexible with him etc., etc., 
etc. 

Mr. Goldstein: Right, right, right ... 

Dr. Earley: So tthat 1- yeah, so I think the thing to do is to say, you know, you're !!,Ot 

obligated to go with a PHP. You don't tru.st them. I got it. And you know no harm no foul, it just 
didn't work out. And, um, and I think that's really th.e right way to go to sort of. .. 

[Crosstalk] 

]\,fr. Goldstein: Sure, 1. .. 

Dr. Earley: ... __ [00: 11 :00] few things __ [00: 11 :02]. 

Mr. Goldstein; Yeah, and I mean as long as you're okay mth that, urn, I think that ·would be 
great for him because, you know, he's already starting on me ~th what's going to happen, you 
know what I mean. And I'm like let's get you reinstated. And he's just a wreck. So that would be 
great as long as you're okay wi.tb that. And I think it would be better for- yeah, I don't think it's a 
good fit in this case. I think we're in agreement. 

Page 3 of6 



Dr Earley speaking with Mr. Goldstein 

Dr. Earley: That's great. And you know I'm old enough to say, you know, I can't be the be all end 
all for all people. in fact, I have a hard enough time being adequate for my wife. So you know, what 
the helL 

Mr. Goldstein: I hear you. [Laughs 1 

Dr. Earley: Yeah. So, urn, so, uh, yeah. what we would do about it is to say to the Board, well, 
uh, uh, Dr. DeSantis, because of how this played out and diffi.culties with trust, which we 
completely understand. And we said, you know, why don't you work with a private provider and 
that's how we'll say it to the Board. And I wiU askn~m:!ed~te with the Board. You have my 
word on this but I'll say, you know, this thing, this whole thing started out kind of gnarly. So it 
ki.n.d ofm.ok.-~ ~"n~" thM, ynn knnw .. th"y hov" tmst ;''""·'with"" Ann thlln Wll'll juM- there's not a 
leg you can get to get this ball moving forward. You'll figure it out. He'll be able to complete the 
process and, urn, and then you kn.ow he doesn't have to deal with us. 

[Crosstalk] 

Mr. Goldstein: -- [00:12:43] ... 

[Laughter] 

Mr. Goldstein: Well, I'd hate to say it but you know this has not been the easiest case okay. 

Dr. Earley: Then I'll say it. 

Mr. Goldstein: That would be great, okay. 

Dr. Earley: Okay. Now so let's dose out with this issue about the evaluator. The reason that the 
list thing ls we have a - what we do with people is we go through a credentialing process to say, you 
know, what's your experience, what do you know, that sort of thing. And we have a list of people 
that say we do this. Now the problem is it's probably not so true in law but it's really true in 
healthcare that healthcare is so friable these days that a program that's good six months ago is often 
in the toilet six months later. So if we release a list that we just kind we would need to rerelease it 
every week or every five weeks or every month or two. 

What J will- what I can tell you is if you call me and say, "hey, Dr. Earley, who are the best 
evaluators you got going right now?'' I will call you back and say we've got these three people. 
We've got these people in to'l'<n. We've got some people out of- some does and you say I don't want 
to do it in Atlanta. Good, no problem, we've got some evaluators out of Atlanta. We have, urn, some 
- depending on how complex the cases are, sometimes we've said we're okay with people going to 
an individual for an evaluation. Sometimes because the cases get more complex we require them to 
go to a center for an evaluation. And you know you can just go over the case with me and say what 
do you think? And I'll say here's a list of three or four places. And you know I know it seems -I 
don't want to sound- we don't want to be obstructive about this list but it just changes so much. 
And so I want to make sure we don't send a referral to you that you call me back and say that's 
place was a dump, you know. 

Mr. Goldstein: Well ... 

Page 4 of6 



Dr Earley speaking with Mr. Goldstein 

Dr. Earley: And I just don't want to do that. 

Mr. Goldstein: But you know I'm going to be honest with you. And I know you have an 
association or you did in the past. I have never • I've never had a client, okay, who's been evaluated 
by Talbott, for example, where they've come back and said this person does not need ninety days 
inpatient. And I'm talking about ever. And I've been doing this a long time. 

So needless to say when you talk about trust issues I have a little bit of a trust issue there, you know. 
And I'm just - you know it could be every single one of them needed it. And most of the time by the 
time they get to me they probably do need it, but not everybody does. But so that's why I wanted to 
know for myself and I don't mind 1;alHng you on an individual basis and you know letting you 
know. I have no problem with that whatsoever. And I appreciate your offering that. Um, so ... 

Dr. Earley: Yea. Okay, so I will put all my cards on the table. Things didn't go so well with me 
and Talbott. I am not their biggest fan, okay. 

Mr. Goldstein: I know that well ... 

Dr. Earley: I do use them because they are very thorough, but you know- they have a history of 
chuming through their medical directors and spitting them out the other side. I was one of those so 
I've got some issues with them too. 

Mr. Goldstein.: Okay. 

Dr. Earley: ... and I understand what your concerns are. So I am particularly aware with their ... 
but from the outside it looks like it and I get it. What I would do as you, if the client says, "Well he 
used to work at Talbott ... " I would say to you, "I'd say now .look you know- don't go to Talbott if 
you have some concerns about that." I've got a big list. If the person, especially if it's a complicated 
story, I do like people to be sitting down in a kind of- spending three or four days with examination 
of the whole deal, just for psychological prepping. I like that. I think it honors the complexity of the 
physicians and it gives a good idea. If you have a concern about any center- don't go there and 
that's why we have a list. If you said to me, "My cHent- there is a problem .... " Here I got these 
three other places. And if you said, "Well he's actually in the southeast or nati.onwide ... " I've got a 
list of about eight, that are really top- they do fine jobs. 

But fortunately -- the interesting thing about this is that there is really only about eight really good 
programs that do good evaluation in the entire United States. Now there's a statement on healthcare, 
but whatever. 

Mr. Goldstein: I hearya. 

Dr. Earley: So feel free to call me and I'll say, "these people are good, these people are not." 
And then I am happy with you saying, you know he has a previous experience with Ridgeview, he 
doesn't want to go there. Not a problem. He had a previous experience with Talbott, doesn't want to 
go there, not a problem. We've got a long list and we can. work together you and I, to .find the place. 
So that's why the list is out there. 

Now, the issue to be frank with you, is if we had a list of what happens at th.ese treatment centers 
and we will put a thing up on the website that says, approved by the Georgia PHP. [Laughs] 

Page 5 of6 



Dr Earley speaking with Mr. Goldstein 

Mr. Goldstein: Uhm.!unm. 

Dr. Earley: Then all of a sudden we're liable for something we don't want to be at all and this 
was a good five years ago when we approved them and now it's a hellhole and that happens in 
behavioral health- then we're kind of stuck. So that's why we keep it like that. But I don't want to 
make it sound secretive, it's more like just practical. 

And so call me any time about that Call the main number and say, "Hey I need Paul to call me 
back." I'll give you a call. 

Mr. Goldstein: Alright. I very much appreciate your calling. 

Dr. Earley: Okay and let's- and if you. have other questions or thoughts about, just give me a 
ring back and both figure out how to make it happen, okay? 

Mr. Goldstein: Alright, thank you. 

Dr. Earley: Bye, bye. 

Mr. Goldstein: Bye. 

Page 6 of6 



Atlanta Behavioral Care, P.C. 
Jeffrey H. Klapper, M.D., Psychiatrist 

May21, 2013 

Scott Commander 
Commander Pound Butler 

400 Galleria Parkway 
Suite460 

Atlanta, Georgia 30339 

Re: James DeSantis, dob: 10/23/1956 

To Whom It May Concern; 

3188 Atlanta Road, SE 
Smyrna, Georgia 30060 
770-319-6000 Fax 770-319-13330 

Dr. James DeSantis met with me on the 2"" of May for the purpose of performing a psychiatric 

evaluation. Per Dr. DeSantis, he had an incident tmt involved 1t1e use of Ambien and alcohol. Since the 
time of the incident Dr. DeSantis has been drug tested twice, on 02/0S/2013 and OS/21/3013, and both 
tesl5 revealed negative results. 

Or. DeSantis has been poactidng merficlne for thirty years and I have personally known him for five 
year~. During that time I never observed or was aware of any problems with alcohol or drugs. When I 

had the opportunity to observe Dr. DeSantis in the practice of his profession he appeared to be highly 
competent. To my knowledge ther-e has not been any question regarding drug or alcohol abuse issues 

or concerns. I believe Dr. DeSantis i~ able to practice his profession and have no reason to believe he 
poses a risk or threat to patients or others. 

Dr. DeSantis pn~sented on time for his appointment. He wa5 appropriate and cooperative. His speech 
was normal and he was spootaneov:; and forthcoming with his 1 esponses. There were no bizarre 
behaviors. There was no frank thought di50rder or cognitive dysfunction. He was alert and oriented; his 

memory was intact to recall and historical events; he verbalited good insight. 
,.,,,, '·1.'·1''" ,,,,•'•\M: .. !'•'(o:J"•"' 

Dr. DeSantis' wife aa:ompanied him to the office and gave IXIIIateral information. She reported her 
husband does not use or abuse alcohol or other drugs. Based on my per50nallmowledge and reported 
information, Dr. DeSantis' competency or judgment has not been in question during his thirty year 
career. To my knowledge he has not. had any priO< incidents and I feel this is an isolated occurrence. 
When records and results of psydlological h!sting are available to me, Ml review them and continue to 

monitor Dr. Desantis on "" ongoing basis. Please contact me with any questions tonc:el 1 1ing this matter. 



A -
~ Pryor Cryer 

"":"""""' s.crmary 

BoardMamboml: 

Joseph M. Beck, II, M.D. 
Chalrm~n 

Ll!tlo Roc!<. AR 

Sylvia 0. Simon. M.D. 
Vice Chairman 
MonliCl!IIO. AR 

6ob E. Ccgbum, M.D. 
Secretary 
Moomaln Ho""', AR 

Harold 8. Betton, M.D. 
Treasurer 
Little Roc!<. AR 

Omor T. Aliq. M.D. 
Pine Bluff, AR 

S!'-""!n L Cl!lhoy, M.D. 
NO~h Little Rod<, AR 

Jim C. Citty. M.O. 
&lan;y, AR 

William F. Dudding, M.D. 
FoM SmHh, AA 

Larry D. "l!U(I(Iy" Lovell 
Mari<od tree, AR 

John E. Hoarn!;llorgor, II, M.D. 
Na•hvllkl, AA 

Veryi D. Hodg ... D.O. 
Jonesboro, AA 

Scoft Pate. Pharm. D .• J.D. 
Ll!tle Rod<. AR 

JoM H. S<:rlbner, M.D. 
Salem, AR 

John B. Weiss, M.D. 
Fay<~Heviikl, AR 

Loltllll Counoel: 

Kevin O'Dwyer 
William H. Trite. Ill 
21 1 Spring Sh'l!<!t 
Linle Roell, AR 7220 1 
(501)372-4144 

ARKANSAS STATE MEDICAL BOARD 
1401 West capitOl. SUite 340, Lltt1e Rock, Arkansas 72201 • (501) 296-1802 • FAX (501) 603·3555 

www.a~lboard.org 

April 9, :Z014 

.lames Michael DeSantis, M.D. 
J9fl I Regas Oriv~ 
Marietta, GA 30066 

Re: Board Appearance 

Dear Dr. DeSantis: 

This ll.'tter i~ to crmfirm the dedsion of the Arkansas State Medical Board 
eoncerninf,l the matter in which you appeared at the April 2014 meeting. 

After reviewing the infurmation :and talking with you, it was the vote of the 
Board to lift the suspension of yo11r Arkansas medieallieense. 

Although the suspension was lifted, our records show that your lh:ense expired 
on Odober 31, 2013. Should )'OU wish to renew your Arkansas meditllllit:ense, 
you may do so online. 

Sincerely, 

<~~) 
Pef!gy Pryor Cryer 
El!Oe£uth·e Secretary 

PPC/ble 



May26, 2014 

To whom it may concern, 

I have known James Desantis, MD professionally and personally for the past 15 years. On the 

professional side, I was the emergency department director at Wellstar-Cobb Hospital from 10/2000 
until12/2004 while Jim worked there as an ED staff physician. Since early March 2014 Jim has worked at 
my urgent care center where I'm the medical director. Between these two jobs we h<tve stayed in touch. 
Jim has always been consistent in terms of his performance and has never exhibited any signs or 
symptoms of being impaired on my watch. These are some of the adjectives 1 can use to describe Jim at 
work: enthusiastic, energetic, diligent, responsible, prompt, knowledgeable, skillful, humorous, helpful, 
and resourceful. In fact, I think Jim loves being a doctor more than most physicians I've been exposed to 
over the ye<t rs. 

On the personal side, Jim is" dedicated husband/father and a reliable friend. He has always 
demonstrated ethical behavior around me and stays true to his strong moral compass. 

In my roles as an emergency department and urgent care center medical director, I would have not 
ollowed Jim De~onti~ to work elinieolly if I felt thot he wo.s impoired ond therefore 11 ri:~k to poticnt 

safety. In fact, I hired Jim to work at my urgent care center because he is an asset and the patients 

benefit by his presence. 

Sincerely, 

Mark D. Winokur, MD 

Medical Director 

MP 

MedPost Urgent Care (formerly east Cobb Urgent Care) 

1401 Johnson Ferry Rd, Suite 390 

Marietta, GA 30062 

Tel. 770-971-5494 



May 29,2013 

James DeSantis, M.D. 
3901 Regis Dr 
Manetta GA 30066 

Dear Dr. DeSantis: 

1\.Hck A. DeFilippis, Ph.D. 
Amti'l'ican Board qf Frq(essio11al Neuropsychology 

Americmt Board ~f Prqfos~io11al P$yclzology (Clinical) 

I reviewed the documentation. sent to me. This included a psychiatric evaluation/admission 
note from Talbott Recovery Campus dated 02/05/13 and completed by Dr. Richard Amar, a 
psychological evaluation by Dr. Snook, dated 02/06/13, an addiction assessment second 
opinion by Dr. Gupta signed on 04/16/13 but completed on 02/05113, a patient assessment 
form from Talbott dated 02/04/13, an admission physical health screening from Talbott 
dated 02/04/13, a discharge note from Dr. Amar that is signed on 04/17/13 but provided on 
02/04/13, a discharge summary from Dr. Amar on 02/07/13, an assessment report from Dr. 
Amar completed on 02/07/13 but signed on 02/22113, and a number of progress notes, 
doctor's orders and laboratory reports from your evaluation at Talbott. As you know, I met 
with you and your wife on 5/28/13 to go over my impressions from the records I reviewed 
and to ask you further questions about your background. 

My overall conclusions from my review of your situation is that you do not meet diagnostic 
criteria for Alcohol Abuse or Dependence and that you do not require inpatient treatment for 
your problems. I do not see evidence that you represent a danger to patients, or that you. ever 
were a danger to patients you treated. 

Please contact me if you have any questions concerning my opinions given in this letter. 

Sincerely, 

Nick A. DeFilippis, Ph.D. 

Lakeside Comm.ons • 990 Hammond Drive l\TE ~ Suite 730 • Atla:n.ta, Georgia .30328 
(770) 730-9930 G Fax (770) 730..0998 



Nick A. DeFilippis, Ph.D. 
American Board tJf Professional Neuropsyclml~gy 

American Boord of Professional Psychology (Clinical) 

Aprill8, 2014 

James DeSantis, M.D. 
3901 Regis Drive 
Marietta, Georgia 30066 

Dear Dr. DeSantis: 

As you know, I met with you and your wife on 04/17/14. You informed me that since I 
last saw you in May 2013 you continue to abstain from alcohol. You have not had 
anything of an alcoholic nature to drink from 09/28/12 through the present. You also 
have not utilized Ambien or any other prescription sleep medication. You took an over
the-counter sleep aid once in December, because you had an early morning meeting in 
Pennsylvania, and you informed the Pennsylvania Medical Board that you took that 
medication. 

When I last saw you I gave an opinion that you did not meet criteria for alcohol abuse or 
an aloohol dependence. I noted that you had a history of excessive drinking in the past, 
but this did not rise to the level of causing recurrent problems in your life, which is 
necessary for an abuse diagnosis. The incident on the night of 09/28/12 was determined 
by me to be due to the effects of Ambien causing you to go into a blackout and then 
consuming excessive alcohol. This was an isolated incident, and you have had no other 
significant problems in your life related to alcohol or medication use. The infrequent 
complaints your wife had about your drinking over the 30 years of your marriage have 
not resulted in marital difficulties, r sa!d it was \Varr:mted to look into a less intensive 
form of intervention than an inpatient treatment program. I also gave an opinion that I 
did not see your work as excessive. 

You returned to work for three months, basically doing the same kind of emergency room 
work that you had been doing in the past, until February. In February of this year the 
Pennsylvania Board of Medicine determined, primarily based on an evaluation by Dr. 
Bernstein in December of last year, that you needed to go through an inpatient treatment 
program in Pennsylvania and attend AA meetings before you could practice in that state. 

After I saw you, Dr. Earley, president of the Georgia Professional Health Program, said 
in a transcribed conversation to your attorney, Mr. Goldstein, that you did not have to go 
through an inpatient program and could be monitored on an outpatient basis by 01'. Davis. 

Lakeside Commons • 990 Harrunond Drive NE • Suite 730 • Atl<mta, Georgia 30328 
{770) 730-9930 • Fax (770) 730-0998 



Thus, Dr. Earley agreed with my opinion that you did not need to have inpatient 
treatment. 

You have been seeing Dr. Dave Davis twice a month since July of last year. Dr. Davis 
prescribed Prozac, to replace the Celexa you were taking for several years. He also asked 
you to take Antabuse daily since July of last year. You are taking the Antabuse tablet in 
front of a pharmacist on a daily basis, and you showed me documentation concerning 
this. You are having monthly random drug screens. There are quarterly reports sent to 
the Board that you are compliant with their requests. Your compliance is being 
monitored by Affiliated Monitors, at the request of the Georgia board. The monitoring 
by the Georgia Board of Medicine was set up in October. 

You told me since J la~t saw you that you spend your free time panning for gold. You 
also watch your grandson .. You started doing urgent care work a month ago, and you said 
you have about five ten- to twelve-hour shifts a month in this work. You are spending a 
lot of time applying for jobs. You noted that you have licenses in a number of states, 
with the only issue at this time being with Pennsylvania. The license in Florida has not 
been released yet, but you believe it will be. You indicated. that there are no other 
significant stressors in your personal life. 

You brought to the office a nl.lmber of documents I reviewed. These include: 

Transcript of Dr. Earley speaking to Mr. Goldstein 
Letters from Affiliated Monitors to the Georgia Composite Medical Board 
A number of letters from Dr. Davis to yol.l or the medical board 
Dr. Bernstein's evaluation report of you on 12/02/13, and a subsequent letter from Dr. 

Goldstein on 01!22/14 to the Chief Counsel of the State of Pennsylvania 
A Jetter "to whom it may concern" from Dr. Brown concerning his opiu,ion about your 

alcohol use and use of Ambien 
A letter from Dr. Hatmaker concerning his opinion about your functioning 
A letter from Dr. K.lopper concerning his treatment of you last year 
The Public Consent Order reinstating your license from the Georgia Composite Medi.cal 
Board dated 10/10113 

Given the information I have, I see no reason why your current monitoring program 
would require any modifications. As far as I can tell from the documentation I have, you 
have been fully compliant with the program, and Dr. Davis is closely monitoring this. 
The fact that you returned to full time work for three months without difficulty attests to 
the effectiveness of the current program. J see no reason to believe you, would require 
attendance at AA meetings in addition to the current monitoring program. I also see no 
need for inpatient rehabilitation. I continue to fmd that you never met criteria for an 
alcohol abuse or alcohol dependence diagnosis. Dr. Davis has diagnosed you as having 
ADHD and depression, but these conditions are well controlled with your current 
medications. You do not currently present with any active psychiatric disorder. I also do 
not find that you have an impulse control disorder that would interfere with your ability 
to function as a physician. 



Dr. Bernstein's opinion given in his 01122/14 letter that there was evidence you were 
using substantial amounts of Benadryl is not supported by any other evidence. His 
diagnosis of alcohol abuse and dependence was said to be in putitive remission. 
However, again, I do not find that you ever met criteria for alcohol abuse or dependen.ce. 
Dr. Bernstein was mistaken in stating that you wanted to move to a t:W:'al locale in 
Pennsylvania. In fact, you only would have been periodically visiting Pennsylvania on 
contract work. You have been able to effectively manage your current monitoring 
program while you travel, so periodically being out of state should not pose any 
difficulties for you. He apparently felt you would not be able to have face-to-face contact 
with a treating professional, because you would be living in a rural area of Pennsylvania, 
and this is obviously incorrect. Thus, my opinion is that Dr. Bernstein's conclusions are 
not supported by the objective evidence, and he utilized misinformation about you to 
form his conclusions. 

Please contact me if you have any questions concerning my opinions given in this letter. 

Sincerely, 

-~ 
Nick A. DeFilippis, Ph.D. 



Dave M. Davis, M.D., D.L.F .AP.A., F .AB.EP., F.A.B.P.N. 
3~ C<'ilter Road, !'o'W. Sum M-215 

Atl.lnta. GA .!030'1-161J 
Ttlcpllooe: l'"-'"'1 3~~·2'1ll4 FAX: (4<\t) J~~-2")17 

::s~ h.. .... ~~ k-Q 

~~ .. :-.. ~ 

q.-z-ltf 

""1;;;ao.,. ' 't;:w """' •• !b-.""; v....n ~"'""'-~ V'c .. c • ~ \l..::t -aU. C>"\. ~ 
~~'\4~ ~ kc.u'~ ~ ~~\~~ 

Sw\.c....._ ~ ... ':2-t!?-1";:1. • 

.I ~~ 'u._,.. ~ ~ ~ (U..t~ ot ~s. 

b\4...1.... ~'M...It \~'i.-L '\\1~ ~ ~I)"'~L .Q..t:~.l-Crv--\ 
~-.-~~ ~~ t=.1 ~~ ~ 
~""'N\ \."\ ~{ 4~e·s~.:.:. ~~ft-4- ~ S.~ 
~~ .-b~ &..v.. Sf_ p:,., ·h-~~ t1 . 

-~ ~~~tM ~ ~~~ei~~ 
1)::\, \t--\~~t\ \l\~.(~kQ._J:'~.,.. •• ~~ 
~w -~\~ .(!.O~~s. ~ tu~~K..\. ~ 
'il'"'\~ ~ ~ s. ~ \......,.,..( ~..... ,.t "i-l'rl!.o..cC.~ ~ 
~('MoL \.\.A ~ted~~~~ .J 
VS IP a--'Y ~i ~fi'l::C. S' v.J\ ":::, ':S:.,l:..l:!- ~\4.1'
~ ~~ ~~~~~~{(traGI,~~. 
, ~ · ~!S...~ l~ s~ '\v ~~~"LL 
t.u-.. ~ O~t""i1l'l\ ~ ""- ' 

~~~_oAA~~N 



Transcript of handwritten update from Dr. Dave Davis; 

4·2-14 

james DeSantis MD 

Update 

Dr. DeSantis has done extremely well on his program and been entirely alcohol free 
since 9-28-12. 

I think he has been a casualty of his one time lapse when he drank excessively after 
taking Am bien which was prescribed for him by Dr. Deborah Hebert for his shift 
work as an ER doctor. 

His rendition of his treatment/evaluation at Talbott rings true. I have seen the self
serving evaluations they perform on physicians hundreds of times (all recommend 
expensive in patient treatment with them.) I was an expert witness in 3 suits 
against them by MDs- all settled for $1,000,000 each. 

Dr. DeSantis is stable to practice in my opinion. 

Dave Davis MD DLFAPA, FABFP, FABPN 



~ar. 26. 2014 10:2~MI 

Piedmont Psychiatric Clinic 
35 COllie• R.al<d, lo!.W, Sul~ M-21S 

Aflanra. GA 3030!1:-1613 
'Iltlephone: (404) 355..2914 PAX: (404} lS$-2917 

www.pledllllli!IPilJIChiatt:lcrulnic.~om 
AdDleOttmt, Adult, Family mid AdministrAtive Psycllliltry 

D..., M, D1,1•i11, M.:O., P.U.A.P.A.. F.A..li.F.P., F.A.llP.N. 
ADolo M. c.o.,., M.D.1 P.A.B.I':N 

- Marcn 12, 2014 

Arkan!u State Medical Board 
Atiemion: Joseph M Seck, II, M.D., Chairwllll 
su7teJ40 
14tH W. CapitolAvODIJC) 
Little Ri:lck, Arkansllll 7220 .I 

RE; Jamet M' l:>enntis, M.D. 
DOB: 10123/56 

Toc.Illl<Q~, L.C.S.W. 

James M. Desantls, M.D. will be meeting wld1 the Arkansas Sta~ Medical!loord ~n April3, 
2014, and bas asked that I mite~ you regsrdi11(1 his tleatment here at Piedmont P~Yl:hillt~ic 
CJipie. 8i! is on a Coment Order from the <;3eorgia BOI!rd of Medica I Examiners. He b•s been 
fullowing the fi.Uidelines ofhil Co:nsl!!llt Order perfectly. AJ. you are aware, Ibis Order resulted 
frorn onupisode of rucl!aivt alcollol U$11, an S~ptember 28, 2012. Dr. Posantis related this to 
Ambitn that he was 'laking at tile ti111e. 

I have seen Dr. Dosantis fur • forty·:fiVe-rninute session twi~a a month f01· peyc.b.ctherapy and 
drug couaselibg, as well as som~ Set~ions with both Or, l>tf!Ul.tis and Ills wife (who w a great 
ally). Dr. De.>! antis t!W:s Antabvsc 250 mg once daily, which is recorded eilbOJ' by m.:y~lf or a 
pbarmacilt where ba is working or the phmnaci1t at Rite..Aid; iD. I11Y oasc, dus ia always 
superilised. Sin!ll!l Septembtt (Jf 2012, Dr. Dtllwt!JIItas not used alcohol, and mltltl_l'ile observed 
cbain·of·<:UsiOdy drug SCI:I!<It!S (at least two pet· month u well~~S.random) hau all been ll!lf!Btive 
fur alcohcl and dl-ugs of abuse. In the: Interim, Or. J:ie,antis luis worked as an emergonoy-room 
physician in Pennsylvania and as an urgcllt·carc physioilln In Gtorgia. 

'The bottom line is !bat Ill·. Desantis hu been perfectly ~ompliiUtt Alld i~ not abu8i ng alcohol 
currently, and I have no tesecvations about bis being able to practiCD mcdiGint at tbi! lime. 
Unfortunately, tbb one unfortunato Incident had a dQmino effect on his life. 

Ifyou have any· questions, please let me know. 

Dave M. Davis, M.D., O.L. F.A.l' .A., F .A.B.F .P ., F .A.B.P .N. 
Board O:rfit:M in Clinical Psy-•• hlatl)' 
.Board O:tdtied ill FolelU!c Psycblaa:y 
Boarrl Cllrlified inPayolliall'io Administration and Mnnaganeut 
Boant Certified Disllbilit.y ~ 
DMDitung 



11J-6~l?nrp 

·'\failed 
·------

Piedmont Psychiatric Clinic 
35 Col6ou: Rood, N.'ll~, Saito M-215 

A.daa, OA 3030!).1613 
telephone: (404) 355·2914 PAX: (404) 355·2~17 

W"''N.piedmon!pm:;bia!ti<")li•i<:.<QJ~ 
.Adolment, Adul~ f'lll:llily and Adcl1iniot:rllliw: Psychi•ay 

PtM M. O..~Jt. M.n. DLf"'-1'-~ ,I'!All.P.I', l'A.a.~.l'l 
Allllil M C""!"''', l.!.D._.I'A.I!.I'N. 

Oerober $, 2013 

RE: James De:lantis, M.D. 
DOB: l0/231.56 

To 'Whom It May Coti.Cel:n: 

. 6''' . i~ :' ';.::; v ... 

Tom Di.>coo, L.c.s:w. 

James Desantis, M.D. asked !bat I write this letter regarding his treatment here at Piech~1ont Psychiatric Clinic. 
Clll't'elltly, I am monitoring him under the direction and approYal of a Consent Order from the Georgia Board of 
Medical Examiners, n a rr:quirement :lbr his medical license. 

I have :K:en Dr. Desantis twice monthly since IuJy 25, 20!3. He has been one hundred petGent complianty,ith his 
n·eatment program, which includes: rr,onitoring with urine and blood alcohcl tests, randomly performet oMe a 
mo11th; psyr.bo!herapy directed lllWill'd personality iso;ues, cognitive behavioral therapy; his wife being present for 
certain of his p!ychotbell!py sessions, as she is arnember of his treating r:emn. 

lli. Santls is also 1110nitored Jndependently by a national company, pet th<! terms (lf hts Con;ent Order. 

It !!hould be noted that Dr. Desantis has abstained from. alcohol for :nore than one )'ear. He talms .>Uitabuse (a 
medication that keeps him from drinking alcohol) on a daily basis and this is supervised by either myself or ~ 
pb!ltt!l.llcist 01' clllleague (who sigDs a bnok, which DL Desantis b:ringll with him to his sessions). 

I fmd him safe and competent to return to work and not a danger to patients. A!l alcohol screening cluring the past 
year has been negative. Dr. Desantis' physics] condition is S1.1Ch that he is capable ot plllforming hls duties, iiS is 
his mental condition. A full bM:tery ofhboratory studies obtained recently revealed data all within normal range. 

Tf you have any qlleStions or require furr.her information. pletl.'!e contact me. 

With k.hxlest regards, 

£::.-~-~ 
Dave M. DllviS, M.D., D.L.F.A.P.A., F.A.B.F.P., F.A.El.P.K 
Bo1rd Cer.trJ:ed in Clinicall'sycbilltry 
awd Cer:lfled in Forenillc Pl)'cl~iii1TY 
'!loord c .. til!ed il'l l'&)dllatrlc Admints!l\\tion and Ma~ageme~n 
Bo1~ COI'!if.e~ DIW>illtyJl:x........,, 
DMD/mng 
Enclosure (CV) 



Piedmont Psychiatric Clinic 
35 Collier Road, N.W., Suite M·215 

Atlanta, GA 3()309-1613 
Telephone: (404) 355-2914 FAX: (404) 355·2917 

www.piedmontpsychiatricclinic.com 
Adolescent, Adult, Family and Administrative Psychiatry 

Dave M. D.vi•, M.D., D.LF.A.P.A., FAB.F.P., F.A.B.P.N. 

Annio M. Coop<rA'tii?ui'i'\~;Pfo 13 

Georgia Board of Medical Ex;aminers 
Attention: Chairman, Membership Committee 
Thirty-Sixth Floor 
2 Peachtree Street, N.W. 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

RE: James DeSantis 

Dear Mr. Chairman: 

To111 Dixon, L.C.S.W. 

James DeSantis, M.D. asked that I write to the Membership Committee regarding his 
treatment here at Piedmont Psychiatric Clinic, which began on July 25,20 J3_ Since that 
time, Dr. DeSantis has been free from drugs or alcohol and, by his history and outside 
history, he has used no alcohol, whatsoever, since September 28, 2012. 

His treatment plan is as follows: 
I . Daily Antabuse, sup1...TVised. This must be supervised daily by myself, another 

M.D., or a registered pharmacist, who must sign his/her initials in Dr. DeSantis' 
log book, which he is to bring in to me for review. 

2. Every two weeks, forty-five minutes of individual and/or fu:rnily psychotherapy, 
drug education, and monitoring. 

3. Drug screens on demand. 
4. Alcohol testing on demand. 

Dr. DeSanti$ has been one hundred percent compliant with his treatment program, and 
I know that he is not abusing drugs or alcohol. 

For this reason, I hope you will consider reinstating his license. I believe that the above
described program, more than any other program, guarantees that Dr. DeSantis will not 
abuse drugs or a! coho I. 

My understanding from Dr. DeSantis is that he would have to be in the PHI or some 
other approved AA and inpatient program in order to be able to have his license 
reinstated; however, I believe this is not what Paul Earley, M.D _ espouses. 



Georgia Board of Medical Examiners 
Re: James DeSantis 
August 19,2013 
Page two 

I have been the National Football League/Atlanta Fa! ons physician for substance abuse 
for the past thirty-eight years. Certainly, NFL pi yers are treasured as much as 
physicians. In the NFL pro~:,rram, we offer the player a choice of different programs to 
solidify their compliance with sobriety. Allowing he player to choose the type of 
program with which he thinks he would be most sue essful bas been proven the most 
effective by the MATCH study. 

I was previously director of two Alcoholics Anon ous programs, one at Parkwood 
Hospital and the other at Peacbford Hospital. Thesb programs were in no way more 
successful than some individual.ized programs. As :1. matter of fact, I have found the 
individualized programs to be more successful than ,Jone-size-fits-all" programs. 

With kindest regards, 

~~~--~\\Vj 
Dave M. Davis, M.D., D.L.F.A.P.A., F.A.B.F.P., F. .B.P.N. 
Board Certified in Clinical Psychiatry 
Board. Certified in Forensic Psychiatry 
Board Certified in Psychiatric Administrati.on and Management 
Board Certified Disability Examiner 

DMD/nmg 



Oct. 12, 2013 

Re: Tames Desantis, MD 

To whom it may concern, 

I am a physician, board certified in Internal Medicine and Cardiology and in practice 
for the last 31 years. I ran a 13 man, cardiology group that 1 founded, for 30 years 
before selling the practice and joining Well stat Cardio-Vascular Medicine in 2011. 

1 have known Dr. james DeSantis for greater tha.n 25 years on a professional basis 
and for greater than 20 years on a personal basis. I have the upmost confidence in 
his professional judgment. During the time that l have l<nown him, I have never 
seen him intoxicated. and ce·rtainly not in a professional setting. 

l firmly believe that the incident in September, 2012 was associated with an 
amnesic effect of his use of a legally prescribed sleeping agent, Am bien, and that this 
lead him to consuming a.n uncharacteristic amount of alcohol during his personal 
time. This resulted in a severe hypoxic episode associated with aspiration and his 
subsequent hospitalization. 

Since that incident, I have bElen in close contact with on a weekly ba.sis and 1 have no 
reason to believe he has had a single drink -of alcohol during the past year. He has 
voluntarily chosen to take .Antabuse daily, to help confirm th.at he is avoiding alcohol 
and has had several blood tests. which have shown no evidence of alcohol intake. 

Without. reservation, I recommend that Dr, Oesantis be given back his license and 
allowed to return to practicing medicine. 

If you should have any questions. please feel free to call me on my cell phone, 770-
530-5959, or at Wellstar Ccrdiovascular Medicine, in Marietta, Ga. 

WEL~TAR. 

~ CardiOIIMOidlll' Mtdiein• 
Dnfl1ld A. Pnl(e, MD, P'I\CC 
n"niel J, Kl-:.inm•tt, MO. FACC 
('ic:miJI!' A. Knme'l', MD. MPR FACC 
~hrTY 0. M~ngei. ~T). ~ACC 
Dlivid S. C:nm, MD, FACC 
."'-r'lhtll' 1!11. Rt'ltm11n. MD. 'FA(."(: 
""~"" K. ICIII'IUnl, ~I) 
Rruc:l! 'ft Atuyi'lr, ~r~. f:'i\CC 
;llllM T, 1~. MIJ. FAC(.." 
IOfl'l fli, W~tehll. MD. FAC'(: 
i)i~ndo M. ltlll"dr:t. Mf'J 

Sllritl K~nMl, MD, MPH. FACC 
R111jM!Itl l'rNLIMI. MO. PACC 
(:~eft~ A. P.,tm'fll, MD, MBA, FAct.'" 
Ad.tm N ~e. Mb, ~ACC 
Alr(Jil!IQ "!. R;!:'l. MD. 'FACC 
flint. H. ~.MD. PACC 
Pwu1 A·. ~lmOnofT, Mb, IZACC 
Mit.lmii!!l 'l l.fflnl~. MD, FACC 
S'.el'ltl; f-.. McKeoe., MD, PAC(' 
('ktm'gp"l'. 'O!r~, 111, MD 
Am•rb.~.MO,FA(~ 
ff~y H .• ~Ekll:, MD.I'AC'C 
lfll'lWjtfd '· ~l'tlrtfll!'l', MO. 'Fli\C:C 

AhdHI M. Shdkh, 1>!0, PACC 
Nvl,fi"' M. 8lfltdti'011. fotO. J!'ACC 
V!mo Slljja. MD 
Rfehltd A. Bardll(k, MD. FACC 
~11!1~ 0-nlldn)"!. :'1110. PACI; 
J:w:M< N. Blatt, MD 
Ml~y Genlry, MD 
M'lttnw!ll, R:il~y. MD. F,\CC 
Pm!!"ltn ~. Hcom~JI.. Mf), f:Acc 
1\d"' I. IIA'nndD, MO 
An«mJi('l V O.,.h!, MD, 1"'-'C(: 
'1'/tn. Mki!W!I Hr!ftitt, MD, MBA, FA(C 
Amy 1~. £1-JI!I?I, MO. fAC'C 

l11ui1 C. Outc~l. 00. Ft\CC 
!')eftnH. t,.. 1nenn+11M. DO, P'A.CC, ~CJ\1 
/b'rvllitvft! F. M'tn'Hi1'~\ 00, MA, T'A<:t:'. 'F'Sf~AI 
Ohavl.l G. htel. MD, fA<:C 
ltryan T. P'te(l~. MO. FACC 
rJnvid A. 'tl"'mPnn.llt'l. Mb f;JI.CC 
Tcri F'mdt.Mil1tt::h~. NP·C 
rccutitll!r M"ltttt-, I•A.·C 
J(ltln (;, liorl:l(:~~~~•·"'"·{' 
Mlmt.JICI!ib-Plntl'l'!, !1'.1\.C 
Pi1ti "'1'1(11_., NP·C 
Dn.n:J Plrt~~:~l, ~P..C 
'llirl!!:il'lllll S11IUVftn, NP·C 



Wm Michael Brown, MD, FACC, MBA 
420 StJames Place• Marietta, Ga. 30004• Phone: 770-530-5959 • Fax: 770-424-3960 

Date: 5/07/14 

Dave M Davis. M.D., F.LAPA, FAB.F.P., FAB.N. 

Medical Director, Piedmont Psychiatric Clinic 
[Company] 

35 Collier Road, N.W., Suite M-21$ 

Atlanta, Ga. 30300.1613 

Re: James DeSantis, M.D. 

Dear Dr. Davis: 

•• 

I am the primary physician for Dr. James DeSantis and have been for the last 15 years. I have known him 

professionally for the last 25 years and personally for the last 20. I have been in practice in cardiology for the 

last 32 years and ran a cardiologist group since 1984. In 2011 our 13-man group merged with the Wellstar 

Cardiovascular Medicine Group. 

Since Dr. DeSantis admission 9128/12, due to Ambien toxicity, which lead to excessive alcohol consumption, I 

have followed him closely. I talk with him generally on a weekly basis and have monitored his Anlabuse dosing 

on numerous occasions. This has given me an opportunity to review his Antabuse log, and I saw no missing 

dates for his Antabuse schedule. When out of state he has located either a pharmacist or other medical 

professional to monitor him taking his medication. I was the original prescriber for Dr. DeSantis' anti

depressive medication, a number of years ago when he developed mild depression. At that time he asked me 

to monitor his medication as a matter of intellectual honesty. He has always been compliant with his 

medication. 

I have personally reviewed his medical records from his hospitalization 9128112, and am certain he aspirated 

secondary to the combined effects of the Ambien and uncharacteristic alcohol consumption. This occurred 

during his personal time and did not place any patient at risk. I have monitored his labs on a regular basis and 

his liver function and toxicology screens have been perfectly normal. 



•• 
I an certain that he has not consumed any alcohol or sleeping agents, other than OTC medication, since the 
incident of 9/28/12. I also feel he is more than competent to work at the same job and level of activity that he 

did prior to 9/28!12. I also agree with your assessment that Dr. DeSantis' wife would report any deviation from 

his sobriety, immediately should it occur. 

If I can be of any help in the future please feel free to call me at any time. 

Sincerely, 

Wm. Michael Brown, M.D .. F A.C.C , M.B.A. 

2 



~ '
" ,. - .. ·. ~ 

•confidential Lab Re~rt· 
"(a. 

7 

Report for: 
Talbott Reeovery Campus 

5448 Yorktown Drive 
Atlanta GA 30349 

Donor: DeSantis, James 

Donor 10#: 79S2 

Specimen#: 3067<1 Reasanl Random 
Data: 2/4/2019 11me: 4:15 I'M 
Tests Ordered: UOS100.T 

Sub$tan"" Abuse ~nel IN RANGE 

Mda-Analogues N!i!gative 

Negatlve 

Methamphetilmines Negative 

Amphetamines Negative 

Sarbiturates Negative 

Cocaine Metabolites Negative 

Marijuana Metabolites Negative 

Methadone Negative 

Opiates Negative 

Phencyclidine Negative 

Propoxyphene Negative 

Benzodiazepines Negative 

<< End of Regort» 

ASSMT 

Initial Toil 
Level 

<WnJ{ml 

100 Ntl/ML 

1000 NG/ML 

iOONG/ML 

~OONG/ML 

300NG/ML 

SO!!NG/Ml 

300NG/ML 

iOON~/ML 

UiNG/ML 

900 riG/ML 

lOONG/M~ 

500 w. Lanier Ave, #412. 
Fayetteville, GA 30214 

770-716-1529 



 
 

  John D. Campbell, M.D. –  
  Refer to addendum 



 
CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT MATERIALS 

 

One or more pages have been removed 
from this document for security reasons 

 

Scroll down to see the available pages or 
advance to the next document if all pages 
have been removed. 

 
SOME OR ALL PAGES IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE PATIENT RECORDS 
AND/OR DOCUMENTS THAT IDENTIFY THE PATIENT BY NAME AND ARE 
EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS. 

 
456.057 - Ownership and control of patient records; report or copies of records to be 

furnished.— 
10)(a)All  patient  records  obtained  by  the  department  and  any  other  documents 

maintained by the department which identify the patient by name are confidential and exempt 
from s. 119.07(1) and shall be used solely for the purpose of the department and the appropriate 
regulatory board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal of disciplinary proceedings. The 
records  shall  not  be  available to  the  public  as  part  of  the  record  of  investigation for  and 
prosecution in disciplinary proceedings made available to the public by the department or the 
appropriate board. 

 


	06062014_FBAddendum_PublicBook
	Florida Board of Medicine - June 6, 2014 Full Board Addendum
	Additional Information:
	Angel M. Garcia, M.D. – Refer to original tab 10
	Revised Memorandum to the Board 

	Abdon Borges, M.D. – Refer to original tab 18 
	Forensic Psychiatric Evaluation 

	Mohammed Naji, M.D. – Refer to original tab 19 
	Email from Dr. Naji 

	Juan Pittaluga, M.D. – Refer to original tab 25
	Notice of Appearance 

	Paul Wand, M.D. – Refer to original tab 32
	Medical records for AC
	Medical records for CV
	Medical records for DC
	Medical records for LM
	Medical records for RD
	Medical records for RL
	Revised Memorandum to the Board 

	James Michael Desantis, M.D. – Refer to original tab 34
	GA Composite Medical Board Practitioner Profile 
	Public Consent Order Reinstating License in GA

	Peter Choy, M.D. – Refer to original tab 35
	Exceptions to Recommended Order
	Response to Exceptions to Recommended Order 
	Motion for Continuance
	PSU Response To Motion for Continuance 
	Email Regarding Motion for Continuance 

	Richard B. Karsh, M.D. – Refer to original tab 38 
	Letter from Dr. Karsh

	Kwame Asante-Nkansa, M.D. – Refer to original tab 39 
	Letter from Dr. Asante-Nkansa

	Society for Clinical and Medical Hair Removal, Inc – Refer to original tab 43
	Supporting documentation 

	Robert D. Maresh, M.D. – Refer to original tab 59 
	Letter from PRN 
	Excerpt of MTG MIN April 2012 Credentials Committee Meeting 

	Parveen Malik, M.D. – Refer to original tab 61
	Letter from Bruce Lamb, Esquire – no longer representing 

	Reza Ehsan, M.D. – Refer to original tab 66 
	Request to Vacate Final Order 


	Final Order Compliance Issues: 
	John Jeffrey, M.D. – Request to Voluntarily Relinquish
	Voluntary Relinquishment Request 
	Memorandum to the Board
	Compliance Summary 
	Final Order 

	John D. Campbell, M.D. – Request for Modification of Final Order 
	Request for Modification and supporting documents 
	Letter of support
	Memorandum to the Board 
	Compliance Summary
	Monthly PRN Compliance Report 
	UF CARES Evaluation 
	Order Granting Reinstatement
	Final Order 


	Licensure Recommended Order:
	Leon Rawner, M.D.  – Refer to original tab 41
	Recommended Order
	Exhibit 6 - List of Documents
	Joint Exhibit 2 - Petitioner's complete licensure file kept by the Florida Board of Medicine
	9. Chapter 97-264, Section 18
	9.a. Senate Staff Analysis and Economic Impact Statement, Health Care Committee and Senator Jones, Bill: CS/SB 1814, Subject: Regulation of Health Care Professions (Florida Archives, Series 18, Carton 2227).
	9.b. Senate Staff Analysis and Economic Impact Statement, Bill CS/CS/SB 1814, Subject: Regulation of Health Care Professions (Florida Archives, Series 18, Carton 2279).
	9.c. House of Representatives Committee on Health Care Standards & Regulatory Reform Final Bill Research & Economic Impact Statement, Bill HB 2013 (Formerly PCB HCR 97-02), Relating to Regulation of Health Care Professions/Medical Quality Assurance (Florida Archives, Series 19, Carton 2938).
	9.d. Senate Staff Analysis and Economic Impact Statement, Bill PCS/SB 1814, Subject: Regulation of Health Care Professions (Florida Archives, Series 18, Carton 2267).

	10. Chapter 99-397, Section 95
	10.a. House of Representatives as Revised by the Committee on Governmental Operations Analysis, HB 2125 (PCB HCS 99-05), Relating to Department of Health (Florida Archives Series 19, Carton 3070).
	10.b. Senate Staff Analysis and Economic Impact Statement, CS/SB 2220, Subject: Department of Health, March 23, 1999, (Florida Archives, Series 18, Carton 2432).
	10c. Senate Staff Analysis and Economic Impact Statement, CS/SB 2220, Subject: Department of Health, April 16, 1999, (Florida Archives, Series 18, Carton 2351)
	10.d. Senate Staff Analysis and Economic Impact Statement, CS/SB 2220, Subject: Department of Health, April 21, 1999, (Florida Archives, Series 18, Carton 2397)
	10.e. House of Representatives as Revised by the Committee on Health Care Services Final Analysis, HB 2125 (PCS HCS 99-05), Relating to Department of Health, (Florida Archives, Series 19, Carton 3139).

	Joint Exhibit 6
	2. Chapter 79-302, Section 1
	2.a. House Summary HB 1814 (Florida Archives, Series 19, Carton 541).
	2.b. PB Medical Practice Act, Regulatory Reform Committee HB 1814 (Florida Archives, Series 18, Carton 965).

	3. Chapter 85-344, Section 1
	3.a. Senate Staff Analysis and Economic Impact Statement, Subject: Foreign Medical School Graduates, CS/SB 783 by the HRS Committee and Senator Fox (Florida Archives, Series 18, Carton 1409).
	3.b. Senate Staff Analysis and Economic Impact Statement, Subject: Foreign Medical School Graduates, CS for SB 0783 by HRS Committee and Senator Fox. (Florida Archives, Series 18, Carton 1480).

	4. Chapter 86-245, Section 6
	4.a. Senate Staff Analysis and Economic Impact Statement, Subject: Medical Practice Act (Sunset), CS/CS/SB 1090 by Appropriations, HRS Committee and Senator Fox, (Florida Archives, Series 18, Carton 1598).
	4b. Senate Staff Analysis and Economic Impact Statement, Subject: Medical Practice Act (Sunset), Senate Bill 5-B, Senators Fox and Myers (Florida Archives, Series 19, Carton 1562).
	4.c. House of Representatives, Health Care and Insurance Committee, PCB 86-18, (Florida Archives, Series 19, Carton 1529).

	5. Chapter 89-347, Section 5
	5.a. House of Representatives Committee on Regulatory Reform, Staff Analysis and Economic Impact Statement, Bill No. 1427, Relating to Medical Practice, Companion Bill SB 1150 (Florida Archives, Series 19, Carton 2034).

	6. Chapter 89-374, Section 42
	8. Chapter 97-103, Section 1086
	7. Chapter 92-149, Section 77
	7.a. House of Representatives as further Revised by the Committee on Appropriations: Bill Analysis and Economic Impact Statement, Bill No. CS/HB 2249, Relating to: Regulation of Professions (Florida Archives, Series 19, Carton 2239).
	7.b. Sectional Analysis by Department of Professional Regulation on HB 2249 requested by House Appropriations Committee (Florida Archives, Series 19, Carton 2246).
	7.c. House of Representatives Committee on Regulatory Reform Final Bill Analysis & Economic Impact Statement, CS/HB 2249 (PCB RR 92-17), Relating to Regulation of Professions, (Florida Archives, Series 19, Carton 2334).
	7.d. House of Representatives as Revised by the Committee on Finance & Taxation, Bill Analysis & Economic Impact Statement, HB 2249 (PCB RR 92-17) (Florida Archives, Series 19, Carton 2469).
	7.e. Senate Staff Analysis and Economic Impact Statement, Bill No. CS/SB 1706, Subject: Department of Professional Regulation (Florida Archives, Series 18, Carton 1928).

	Joint Exhibits 1, 3, 4 & 5 Joint Pre-Hearing Stipulation
	List of Joint Exhibits
	Exhibit 1 - Petitioner's Petition for Administrative Hearing, including attachments
	Exhibit A
	Exhibit B
	Exhibit C
	Exhibit D
	Exhibit E
	Exhibit F
	Exhibit G
	Exhibit H
	Exhibit I

	Exhibit 3 - Composite exhibit consisting of Respondent's Request for Admissions and Petitioner's Responses to Respondent's First Request for Admissions
	Exhibit 4 - Composite exhibit consisting of Petitioner's Request for Admissions and Respondent's Response to Petitioner's First Request for Admissions
	Exhibit 5 - Composite exhibit consisting of Petitioner's Interrogatories to Respondent and Respondent's Response to Petitioner's First Set of Interrogatories





	06062014_FBSupp_PublicBook
	Florida Board of Medicine - June 6, 2014 Full Board Supplemental
	Updated PCP List
	Additional Information:
	David Lehrman, M.D. – Refer to original tab 5
	Request for continuance

	Juan Gutierrez, M.D. – Refer to original tab 7
	PRN letter - Confidential

	Mohammed Naji, M.D. – Refer to original tab 19
	Request for continuance
	Email response to request

	Cesar Velilla, M.D. – Refer to original tab 23
	Letter and additional information from Respondent

	Juan Pittaluga, M.D.  – Refer to tab 25
	Deferred Disposition Order
	Mitigation Letter

	James Desantis, M.D. – Refer to original tab 34
	Letter from Respondent

	John D. Campbell, M.D. – Refer to addendum 
	PRN letter - Confidental







